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PROVINCE OF MANITOBA PUBLIC ACCOUNTS 2016-17

INTRODUCTION TO THE PUBLIC ACCOUNTS OF MANITOBA

The Public Accounts of the Province of Manitoba are prepared by statutory requirement, in accordance
with The Financial Administration Act, which is Chapter F55 of the Continuing Consolidation of the
Statutes of Manitoba. The Public Accounts for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2017 consist of the
following volumes:

Volume 1

- Volume 1 is published as part of the Government’s Annual Report and contains:
- The Economic Report.
- The Financial Statement Discussion and Analysis Report.
- The audited Summary Financial Statements of the Government focusing on the entire reporting
entity.
- Other audited financial reports.

Volume 2

- Contains the audited Schedule of Public Sector Compensation Payments of $50,000 or more as paid
through the Government Departments as well as those paid by Special Operating Agencies.

- Contains details of unaudited Consolidated Fund and Special Operating Agencies’ payments in
excess of $50,000 to corporations, firms, individuals, other governments and government agencies.

Volume 3

- Contains the details of the core government revenue and expense.

- Contains the details of selected core government financial information.

- Contains information provided under statutory requirement.

These statements are all unaudited with the exception of the following:

- Report of Amounts Paid or Payable to Members of the Assembly

- the Northern Affairs Fund

Volume 4

- Contains a compendium of financial statements of special funds, government organizations,
government business enterprises and government business partnerships comprising the Government
Reporting Entity.

CONTENTS OF VOLUME 3 - SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

Section 1 — Details of Core Government Revenue and Expense

This section provides more detailed information regarding the core government revenue and expense of

the fiscal year.

Section 2 — Details of Core Government Financial Information
This section provides more detailed information with regard to core government financial position.

Section 3 — Information Provided Under Statutory Requirement
This section provides information that is disclosed in accordance with statutory requirements.
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Revenue Details - Core Government and Summary
Fiscal Year ending March 31, 2017

Source of Revenue

Income Taxes
Individual Income Tax
Corporation Income Tax
Subtotal: Income Taxes
Other Taxes
Corporations Taxes
Fuel Taxes
Land Transfer Tax
Levy for Health and Education
Retail Sales Tax
Tobacco Tax
Other Taxes
Education Property Taxes
Subtotal: Other Taxes
Fees and Other Revenue
Fines and Costs and Other Legal
Minerals and Petroleum

Automobile and Motor Carrier Licences and Fees

Parks: Forestry and Other Conservation
Water Power Rentals

Service Fees and Other Miscellaneous Charges

Revenue Sharing from SOAs
Tuition Fees
Subtotal: Fees and Other Revenue
Federal Transfers
Equalization
Canada Health Transfer (CHT)
Canada Social Transfer (CST)
Shared Cost and Other Transfer
Subtotal: Federal Transfers
Net Income of Government
Business Enterprises (GBES)
Deposit Guarantee Corporation of Manitoba
Manitoba Hydro-Electric Board
Manitoba Liquor and Lotteries Corporation
Manitoba Public Insurance Corporation
Workers Compensation Board
Subtotal: Net Income of GBEs

Sinking Funds and Other Earnings
Total Revenue

($ millions)
Core
Government Summary
3,498.5 3,498.5
459.1 459.1
3,957.6 3,957.6
282.2 282.2
3355 335.8
84.7 84.7
475.3 343.1
2,298.2 2,300.8
243.3 243.3
12.9 12.9
- 792.8
3,732.1 4,395.6
57.4 51.8
13.2 13.2
160.5 189.9
39.2 39.5
120.6 120.6
222.9 1,656.2
23.2 -
- 311.8
637.0 2,383.0
1,735.6 1,735.6
1,312.9 1,312.9
485.6 485.6
296.7 594.3
3,830.8 4,128.4
- 17.6
- 71.0
586.1 586.1
- (85.2)
- 41.8
586.1 631.3
- 227.2
12,743.6 15,723.1
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Expense Details - Core Government and Summary
Fiscal Year ending March 31, 2017

($ millions)
Core
Government Summary

Expense of Sector/Department
Health

Health, Seniors and Active Living 5,882.4 6,546.5

Total Health 5,882.4 6,546.5
Education

Education and Training 2,701.6 4,237.1

Total Education 2,701.6 4,237.1
Families

Families 1,959.5 2,027.8

Total Families 1,959.5 2,027.8
Community, Economic and Resource Development

Agriculture 167.6 259.9

Growth, Enterprise and Trade 93.1 112.4

Indigenous and Municipal Relations 484.6 503.7

Infrastructure 638.8 410.5

Sustainable Development 142.6 142.8

Total Community, Economic and

Resource Development 1,526.7 1,429.3

Justice and Other Expenditures

Legislative Assembly 52.9 51.9

Executive Council 6.2 6.1

Civil Service Commission 21.4 20.4

Employee Pensions and Other Costs 28.5 73.2

Finance 280.8 370.8

Justice 589.2 595.6

Sport, Culture and Heritage 66.3 68.4

Other Appropriations 110.8 131.4

Total Justice and Other Expenditures 1,156.1 1,317.8
Debt Servicing Costs 214.1 929.5
Total Expense 13,440.4 16,488.0
Subtract: Revenue from Total Expense 12,743.6 15,723.1
Net Result (696.8) (764.9)







Actual Increase
2015-2016 2016-2017 (Decrease)
$ $ $

3,261,343,591 3,498,544,482 237,200,891
516,597,674 459,115,629 (57,482,045)
252,030,220 282,164,455 30,134,235
319,189,423 335,511,550 16,322,127
83,735,951 84,702,706 966,755
457,512,280 475,283,946 17,771,666
71,320 71,030 (290)
7,834,135 9,371,776 1,537,641
2,268,827,451 2,300,783,218 31,955,767
256,118,773 243,265,765 (12,853,008)
2,599 2,599 -
4,669,362 3,465,160 (1,204,202)
7,427,932,779 7,692,282,316 264,349,537

STATEMENT OF REVENUE

For the Year Ended March 31, 2017

TAXATION

Income Taxes:

Individual INCOME TaX......ccvvveeeeiiiiiiiie e e
Corporation INCOME TaX......coeeeeeieieeiiieeieieieieeeeeeeeeeeenn,

Other Taxes:

Corporations TAXES.......ccvvvveeeieieieieiieeeeeeeeeeee e eeeeeeeees

Fuel Taxes......

Land Transfer TaX.....coocoeeeveeiirieeeeeeciiieeee e sesiineeeeens
Levy for Health and Education..............c.ccceeeeuveeeennn.
Mining Claim LEASE TaX........uvvvervrerererererererereeereeeeennn,
Oil and Natural Gas TaX......cccceeeevvrreeeeeeeiiiiieeee e,

Retail Sales Tax
Tobacco Tax...
Succession Duty and Gift Tax.......
Environmental Protection Taxes

TOTAL REVENUE FROM TAXATION

2016-2017
Actual

$

3,498,544,482

2016-2017
Estimated

$

3,338,761,000

Variance

$

159,783,482

459,115,629 529,016,000 (69,900,371)
282,164,455 249,047,000 33,117,455
335,511,550 321,150,000 14,361,550
84,702,706 83,736,000 966,706
475,283,946 472,614,000 2,669,946
71,030 72,000 (970)
9,371,776 4,719,000 4,652,776
2,300,783,218 2,325,330,000 (24,546,782)
243,265,765 256,123,000 (12,857,235)
2,599 - 2,599
3,465,160 4,800,000 (1,334,840)
7,692,282,316 7,585,368,000 106,914,316
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Actual

2015-2016
$

356,050
17,128

2,247

3,233,948
21,650

21,314

1,276,326
3,245,687

32,073,810
1,378,474
7,188,595

209,840
2,079,272

1,111,197
44,358,077
825,000
3,880,898

8,709,371

655,617
3,938,629
8,311,867
4,812,144

2016-2017
$

350,851
13,996

1,795

3,536,446
70,140

36,426

1,283,069
2,756,999

46,555,033
1,378,573
7,307,668

209,840
2,095,567

1,095,141
56,754,876
826,662
5,457,028

8,674,000

675,540
4,268,735
8,884,362
4,816,226

Increase
(Decrease)

$

(5,199)
(3,132)

(452)

302,498
48,490

15,112

6,743
(488,688)

14,481,223
99
119,073

16,295

(16,056)
12,396,799
1,662
1,576,130

(35,371)
19,923
330,106
572,495
4,082

OTHER REVENUE:

LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY:

FAMILIES:
Children's Special Allowance Recoveries..................
Cost Recovery from Municipalities.............ccocveeeeenn.
Income Assistance ReCOVeries.........cccccceeeevicvveeenenn.
Levy for Local Government Welfare Purposes in
Unorganized Territory........uueeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeerereeeeereeereeennns

FINANCE:
Public Utilities Board Cost Recovery.......
Recovery of Prior Years' Expenditures..........
Rentals from Various Government Properties..

GROWTH, ENTERPRISE AND TRADE:
Cost Recovery from Workers Compensation

Minerals Royalties and Fees.........
Petroleum Royalties and Fees

2016-2017
Actual

$

350,851
13,996

1,795

3,536,446
70,140

36,426

1,283,069
2,756,999

46,555,033
1,378,573
7,307,668

209,840
2,095,567

1,095,141
56,754,876
826,662
5,457,028

8,674,000

675,540
4,268,735
8,884,362
4,816,226

2016-2017
Estimated

$

350,000
6,000

3,856,000
23,000

21,000

1,277,000
2,787,000

29,634,000
1,378,000
6,910,000

210,000
1,954,000

1,332,000
14,100,000
847,000
3,917,000

9,846,000

628,000
4,100,000
5,528,000
5,846,000

Variance

$

851
7,996

1,795

(319,554)
47,140

15,426

6,069
(30,001)

16,921,033
573
397,668

(160)
141,567

(236,859)
42,654,876

(20,338)
1,540,028

(1,172,000)
47,540
168,735
3,356,362
(1,029,774)
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5,104,301

10,138,954
1,237,353
156,549

157,423,762

8,186,198
20,717,763
148,370
6,373,568

1,510,249
1,181,632
2,721,385

485,925
2,855,758

5,816,145
38,820
36,100,282
10,463,889
10,700,044
6,330,424

350,653
500,502
767,410
379,802
69,143
40,198
74,817

417,581,037

4,342,024

10,662,692
923,178
126,232

160,487,888

3,512,929
20,915,429
175,008
9,970,157

1,265,975
1,007,223
3,078,203

483,075
2,855,758

6,315,131
82,836
37,213,351
11,416,582
9,845,779
6,097,175

352,377
545,426
813,873
365,469
74,440
59,169
1,792,534

451,828,886

(762,277)

523,738
(314,175)
(30,317)

3,064,126

(4,673,269)
197,666
26,638
3,596,589

(244,274)
(174,409)
356,818

(2,850)

498,986
44,016
1,113,069
952,693

(854,265)

(233,249)

1,724
44,924
46,463

(14,333)
5,297
18,971
1,717,717

34,247,849

HEALTH, SENIORS AND ACTIVE LIVING:

INFRASTRUCTURE:
Automobile and Motor Carrier Licences
AN FEES....c et
Cost Recovery from Municipalities
and Other Third Parties..
Drivers' LiCEeNCES.........cccvvveeeeeeiiiiiieeeenn,
Licence Suspension Appeal Board Fees...

JUSTICE:
Automobile Injury Appeals Commission Cost
RECOVEIY.... oo,
Claimant Advisor Office Cost Recovery.....................
Consumer Affairs FEES.........cccvvveeeeiiiiiiieee e,
Cost Recovery from City of Winnipeg..
Cost Recovery from Municipalities.............ccccveeeeenn.
Cost Recovery from
Victims Assistance Trust Fund..............ccceeveeeeeeinnnns
Escheats to the Crown - unclaimed estates...............
Fines and COStS........cocoiuiiiiieeiiiiiieee e

SPORT, CULTURE AND HERITAGE:
Archives of Manitoba Fees...........ccccccoeviviieeeccencnnnn,
Communications Services Manitoba Fees..........
Hudson's Bay Company History Foundation.......
Manitoba Film Classification Board Fees...................
Statutory Publications FEes...........ccovvveeeeeiiiiiieeeeenn,
Translation Services Fees........ccccceveevviiivieeeeeeiiciinnn,
SUNAIY ... a e

Carried FOrward............ccoovueeeeeieeiiiiiee e eee e

4,342,024

10,662,692
923,178
126,232

160,487,888

3,512,929
20,915,429
175,008
9,970,157

1,265,975
1,007,223
3,078,203

483,075
2,855,758

6,315,131
82,836
37,213,351
11,416,582
9,845,779
6,097,175

352,377
545,426
813,873
365,469
74,440
59,169
1,792,534

451,828,886

4,809,000

11,843,000
1,190,000
147,000

152,270,000

8,280,000
19,742,000
104,000
838,000

1,255,000
1,214,000
2,572,000

486,000
2,856,000

6,826,000
50,000
34,256,000
9,100,000
11,000,000
4,364,000

341,000
404,000
835,000
359,000

50,000
160,000

61,000

369,962,000

(466,976)

(1,180,308)
(266,822)
(20,768)

8,217,888

(4,767,071)
1,173,429
71,008
9,132,157

10,975
(206,777)
506,203
(2,925)

(242)

(510,869)
32,836
2,957,351
2,316,582

(1,154,221)
1,733,175

11,377
141,426
(21,127)

6,469

24,440
(100,831)

1,731,534

81,866,886
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Actual

2015-2016
$

417,581,037

658,022
1,141,500
672,199
2,268,861
3,749,296
422,668
1,996,585
17,751,374

5,802,252
105,882,777
118,618
3,498,129
501,640

583,171,000

2,500,000
100,000
11,800,000
200,000
750,000
2,500,000
220,000

66,731,570

2016-2017
$

451,828,886

280,581
976,000
843,474
2,167,416
4,583,595
291,202
2,200,370
18,066,922

5,948,047
120,571,785
125,328
3,566,173
449,099

3,000

586,053,606

2,500,000
100,000
16,800,000
200,000
950,000
2,500,000
120,000

2,922,209
7,750

Increase
(Decrease)

$

34,247,849

(377,441)
(165,500)
171,275
(101,445)
834,299
(131,466)
203,785
315,548

145,795
14,689,008
6,710
68,044
(52,541)

3,000

2,882,606

5,000,000

200,000

(100,000)

(63,809,361)
7,750

1,230,017,528

1,224,055,443

(5,962,085)

8,657,950,307

8,916,337,759

258,387,452

Brought Forward...............oooeeeieiiiiieeeeee,

SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT:

Clean Environment Commission Cost Recovery.......
Cottaging InitiativVe........cooeeeeeiieeieeeeeeeeeee e,
Environment Fees and Sundry..........ccccovvveeeeeeiinnnnnen,
Fisheries Fees and Sundry...........ccceevvvvvvvevevevevevennnnns
Forestry Fees and Sundry..........
GeoManitoba Fees and Sundry.....
Land Information Sales and Fees.
Park Fees.......ccoovviiiniiiiiceiecs
Regional Operations Fees and

COSt RECOVEIY....ccoiiiiiiie e
Water Power Rentals............ccccoeeuvvieeieeiiiiieeee e,

NET INCOME OF GOVERNMENT
BUSINESS ENTERPRISES:
Manitoba Liquor and Lotteries Corporation................

SPECIAL OPERATING AGENCIES:
Entrepreneurship Manitoba..............c.ccccoeeeeeeeeennnnnn.
Industrial Technology Centre...............
Manitoba Financial Services Agency...
Materials Distribution Agency..............
Office of the Fire Commissioner...........ccccccvvvvveeeennnnne,
Vehicle and Equipment Management Agency..
Vital StatiSticsS AGENCY.......coevvvviveiiiiieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeas

SALE OF GOVERNMENT ASSETS:
Proceeds from Sale of Other Capital Assets..............
Gain on Sale of Tangible Capital Assets....................
TOTAL OTHER REVENUE

TOTAL OWN SOURCE REVENUE

2016-2017
Actual

$

451,828,886

280,581
976,000
843,474
2,167,416
4,583,595
291,202
2,200,370
18,066,922

5,948,047
120,571,785
125,328
3,566,173
449,099

3,000

586,053,606

2,500,000
100,000
16,800,000
200,000
950,000
2,500,000
120,000

2,922,209
7,750

2016-2017
Estimated

$

369,962,000

100,000
732,000
615,000
1,916,000
4,112,000
321,000
1,697,000
17,772,000

5,320,000
107,722,000
120,000
3,187,000
300,000

585,700,000

2,500,000
100,000
16,800,000
200,000
950,000
2,500,000
120,000

25,000,000

Variance

$

81,866,886

180,581
244,000
228,474
251,416
471,595
(29,798)
503,370
294,922

628,047
12,849,785
5,328
379,173
149,099

3,000

353,606

(22,077,791)
7,750

1,224,055,443

1,147,746,000

76,309,443

8,916,337,759

8,733,114,000

183,223,759
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1,737,951,000 1,735,593,000 (2,358,000)
1,230,233,000 1,312,872,000 82,639,000
466,559,000 485,600,000 19,041,000
39,113 40,945 1,832

888 - (888)
85,127,665 87,300,155 2,172,490
4,506,788 4,514,338 7,550
2,942,360 3,644,582 702,222
185,312 13,128,188 12,942,876
5,241,036 4,995,703 (245,333)
99,597 101,376 1,779
12,190,829 17,394,910 5,204,081
14,113,203 14,852,516 739,313
77,100 77,100 -
74,330 54,500 (19,830)
13,582,587 150,354,788 136,772,201
285,800 290,800 5,000
3,573,209,608 3,830,814,901 257,605,293
12,231,159,915  12,747,152,660 515,992,745
1,959,082 2,568,223 609,141
295,419 268,534 (26,885)
734,404 759,803 25,399
12,228,171,010  __ 12,743,556,100 515,385,090

NOTE 1:

NOTE 2:

GOVERNMENT OF CANADA
EQUAliZatioN..........cvvvvieiieiiiiieeieeeeveeeeeeeeeeereeeeeeeeeeeeeneeen,
Canada Health Transfer...
Canada Social Transfer........cccccvvvveeeiiiciiiee e,

OTHER
AGHCUITUI. ...
Civil Service COmMmMISSION..........cccuvvereeeeiiiiriereeee e,
Education and Training.........cccceeeivuveeeeeeeeiiiieeee e e e
FamMilI©S....uvvieieeee e
Finance.......ccoocoeeiiiiiiiieee e,
Growth, Enterprise and Trade.......
Health, Seniors and Active Living........
Indigenous and Municipal Relations.......
Infrastructure..........ccoeevvvveeeeeeeennnneen. e
JUSHICE. . ettt e e e e e
Sport, Culture and Heritage............ccccevvveeeeeeeinvnnnn..
Sustainable Development...........ccccceeeeeeeeiiiieeeeeeeeeen,
Emergency EXpenditures.........cccevuveeeeeeeiiiineeeeeeeenns
French Language SEerviCes......ccooueveveiieeieeieieieieeeeennns

TOTAL GOVERNMENT OF CANADA

TOTAL REVENUE BEFORE COMMISSIONS

LESS: Commissions Retained by
Revenue Vendors (NOte 1).......ccvvvveevevvveeeeeeeeeerenenennns
License Sales by Vendor...........ccccveeeeeieeiiiiieeee e,
COUM FEES ..,

TOTAL REVENUE

1,735,593,000 1,735,600,000 (7,000)
1,312,872,000 1,303,600,000 9,272,000
485,600,000 482,400,000 3,200,000
40,945 50,000 (9,055)

- 5,000 (5,000)

87,300,155 82,514,000 4,786,155
4,514,338 4,507,000 7,338
3,644,582 2,787,000 857,582
13,128,188 13,585,000 (456,812)
4,995,703 4,789,000 206,703
101,376 100,000 1,376
17,394,910 46,954,000 (29,559,090)
14,852,516 14,548,000 304,516
77,100 77,000 100
54,500 55,000 (500)
150,354,788 152,559,000 (2,204,212)
290,800 425,000 (134,200)

3,830,814,901

3,844,555,000

(13,740,099)

12,747,152,660

2,568,223
268,534
759,803

12,577,669,000

169,483,660

2,568,223
268,534
759,803

12,743,556,100

12,577,669,000

165,887,100

Certain of the 2015-2016 figures have been reclassified to be consistent with the 2016-2017 presentation.

The actual and estimated revenue of the 2016-17 fiscal year as well as the 2015-16 revenue has been increased to reflect commissions
retained by revenue vendors. The commissions are deducted at the end of the statement to determine government net revenue.
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Actual
2015-2016
$
50,055,718
5,998,243
151,774,982
20,608,539
2,687,883,700
31,486,608
1,823,547,433
467,804,301
102,769,458
5,763,429,377
492,707,859
588,350,640
570,561,895
71,851,169
141,217,062

123,558,450

2016-2017
$

52,854,433
6,201,418
167,602,836
21,453,840
2,701,562,349
28,459,033
1,959,481,927
494,880,888
93,135,401
5,882,425,999
484,559,422
638,814,135
589,221,187
66,332,143
142,534,070

110,755,746

STATEMENT OF EXPENSE

For the Year Ended March 31, 2017

(with comparative figures for the year ended March 31, 2016)

Increase
(Decrease)
$
2,798,715
203,175
15,827,854
845,301
13,678,649
(3,027,575)
135,934,494
27,076,587
(9,634,057)
118,996,622
(8,148,437)
50,463,495
18,659,292
(5,519,026)
1,317,008

(12,802,704)

13,093,605,434

13,440,274,827

346,669,393

NOTE 1:

Legislative Assembly....
Executive Council.........
AGrCUIUre. ...,
Civil Service COmMmMISSION..........ccoeveriireeenne
Education and Training.........ccccceeeviiiveeeenn.
Employee Pensions and Other Costs..........
Families.......cueeeeiiii e
FiNance ......c.cccocveeiiiieeiiicece
Growth, Enterprise and Trade......................
Health, Seniors and Active Living................
Indigenous and Municipal Relations............
INFrastruCture.........coovvieeiiie e,
JUSHICE. .ot
Sport, Culture and Heritage
Sustainable Development...........

Enabling Appropriations.............ccccuveereeennn,
Other Appropriations...........ccceveeeiiiiiiieeneenn,

TOTAL EXPENSE

Actual
$

52,854,433
6,201,418
167,602,836
21,453,840
2,701,562,349
28,459,033
1,959,481,927
494,880,888
93,135,401
5,882,425,999
484,559,422
638,814,135
589,221,187
66,332,143
142,534,070

110,755,746

2016-2017
Authorized
$

55,429,614
6,205,000
180,371,000
21,677,000
2,742,160,000
28,459,033
1,952,218,000
494,330,980
93,345,215
5,991,044,000
496,831,000
629,325,000
595,772,231
67,150,000
144,199,000
12,086,109
56,700,000

Unexpended
$
2,575,181
3,582
12,768,164
223,160
40,597,651
(7,263,927)
(549,908)
209,814
108,618,001
12,271,578
(9,489,135)
6,551,044
817,857
1,664,930
12,086,109
(54,055,746)

13,440,274,827

13,567,303,182

127,028,355

Debt Servicing expenses included in the Department of Finance expenses are net of cost recoveries and interest income of debt servicing costs on

self-supporting debt from Crown Corporations and Government Agencies in the amount of $1,276,909,714 as at March 31, 2017 (2016 - $1,185,348,217).

NOTE 2:

Certain of the 2015-2016 figures have been reclassified to be consistent with the 2016-2017 presentation.
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EXPENSE TYPES

PERSONNEL SERVICES

All salaries and wages paid to Ministers, contract
employees and regular civil servants are
included in this category. Also included are
indemnities, living and constituency allowances
paid to M.LA’s, overtime, remoteness
allowances, shift premiums and other negotiated
payments for all employees. The employer
portion of mandatory contributions to El, CPP,
Worker's Compensation, etc. are considered as
personnel costs and are reported under this
category.

GRANTS/TRANSFER PAYMENTS

Payments to  various individuals and
organizations in support of various projects and
programs including bursaries, cultural activities,
charitable organizations, etc. Grants, other than
for capital purposes, and transfer payments to
other governments and government agencies are
reported in this category.

TRANSPORTATION

Payments made for the transportation of
government personnel, including Ministers and
M.L.A’s, other citizens and commodities are
included in this category. Other costs of traveling
such as accommodation and meals are recorded
separately under the “Other Operating” category.

COMMUNICATION

The cost of telephones, postage, advertising and
other costs related to the dissemination of
information to the public or to the employees of
the government are included in this category.

15

SUPPLIES AND SERVICES

The cost of goods and services that are used in
the current operations of the government such as
construction materials, office supplies, utilities,
leased space, rental of equipment and vehicles
and the payment to outside professional persons
and firms are included in this category.

DEBT SERVICING

This includes the costs related to the public debt
of the province such as debt redemptions,
premiums, interest, and other charges by banks
for exchange and other services, etc.

MINOR CAPITAL

This category includes costs for the purchase,
construction or improvement of capital assets
that are under the established capitalization
dollar threshold established for each asset class.

AMORTIZATION

Amortization is the process of allocating the cost
of a tangible capital asset, less its residual value,
over its estimated useful life in order to match
costs with the revenue or public services that
they help generate.

OTHER OPERATING

The payments for accommodation and meals for
civil servants while on government business are
shown under this classification. Also included
are computer related expenses, insurance,
employer educational assistance and other costs
that cannot be included in another category.

SOCIAL ASSISTANCE AND RELATED COSTS

This classification represents expenditures for
goods, services and/or benefits provided to
citizens for their direct consumption as social
assistance provisions.
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Department

Legislative Assembly..................
Executive Council............c.ccvee...
Agriculture........ccoocveeeieiiiiieeee,

Civil Service Commission

Education and Training...............
Employee Pensions and Other Costs

Families

Finance.......cccccoovvveviieciiiiece,
Growth, Enterprise and Trade
Health, Seniors and Active Living
Indigenous and Municipal Relations

Infrastructure

JUSHICE. ..
Sport, Culture and Heritage
Sustainable Development
Enabling Appropriations..............
Other Appropriations...................

Recoveries.........ccccccceiiii.
Net Expense TYpeS.......cccceevvvneen.

Comparison of Expense Types

SUMMARY OF EXPENSE BY DEPARTMENT

AND EXPENSE TYPE
For the Year Ended March 31, 2017

($ thousands)
Grants/ Supplies
Personnel Transfer and
Services Payments Transportation Communication  Services
............................................ 34,021 - 350 1,347 10,453
............................................ 4,573 1,300 60 121 74
............................................ 27,868 136,989 1,222 678 3,622
............................................ 21,082 - 121 464 1,123
............................................ 63,364 2,342,211 1,359 2,211 10,798
..................................... 201,285 - - - 5,906
187,875 449,171 3,602 3,341 12,835
85,265 358,501 1,402 3,993 82,354
32,288 43,017 1,126 1,054 14,374
113,128 23,729 5,225 2,638 40,689
28,586 503,965 845 622 1,918
146,149 151 13,166 3,338 121,042
371,513 6,516 8,061 3,487 170,777
17,130 48,198 185 898 1,030
....................................................... 88,026 8,792 5,169 2,475 20,351
........................................... 4,962 1,677 6,806 508 6,294
1,427,115 3,924,217 48,699 27,175 503,640
........................................... (208,370) (421,363) (1,657) (1,796) (52,972)
........................................... 1,218,745 3,502,854 47,042 25,379 450,668
1,218,745 3,502,854 47,042 25,379 450,668
1,204,312 3,495,778 54,800 26,479 445,700
14,433 7,076 (7,758) (1,100) 4,968
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SUMMARY OF EXPENSE BY DEPARTMENT
AND EXPENSE TYPE

Social Recoveries
Debt Other Assistance Minor Total Into Net
Servicing Operating Related Capital Amortization  Expenses  Appropriations Expenses
1 6,117 - 566 - 52,855 - 52,855
- 55 - 18 - 6,201 - 6,201
65 1,947 - 351 254 172,996 (5,393) 167,603
- 1,089 - 71 - 23,950 (2,496) 21,454
1,829 201,003 102,648 295 450 2,726,168 (24,606) 2,701,562
- 10 - - - 207,201 (178,742) 28,459
1,862 16,734 1,281,538 1,003 1,882 1,959,843 (361) 1,959,482
249,124 128,590 - 6,342 31,442 947,013 (452,132) 494,881
4,055 3,417 - 150 1,648 101,129 (7,994) 93,135
533 5,691,185 - 1,703 3,596 5,882,426 - 5,882,426
41 18,810 - 82 45 554,914 (70,354) 484,560
193,428 35,011 - 2,043 209,594 723,922 (85,108) 638,814
2,257 34,561 1 718 2,693 600,584 (11,363) 589,221
18 1,573 - 111 52 69,195 (2,863) 66,332
6,918 10,392 - 547 7,167 149,837 (7,303) 142,534
1 83,679 - 1,449 5,380 110,756 - 110,756
460,132 6,234,173 1,384,187 15,449 264,203 14,288,990 (848,715) 13,440,275
(11,443) (119,497) (12,494) (3,538) (15,585) (848,715) 848,715 -
448,689 6,114,676 1,371,693 11,911 248,618 13,440,275 - 13,440,275
448,689 6,114,676 1,371,693 11,911 248,618 13,440,275 - 13,440,275
416,466 5,910,849 1,292,393 17,039 229,789 13,093,605 - 13,093,605
32,223 203,827 79,300 (5,128) 18,829 346,670 - 346,670
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SUMMARY OF DEPARTMENTAL APPROPRIATIONS AND EXPENSES

PART A - OPERATING EXPENSE

For the Year Ended March 31, 2017

Amount Amount Unexpended
Department Authorized Expended Balance
$ $ $

Legislative ASSEMDBIY........ccoiiiiiiiiieee e 55,429,614 52,854,433 2,575,181
EXECULIVE COUNCIl...uuuniiiiiiiiieec e, 6,205,000 6,201,418 3,582
AGFCUIUIE. ...ttt e e e e e e e e e e e nneees 180,371,000 167,602,836 12,768,164
Civil Service Commission 21,677,000 21,453,840 223,160
Education and Training..........ccccceeevvvcvvvenneenn. 2,742,160,000 2,701,562,349 40,597,651
Employee Pensions and Other COStS............ococvviieeeeeiiiiiiieeeeen, 28,459,033 28,459,033 -
FaMIlI@S. ..o 1,952,218,000 1,959,481,927 (7,263,927)
FINANCE ..t 494,330,980 494,880,888 (549,908)
Growth, Enterprise and Trade...........ccccuvvvveeeeeiiiiiieeee e 93,345,215 93,135,401 209,814
Health, Seniors and Active LiViNg.........cccceevviiviiieeeeeiiiiiiieeee e, 5,991,044,000 5,882,425,999 108,618,001
Indigenous and Municipal Relations..........ccccccoccvvvveeeeeiiiiiiieennn, 496,831,000 484,559,422 12,271,578
101 1 (U o (0 [T 629,325,000 638,814,135 (9,489,135)
L1 o7 PP 595,772,231 589,221,187 6,551,044
Sport, Culture and Heritage............uevveeeeiiciiieiie e eeeiiiee e 67,150,000 66,332,143 817,857
Sustainable DeVeloOpMENT..........cccevviiiiiiiieee e 144,199,000 142,534,070 1,664,930
Enabling APPropriationsS...........cccuurireeeeeiiiiieeee e e siiieeeee e e 12,086,109 - 12,086,109
Other APPropriations. ..........cccecvireereeeeseiiiieeeeeeessirereaee e s sneeeneeeas 56,700,000 110,755,746 (54,055,746)
TOTAL EXPENSES 13,567,303,182 13,440,274,827 127,028,355

RECONCILIATION WITH THE APPROPRIATION ACT, 2016, SPECIAL WARRANTS, ETC.

Departmental Appropriations authorized by:

"The Appropriation ACt 2016"..........ccccvveeeeiiiiiiieee e $ 13,276,317,000
General Statutory Appropriations.............cevecvvrrereeesiiiiieeeeeenninns 261,313,000
2016 Printed Estimates of EXPENSES........cccccveeevviiivvieeeeeeeeiinieen, 13,537,630,000
Amount Authorized by Special Warrants............ccccccvveeeeeiivenennnn. 47,865,000

13,585,495,000
Members and Speakers Indemnities and Allowances................. (2,277,386)
[D1=T o] ST T Y ol o Vo TSRS (15,914,432)

$ 13,567,303,182
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EXPENSE SUMMARY BY APPROPRIATION

NOTE: Details by department are shown on the following pages. Main estimate authority transfers in accordance with section 33 of the
Financial Administration Act, are delineated as follows:

*  Main Estimate Authority transferred from XXVI-1, Canada-Manitoba Enabling Vote, to various departmental appropriations.

**  Main Estimate Authority transferred from XXVI-2, Internal Service Adjustments, to various departmental appropriations.

Department and Appropriations Amount Amount Unexpended
Authorized Expended Balance
$ $ $

LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY (I)

1. Indemnities (Statutory)

Main EStimate.............cooovviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeeeeeeeeeeeeea 5,393,853
Personnel SEIVICES.......c.uuveiiiiiiieieee e, 5,393,853
Net 5,393,853 5,393,853

2. Retirement Provisions (Statutory)

Main Estimate............. 2,918,188

Personnel Services 2,853,681

SUPPIIES AN SEIVICES....coieeiieiiiiiie e 64,507

Net 2,918,188 2,918,188
3. Members' Expenses (Statutory)

Main EStIMALE.......uuuiiiiiiiiiie e 9,567,866

Personnel ServiCes.........cccvvviiiiiiiiee e, 5,230,183

COMMUNICALION. ......cevviieiieeieiiee e e e e e e e s e eaaaaaan, 286,731

Other OPerating..........uuveeeeeiiiiiiiiiee e e e e e e e e 4,050,952

Net 9,567,866 9,567,866
4. Election Financing (Statutory)

Main Estimate............. 11,155,707

Personnel Services 1,338,736

TranSPOITAtiON........ueeiiiee i 101,376

COMMUNICALION. ......ccvviiieiieeieiiee e e e et e s e eaaaaaans 430,376

SUpPliesS and SErVICES. ......cooviuiiiiiiie e 8,040,639

Other OPErating..........uuvvveeeiiiiiiiiieeeesssiiere e e e e ssareeaeeeennens 1,244,580

Net 11,155,707 11,155,707
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Department and Appropriations Amount Amount Unexpended
Authorized Expended Balance
$ $ $

5. Other Assembly Expenditures

Main EStIMAate........covviiiiiiiiiiiiiicc e 10,105,000

Personnel SEIVICES.......ocuueeiiiiiiieieee e, 7,184,002

TranSPOITAtiON........ueeiiiee et 110,380

COMMUNICALION.......ccvviiieiieeieiiie e e e e e s e eaaaaaan, 386,427

SUPPlieS and SErVICES. ......covviuiiiiiiie e 665,500

DEbBt SEIVICING.......uvviiieeee it 1,042

Other OPerating..........uvveeeeeiiiiiiieiee e e e e e e 463,400

Minor Capital 247,570

Net 10,105,000 9,058,321 1,046,679
6. Office of the Auditor General

Main EStIMALE.......uuviiiiiiiiiiie e 7,119,000

Personnel SErVICES........ccceoiiiiiiiiiiiiiiee e 5,101,780

TranSPOTALION.......uuviiieeeeieciiiee e e e e st e e e e e e e e e e e e e enaees 35,662

COMMUNICALION. .....ceiiiiiieiiiie e, 74,985

SUPPlIES ANA SEIVICES....cccceiieiiiiiie et 680,994

Debt SErVICING.......uvveiiieeiiiiieee e 170

Other OPErating..........uuvvveeeiiiiiiieieeeesssiieree e e e ssrirereeeeannens 105,650

MINOF Capital........cceeiiiiiiiiiiee e 282,595

Net 7,119,000 6,281,836 837,164
7. Office of the Ombudsman

Main EStIMAte........ccovviiiiiiiiiiiiie e 3,550,000

Personnel SEIVICES.......ocuueeiiiiiiieieee e, 2,721,200

TranSPOITAtiON........uveiiie et 10,579

COMMUNICALION. ......cevviieieeeieiiee e e e e e e e eaaaaaan, 61,298

SUpplies and SErVICES. ......cooviiiiiiiieiiiiieeee e 308,755

(D= o] BST=T AV, o] o Vo PSR 25

Other OPerating..........uvvveeeeiiiiiiieiee e iiiieeee e e e e e 67,304

MINOF Capital.......ccceeiiiiiiiiiiee e e 19,909

Net 3,550,000 3,189,070 360,930
8. Office of the Chief Electoral Officer

Main Estimate................. 1,606,000

Main Estimate Transfer*

Personnel SEIVICES.......ccuuueeiiiiiiieieee e, 1,233,063

TranSPOITAtiON........uueiiiee e 31,336

COMMUNICALION. ......cevviieiieeiiiiee e e et e s e eaaaaaan, 32,225

SUpPlieS and SErVICES.......cooviiiiiieie e 214,198

Other OPErating..........uvvveeeeiiiiiiieieeeesisiieeee e e e ssirareeaeeesnnees 76,926

Net 1,606,000 1,587,748 18,252
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Department and Appropriations

9. Office of the Children's Advocate

Main EStIMAate........covviiiiiiiiiiiiiicc e
Personnel SErviCes.........cveiiiiiiiiiiee e,
TranSPOITAtiON........ueeiiiee et
COMMUNICALION. .. .uviiieee et e e et e e e e e e e eennaees
SUPPlieS and SErVICES. ......covviuiiiiiiie e
Other OPErating..........uvvveeeeiiiiiiiiieeeeeisiieree e e s sserreeeeeesnnees
MINOF Capital........cceeiiiiiiiiiiiee e
Net

Department Total

Expense Summary by Category

Main EStMALe........cccvviiiiee et
Personnel SErVICES........cccevviiiiiiiiiciiic e
TranSPOTALION.......uuviiieeee it e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e ennees
COMMUNICALION. .....eeeiiiiieiiiie e,
SUPPlIES ANA SEIVICES....coieeiiceiiiiiee e e e
(D= o] BRST=T AV ol oo TSR
Other OPErating..........uvvvveeeiiiiiiiiieeeeesiiieree e e e esenreeeeeeennees
Minor Capital

EXECUTIVE COUNCIL (II)

1. General Administration

Main EStMALe........cccvviiiiee e
Main Estimate Transfer*...........ccoccoviiiiniiienic e
Main Estimate Transfer*..........ccccccceeiiiviiiieee e
Personnel Services............
Grants/Transfer Payments
TranSPOITAtiON........ueeiiiee i
Communication..............

Supplies and Services
(D= o] BST=T AV, o] o Vo PSR
Other OPerating..........uvvveeeeiiiiiieiee e iiieeee e e e e
MINOF Capital.......cceeeeiiiiiiiiiee e
Net

Department Total
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Amount Amount Unexpended
Authorized Expended Balance
$ $ $
4,014,000
2,964,746
61,088
73,700
477,920
108,339
16,051
4,014,000 3,701,844 312,156
55,429,614 52,854,433 2,575,181
55,429,614
34,021,244
350,421
1,345,742
10,452,513
1,237
6,117,151
566,125
55,429,614 52,854,433 2,575,181
4,107,000
1,200,000
898,000
4,572,925
1,300,000
59,554
122,503
73,585
148
54,914
17,789
6,205,000 6,201,418 3,682
6,205,000 6,201,418 3,682
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Department and Appropriations Amount Amount Unexpended
Authorized Expended Balance
$ $ $

Expense Summary by Category

Main EStIMAate........covviiiiiiiiiiiiiicc e 4,107,000

Main Estimate Transfert.......cccooveivviiiiiiei e, 1,200,000

Main Estimate Transfert**.............ccccoieiiiie s 898,000

Personnel SEIVICES.......ccuueeiiiiiiiieee e, 4,572,925

Grants/Transfer Payments..........coooovvvveiiiiiiiiiiee i, 1,300,000

TranSPOTALION. ... .uuviiieeeeieciieee e e e e et e e e e e e e e e e e e 59,554

COMMUNICALION. .....eiiiiiiieiiiie e, 122,503

Supplies and Services 73,585

Debt SErVICING.......uvveiiieeiiiiieee e 148

Other OPErating..........uvvveeeeiiiiiiiiieeeessiiiere e e e e ssiarereeeeennees 54,914

MINOF Capital........cceeiiiiiiiiiiieee e 17,789

6,205,000 6,201,418 3,582

AGRICULTURE (l1)
1. Administration and Finance

Main EStIMALE.......uuuiiiiiiiiiie e 4,402,000

Personnel SErVICES........ccceoiiiiiiiiiiiiiiee e 2,824,071

TranSPOTALION.......uuviiieeee it e e e e eeeeeee e e e e e e e e e e e enaees 74,763

Communication.............. 84,529

Supplies and Services 101,128

(D= o] BRST=T AV ol oo T PSSR 19

Other OPErating..........uuvvveeeiiiiiiieieeeesssiieree e e e ssrirereeeeannens 245,884

MINOF Capital........cceeiiiiiiiiiiiee e 13,166

Net 4,402,000 3,343,560 1,058,440
2. Policy and Agri-Innovation

Main EStIMAate........ccovviiiiiiiiiiiiiii e 10,403,000

Personnel SEIVICES.......ccuueeiiiiiiieieee e, 3,415,267

Grants/Transfer Payments.... 4,698,337

TranSPOTALION.......uuveiieeeeiiciieeee e e e eesreee e e e e e eree e e e e e e ennees 119,632

COMMUNICALION. .....eiiiiiiieiiiie e, 69,594

Supplies and Services 205,106

Other OPerating..........uvveeeeeiiiiiiiiiee e e e eserreea e e e 209,320

MINOF Capital........ccceeiiiiiiiiiee e e e 8,517

Net 10,403,000 8,725,773 1,677,227
3. Risk Management, Credit and Income Support Programs

Main EStIMALE.......uuuiiiiiiiiiiie e 134,729,000

Grants/Transfer Payments..........coocvvvviveeiiiiiiiieeeeseiiieen, 128,875,958

Recoveries into Appropriation...........ccccueeeeeeveeuveeeeeeesesnnnen (596,895)

Net 134,729,000 128,279,063 6,449,937
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Main Estimate...

Department and Appropriations

4. Agri-Industry Development and Advancement

Personnel SEIVICES..........uuvuuiiiiiiieiiiiieieeeeeeeieeeeeeeeeeeeaeeeeaaee,

Grants/Transfer

Transportation...

Communication.

PayMENtS.......ccoovierierreierieeieesieesieeenenen,

SUPPlIES AN SEIVICES....coieeiieiiiiiee e
Debt SErVICING.......uvveeiieeiiiieeeee e

Other Operating

Minor Capital.....

Recoveries into Appropriation............ccceeeeeeeveecuveeeeeeesssnennn

Net

5. Agri-Food

Main Estimate...

Personnel SErViCES..........uuvvviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieieiieiveeeveeeeaaaaeaaaaes

Grants/Transfer

Transportation...

Communication.

Payments..........coooiiiiiiii e,

SUpPlieS and SErVICES.......covviiiiiiiie e
(D= o] BRST=T AV, o] o Vo TSRS

Other Operating

Minor Capital.....

Recoveries into Appropriation...........cc..eeeeeerviiiieeeeeeeinnnnen

Net

Main Estimate...

6. Costs Related to Capital Assets

(D= o] BST=T AV, o] o Vo PSR

Amortization......

Net

Department Total

Main Estimate...

Expense Summary by Category

Personnel SErViCES..........uuvuviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieiiiiviiieeeeeeeaaaaeaeaaes

Grants/Transfer

Transportation...

Communication.

Payments..........coooiiiiiiiiii e,

SUpPliesS and SErVICES. ......cooviuiiiiiiie e
DEBt SEIVICING......uuvveieeeeeiiciee e

Other Operating
Minor Capital

Amortization......

Recoveries into Appropriation...........ccccveeeeeeveecveeeeeeesssnenen
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Amount
Authorized
$

21,673,000

Amount
Expended
$

15,870,203
1,005,467
799,289
282,065
3,083,581
76
1,022,491
305,625

(2,300,000)

Unexpended
Balance
$

21,673,000

20,068,797

1,604,203

8,836,000

5,758,321
2,409,414
228,317
242,163
231,650
17
468,911
23,648

(2,496,025)

8,836,000

6,866,416

1,969,584

328,000

64,919
254,308

328,000

319,227

8,773

180,371,000

167,602,836

12,768,164

180,371,000

27,867,862
136,989,176
1,222,001
678,351
3,621,465
65,031
1,946,606
350,956
254,308

(5,392,920)

180,371,000

167,602,836

12,768,164
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Department and Appropriations Amount Amount Unexpended
Authorized Expended Balance
$ $ $

CIVIL SERVICE COMMISSION (XVII)

1. Civil Service Commission

Main EStMAate........ccovviiiiieiiiiie e 21,677,000

Personnel SEIVICES.......ccuueeiiiiiiiieee e, 21,082,020

TranSPOITAtiON........ueeiiiee i 121,462

COMMUNICALION. ......cevviieeieeiiiiee e e e e et e s e eaaaaaan, 463,336

SUPPlieS and SErVICES.......covviiiiiiiiieie e 1,122,476

Debt Servicing.......cccccvveeeeiicnnnns 3

Other Operating 1,089,171

MINOF Capital.......ccceeiiiiiiiiiiee e e 71,150

Recoveries into Appropriation...........cc.eeeeeevviieieeeeeeeenninnee (2,495,778)

Net 21,677,000 21,453,840 223,160
Department Total 21,677,000 21,453,840 223,160
Expense Summary by Category

Main EStIMALE.......uuuiiiiiiiiiie e 21,677,000

Personnel SErviCes.........cccvvviiiiiiiee e, 21,082,020

TranSPOTALION.......uuviiieeee it e e e e eeeeeee e e e e e e e e e e e enaees 121,462

Communication.............. 463,336

Supplies and Services 1,122,476

(D= o] BRST=T AV ol oo T PSSR 3

Other OPErating..........uuvvveeeiiiiiiieieeeesssiieree e e e ssrirereeeeannens 1,089,171

MINOF Capital........cceeiiiiiiiiiiiee e 71,150

Recoveries into Appropriation...........ccceeeeeeeeeecuieeeeeeesssnenen (2,495,778)

21,677,000 21,453,840 223,160
EDUCATION AND TRAINING (XVI)
1. Administration and Finance

Main EStMAaLe........ccovvviiieeiiiii e 2,582,000

Main Estimate Transfer**... 250,000

Personnel ServiCes.........cccvvviiiiiiiee e, 2,490,625

TranSPOTALION........uviiieeee et e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e eneees 49,829

COMMUNICALION. ...eviiiie e e 69,381

SUPPIIES ANA SEIVICES....coieeiieiiieiiee et 60,206

Debt SErVICING.......uveeeiieeiiiieeee e 70

Other OPErating..........uvvveeeeiiiiiiieieeeesisiieeee e e e ssirareeaeeesnnees 131,410

MINOF Capital........cceeiiiiiiiiiiee e 9,614

Net 2,832,000 2,811,135 20,865
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2. School Programs

Main EStIMAate........covviiiiiiiiiiiiiicc e
Personnel SErviCes.........cveiiiiiiiiiiee e,
Grants/Transfer Payments..........cooovvvvveiiiiiiiiieeeeieiiieen,
TranSPOTALION.......uuviiieeee it e e e e et e e e e e e e e e e e e ennees
COMMUNICALION. .....eeiiiiiieiiiie e,
SUPPlIES AN SEIVICES....coieeiieiiiiiee e
Debt SErVICING.......uvveeiieeiiiieeeee e
Other Operating
Social Assistance Related
MINOF Capital.......ccceeiiiiiiiiiiee e e
Net

3. Bureau de I'éducation frangaise

Main EStMALe........cccvviiiiee et
Personnel SErVICES........cccevviiiiiiiiiciiic e
Grants/Transfer Payments............ccccvveeeeiiiiiiineee e,
TranSPOTAtiON........ueeiiie e
COMMUNICALION. .. .uviiiee ettt e e et e e e e e e e e e e eaenneees
SUpPlieS and SErVICES.......covviiiiiiiie e
(D= o] BRST=T AV, o] o Vo TSRS
Other Operating
MINOF Capital.......ccceeiiiiiiiiiiee e e e
Net

4. Education and School Tax Credits

Main EStMALe........cccvviiiiee i
Grants/Transfer Payments..........cooovvvvveeeiiiiiiiieeeeseiiieen,
Net

5. Support to Schools

Main EStIMAate........covviiiiiiiiiiiiiic e
Special Warrant
Personnel SErVICES........ccccvviiiiiiiiii e
Grants/Transfer Payments....
TranSPOITAtiON........uueiiiee e
COMMUNICALION. ....uviiiei e ettt e e e e e e e e e e e e e eraneees
SUpPlieS and SErVICES.......cooviiiiiieie e
(D= o] BST=T AV, o] o Vo PSR
Other OPerating..........uvvveeeeiiiiiieiee e iiieeee e e e e
MINOF Capital.......ccceeeiiiiiiiiiee e e e
Net
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Amount
Authorized
$

26,373,000

Amount
Expended
$

16,888,328
1,268,547
526,931
650,150
2,077,360
2,563
1,705,929
85,135
128,755

Unexpended
Balance
$

26,373,000

23,333,698

3,039,302

9,730,000

4,229,652
3,426,906
60,251
147,079
874,007
163
354,578
8,431

9,730,000

9,101,067

628,933

335,361,000

328,354,244

335,361,000

328,354,244

7,006,756

1,353,507,000
722,000

3,776,334
1,156,989,744
63,563
95,139
3,248,473
2,636
189,710,291
15,674

1,354,229,000

1,353,901,854

327,146




PROVINCE OF MANITOBA PUBLIC ACCOUNTS 2016-17

Department and Appropriations

6. Advanced and Adult Learning

Main EStIMAate........covviiiiiiiiiiiiiicc e
Personnel SErVICES........cuuiiiiiieiiieieiee e
Grants/Transfer Payments..........cooovvvvveiiiiiiiiieeeeieiiieen,
TranSPOTALION.......uuviiieeee it e e e e et e e e e e e e e e e e e ennees
COMMUNICALION. .....eeiiiiiieiiiie e,
SUPPlIES AN SEIVICES....coieeiieiiiiiee e
Debt SErVICING.......uvveeiieeiiiieeeee e
Other Operating
MINOF Capital........cceeiiiiiiiiiiee e
Recoveries into Appropriation............ccceeeeeeeveecuveeeeeeesssnennn
Net

7. Workforce Training and Immigration Services

Main EStMALe........cccvviiiiee et
Main Estimate Transfer*...........ccoccviiiiniiiinic e
Special Warrant...........vuvveeeiieiiiiiee e ccsiiviee e e e ssiireee e e
Personnel SErVICES........ccceiviiiiiiiiiciic e
Grants/Transfer Payments............ccccvveeeeiiiiiiinee e,
TranSPOITAtiON........ueeiiiee i
COMMUNICALION. ....uviiiee et e e et e e e e e e e enaneees
Supplies and Services
DEbBt SEIVICING.......uvviiieeee it
Other OPerating..........uuveeeeeiiiiiiiiiee e e e e e e e e
MINOF Capital........cceeeiiiiiiiiiee e
Social Assistance Related..............cccocveiiiiiiiiniiiiiiiecs
Recoveries into Appropriation...........ccceeeeeeeeeecuieeeeeeesssnenen
Net

8. Children and Youth Services

Main EStMALe........cccvviiiiee et
Personnel Services.....
Grants/Transfer Payments
TranSPOITAtiON........ueeiiiee i
Communication..............

Supplies and Services
(D= o] BST=T AV, o] o Vo PSR
Other OPerating..........uvvveeeeiiiiiieiee e iiieeee e e e e
MINOF Capital.......cceeeeiiiiiiiiiee e
Social Assistance Related..............cccocvviiiiiiiiniiiiniiecs
Recoveries into Appropriation...........ccceeeeeeeveecieeeeeeessnnenen
Net
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Amount
Authorized
$

759,766,000

Amount
Expended
$

6,440,088
731,407,005
49,034
240,196
519,247
1,484,005
6,466,508
24,565

(4,843,238)

Unexpended
Balance
$

759,766,000

741,787,410

17,978,590

120,177,000
3,000,000
4,420,000

24,087,825
3,219,997
320,233
688,865
1,564,622
31,153
1,549,454
77,714
100,877,240

(12,494,000)

127,597,000

119,923,103

7,673,897

47,220,000

5,451,352
39,427,100
289,605
319,462
2,454,567
1,473
1,084,953
30,527
1,685,674

(7,268,899)

47,220,000

43,475,814

3,744,186
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9. Capital Funding
Main EStIMAate........covviiiiiiiiiiiiiicc e
Grants/Transfer Payments............cccovvveeeeiiiiiiineee e,
Net

10. Costs Related to Capital Assets
Main EStMALe........cccvviiiiee et
Debt SErVICING.......uvveeiieeiiiieeeee e
Amortization
Net

Department Total

Expense Summary by Category
Main EStIMAate........covviiiiiiiiiiiiiic e
Main Estimate Transfer ..........ccccccevviiiiiiie e
Main Estimate Transfer**............cccccovviiiniiiiniie e,
Special Warrant...........vevveeeiiiiiiiiiee e ccsiiire e e e s esivreeae e e
Personnel SErVICES........ccceoiiiiiiiiiiiiiiee e
Grants/Transfer Payments............ccccvvveeeiiiiiiineee e,
Transportation...................
Communication
SUpPliesS and SEIVICES. ......cooviuiiiiieieieiieee e
DEbBt SEIVICING......uuviiieeeee ittt
Other OPerating..........uvveeeeeiiiiiiieiee e iiiieeee e e e e e e
Social Assistance Related...........ccccccoveciiiveiiee e
MINOF Capital........ccceiiiiiiiiiiee e
AMOTtIZAtION......c..iiiiiie e
Recoveries into Appropriation...........cc..eeeeeevviiiiieeeeeeeinnnnen

EMPLOYEE PENSIONS AND OTHER COSTS (VI)

1. Employee Pensions and Other Costs

Main EStMALe........cccvviiiiee e
Main Estimate Transfer**............cccccoviiiniiieiniie e,
Personnel SErviCes.........veiiiiciiiiiee e,
SUpPlieS and SErVICES.......cooviiiiiieie e
Other OPErating..........uvvveeeeiiiiiiieieeeesisiieeee e e e ssirareeaeeesnnees
Recoveries into Appropriation...........cc..eeeveevviieiieeeeeeeinnnnen
Net

Department Total
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Amount Amount Unexpended
Authorized Expended Balance
$ $ $
78,117,000
78,117,000
78,117,000 78,117,000 -
935,000
306,688
450,336
935,000 757,024 177,976
2,742,160,000 2,701,562,349 40,597,651
2,733,768,000
3,000,000
250,000
5,142,000
63,364,204
2,342,210,543
1,359,446
2,210,272
10,798,482
1,828,751
201,003,123
102,648,049
295,280
450,336
(24,606,137)
2,742,160,000 2,701,562,349 40,597,651
14,735,000
13,724,033
201,284,955
5,906,102
10,000
(178,742,024)
28,459,033 28,459,033 -
28,459,033 28,459,033 -
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Department and Appropriations Amount Amount Unexpended
Authorized Expended Balance
$ $ $

Expense Summary by Category

Main EStIMAate........covviiiiiiiiiiiiiicc e 14,735,000

Main Estimate Transfers™.........cccccvvveeeieieiiiiiee e 13,724,033

Personnel SErVICES........ccccceiiiiiiiiiiiiiiee e 201,284,955

SUPPlIES ANA SEIVICES....coeeeiiiiiiieiee e 5,906,102

Other OPerating..........uuveeeeeiiiiiiieiee e e e e e e 10,000

Recoveries into Appropriation............cccueeeeeeeeecvveeeeeesssnenen (178,742,024)

28,459,033 28,459,033 -

FAMILIES (IX)

1. Administration and Finance

Main EStIMAate........ccovviiiiiiiiiiiiii e 7,839,000

Personnel SEIVICES.......c.uuveiiiiiiieieee e, 6,227,755

TranSPOTAtiON........ueeiiiee it 95,579

COMMUNICALION. ......cevviieeieeiiiiee e e e e et e s e eaaaaaan, 179,862

SUpplies and SErVICES. ......cooviiiiiiiieiiiiieeee e 548,918

DEbBt SEIVICING......uuviiieeeee ittt 167

Other OPerating..........uvveeeeeiiiiiiieiee e iiiieeee e e e e e e 602,273

MINOF Capital........cceeeiiiiiiiiiee e 131,889

Net 7,839,000 7,786,443 52,557

2. Community Service Delivery

Main EStIMALE.......uuuiiiiiiiiiie e 1,082,258,000

Special Warrant.........c..eeeveeiiiiiiiieee e 22,881,000

Personnel SEIVICES.......c.uuveiiiiiiieieee e, 127,088,450
Grants/Transfer Payments..........cooovvvvveeeiiiiiiiieeeeseiiieen, 13,548,303
TranSPOTALION........uviiieeee et e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e eneees 2,366,341
COMMUNICALION. ...t e et 2,597,798
SUPPlIES ANA SEIVICES....cocceiiiiiieiee e 4,910,844
Debt Servicing.......ccccccvvevviinnnnns 48,766
Other Operating 7,804,298
MINOF Capital........cceeiiiiiiiiiiee e 439,524
Social Assistance Related.......... 935,393,930
Recoveries into Appropriation (360,785)
Net 1,105,139,000 1,093,837,469 11,301,531
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3. Community Engagement and Corporate Services

Main EStimate.........cccoovviiiiiiiieiiie e
Special Warrant.........cccevveeeeiiiiviiiee e sssiiieeeee e
Personnel SErviCes.........cocccoviieiiiiic e
Grants/Transfer Payments............cccoceveeeiiiciiineeenn,
TransSPOrtation...........cceeeviiiiiieeeee e
COMMUNICALION. ....uuiiieeeiciiiiiice e e
Supplies and ServiCes.........oocvveeeeeeiiiiiiiieeee e

Debt Servicing.......cccccvveeeeiicnnnns
Other Operating

Social Assistance Related.............cccccovvveiiiiiiin,
MINOr Capital..........cooviiuiiiiieeiiiiiiiee e

Net

4. Child and Family Services

Main EStimate.........ccccoovviiiiiiiieiic e
Personnel Services........ccccccvevvecciiieeee e
Grants/Transfer Payments...........ccccvccveeeiiiiiiiennenn,
TranSPOrtatioN..........ceeeeeeiiciiiieeee e e eecieeee e e e eeereeeeens
COMMUNICALION. .....eeiiiiiiieiiiiie e
Supplies and SErVICES.........cccuveeeeeeeeiiiiieeeeee e

Debt Servicing....

Other Operating.........cccvvvveeeeiiiiiiiriee e seiirereeeeeeeeens
Social Assistance Related.............cccocvveiiiiicrnineene
MINOr Capital.........cceviiviiiieeeeeiiiiie e ssirere e

Net

5. Housing

Main EStIMate.........ccccvvviiieeee i e e eeiiiee e
Grants/Transfer Payments...........cccceecveeeiiniiiieeeenn,

Net

6. Costs Related to Capital Assets

Main Estimate............ccccoiii

Debt Servicing....

AMOItIZAtION. ...

Net

Department Total
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Amount Amount Unexpended
Authorized Expended Balance
$ $ $
224,451,000
1,712,000
12,989,681
165,590,033
520,212
211,369
1,725,552
1,430,813
5,049,688
36,285,577
358,160
226,163,000 224,161,085 2,001,915
483,699,000
41,569,313
142,965,631
619,341
351,641
5,649,409
18,221
3,278,063
309,858,937
72,929
483,699,000 504,383,485 (20,684,485)
127,067,000
127,067,000
127,067,000 127,067,000 -
2,311,000
364,025
1,882,420
2,311,000 2,246,445 64,555
1,952,218,000 1,959,481,927 (7,263,927)
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Department and Appropriations Amount Amount Unexpended
Authorized Expended Balance
$ $ $

Expense Summary by Category

Main EStIMAate........covviiiiiiiiiiiiiicc e 1,927,625,000

Special Warrant...........vvvveeeiieiiiiiiee e ccsiiiiee e e ssnreee e e 24,593,000

Personnel SErVICES........ccccceiiiiiiiiiiiiiiee e 187,875,199

Grants/Transfer Payments............ccccvvveeeeiiiiiiineee i, 449,170,967

TranSPOITAtiON........ueeiiiee i 3,601,473

COMMUNICALION. ......cevviieeieeiiiiee e e e e et e s e eaaaaaan, 3,340,670

SUPPlieS and SErVICES.......covviiiiiiiiieie e 12,834,723

Debt Servicing.......cccccvveeeeiicnnnns 1,861,992

Other Operating 16,734,322

Social Assistance Related.............ouuveeeiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeeeeeeees 1,281,538,444

MINOF Capital........cceeiiiiiiiiiiieee e 1,002,502

PN g o] (=1 1 o) o N 1,882,420

Recoveries into Appropriation...........cc..eeeeeevviieiieeeeeeeinineen (360,785)

1,952,218,000 1,959,481,927 (7,263,927)

FINANCE (VII)
1. Administration and Finance

Main EStIMALE.......uuveiiiiiiiiiiie e 5,164,000

Personnel Services 4,497,486

TranSPOTALION. ... .uuviiieeeeieciieee e e e e et e e e e e e e e e e e e 62,137

COMMUNICALION. .....eiiiiiiieiiiie e, 108,286

SUPPlIES AN SEIVICES....coiceiieiiieiee e 183,537

Debt SErVICING......uvveiiieeiiiiiee e 44

Other OPErating..........uvvvveeeiiiiiiiiieeeeesiiieree e e e esenreeeeeeennees 233,708

MINOF Capital........ccceiiiiiiiiiiee e 13,504

Net 5,164,000 5,098,702 65,298
2. Fiscal and Financial Management

Main EStIMAate........covviiiiiiiiiiiiiic e 30,904,703

Personnel Services 22,668,766

Grants/Transfer Payments..........coocvvvviveeiiiiiiiieeeeseiiieen, (900)

Transportation................... . 180,024

Communication 1,343,880

SUPPIIES ANA SEIVICES....coeeeiiiiiiiiie et 1,647,222

Debt SErVICING.......uveeeiieeiiiieeee e 33,401

Other OPErating..........uvvveeeeiiiiiiiiieeeesesiieree e e s ssiareeeeeesnnens 8,795,883

MINOK Capital........cceeiiiiiiiiiiee e 87,333

Recoveries into Appropriation...........ccceeeeeeeveecieeeeeeessnnenen (2,821,107)

Net 30,904,703 31,934,502 (1,029,799)
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Department and Appropriations Amount Amount Unexpended
Authorized Expended Balance
$ $ $

3. Treasury Board Secretariat

Main EStIMAate........covviiiiiiiiiiiiiicc e 3,692,000

Main Estimate Transfers™.........cccccvvveeeieieiiiiiee e 473,431

Personnel SErVICES........ccccceiiiiiiiiiiiiiiee e 3,104,318

TranSPOTALION.......uuviiieeee it e e e e et e e e e e e e e e e e e ennees 27,166

COMMUNICALION. .....eeiiiiiieiiiie e, 43,025

SUPPlIES AN SEIVICES....coieeiieiiiiiee e 821,399

Other OPerating..........uvveeeeeiiiiiiieiee e e e e e e 167,135

Minor Capital 1,622

Net 4,165,431 4,164,665 766
4. Priorities and Planning

Main EStIMALE.......uuviiiiiiiiiiie e 1,625,000

Main Estimate Transfer**............cccccoviiiniieniie e, 230,982

Personnel SEIVICES.......c.uuveiiiiiiieieee e, 1,603,618

TranSPOTAtiON........ueeiiiee it 38,439

COMMUNICALION. ......cevviieeieeiiiiee e e e e et e s e eaaaaaan, 34,636

SUpplies and SErVICES. ......cooviiiiiiiieiiiiieeee e 103,278

Other OPErating..........uuvvveeeiiiiiiieieeeesssiieree e e e ssrirereeeeannens 70,893

MINOF Capital........cceeiiiiiiiiiiee e 5,118

Net 1,855,982 1,855,982 -
5. Intergovernmental Affairs

Main EStIMAte........ccovviiiiiiiiiiiiie e 2,511,297

Personnel SEIVICES.......ocuueeiiiiiiieieee e, 1,692,462

TranSPOITAtiON........uveiiie et 55,648

COMMUNICALION. ......cevviieieeeieiiee e e e e e e e eaaaaaan, 36,312

SUpplies and SErVICES. ......cooviiiiiiiieiiiiieeee e 129,971

(D= o] BST=T AV, o] o Vo PSR 412

Other OPerating..........uvvveeeeiiiiiiieiee e iiiieeee e e e e e 26,188,121

MINOF Capital.......ccceeiiiiiiiiiiee e e 21,899

Recoveries into Appropriation (25,970,444)

Net 2,511,297 2,154,381 356,916
6. Central Services

Main EStIMAate........covviiiiiiiiiiiiiic e 147,479,000

Personnel SEIVICES.......ccuuueeiiiiiiieieee e, 51,690,415

Grants/Transfer Payments..........cooovvvvveeeiiniiiiiiee i, 1,567,306

TranSPOTALION.......uvviiieeeeeiciiiee e e e e eereee e e e e e erre e e e e e e e 1,021,594

COMMUNICALION. .....eeiiiiiieiiiie e, 2,240,865

SUPPIIES ANA SEIVICES....ccieeiieiiiiiee e 78,443,847

(D= o] SRST=T AV ol oo T PRSP 948

Other OPErating..........uuvvveeeiiiiiiiiieeeesssiiere e e e e ssareeaeeeennens 93,097,808

MINOK Capital........cceeiiiiiiiiiiee e 6,212,572

Recoveries into Appropriation (87,619,081)

Net 147,479,000 146,656,274 822,726
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Department and Appropriations Amount Amount Unexpended
Authorized Expended Balance
$ $ $
7. Costs Related to Capital Assets
Main EStIMAate........covviiiiiiiiiiiiiicc e 69,280,000
DEbt SEIVICING......uuvviieieee it 36,275,292
AMOTTIZAION. ...ttt 31,442,384
Net 69,280,000 67,717,676 1,562,324

8. Net Tax Credit Payments
Main EStIMAate........ccovviiiiiiiiiiii e 18,885,000

Grants/Transfer Payments... 356,934,267

Recoveries into Appropriation (335,721,128)

Net 18,885,000 21,213,139 (2,328,139)
9. Public Debt (Statutory)

Main EStMALe........ccciviiiieeiiiiee e 214,085,567

Personnel SEIVICES.......c.uuveiiiiiiieieee e, 7,765

TranSPOTAtiON........ueeiiiee it 17,325

COMMUNICALION. ......cevviieeieeiiiiee e e e e et e s e eaaaaaan, 186,151

SUpplies and SErVICES. ......cooviiiiiiiieiiiiieeee e 1,024,234

DEbBt SEIVICING......uuviiieeeee ittt 212,813,685

Other OPerating..........uvveeeeeiiiiiiieiee e iiiieeee e e e e e e 36,407

Net 214,085,567 214,085,567 -
Departmental Total 494,330,980 494,880,888 (549,908)
Expense Summary by Category

Main EStIMALE.......uuuiiiiiiiiiiie e 493,626,567

Main Estimate Transfer............ccccooiiiiiiieinnnie e, 704,413

Personnel SEIVICES.......ccuuueeiiiiiiieieee e, 85,264,830

Grants/Transfer Payments..........coocvvvvveeiiiiiiiiieeeeseiiieen, 358,500,673

TranSPOTALION.......uuviiieeeeieciiiee e e e e st e e e e e e e e e e e e e enaees 1,402,333

Communication.............. 3,993,155

Supplies and Services 82,353,488

Debt SErVICING.....c.uuveiiieeiiiiiiee e 249,123,782

Other Operating 128,589,955

MINOF Capital........cceeiiiiiiiiiiee e 6,342,048

PN g o] (=1 1 o] o N 31,442,384

Recoveries into Appropriation...........cc.eeeeeerviieieeeeeeeeinineen (452,131,760)

494,330,980 494,880,888 (549,908)
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Department and Appropriations Amount Amount Unexpended
Authorized Expended Balance
$ $ $

GROWTH, ENTERPRISE AND TRADE (X)
1. Administration and Finance

Main EStIMAte........ccovviiiiiiiiiiiiie e 4,185,000

Main Estimate TransSfers™.........cccccvvveeeiiiiiiiiiee e 438,871

Personnel SErVICES........cccevviiiiiiiiiiiiie e 3,969,179

TranSPOTALION. ... .uuviiieeeeieciieee e e e e et e e e e e e e e e e e e 57,466

COMMUNICALION. .....eiiiiiiieiiiie e, 97,999

Supplies and Services 249,352

Debt SErVICING.......uvveiiieeiiiiieee e 101

Other OPErating..........uvvveeeeiiiiiiiiieeeessiiiere e e e e ssiarereeeeennees 212,754

MINOF Capital........cceeiiiiiiiiiiieee e 17,170

Net 4,623,871 4,604,021 19,850
2. Business Services

Main EStIMAate........covviiiiiiiiiiiiiic e 29,174,000

Personnel SEIVICES.......c.uueeiiiiiiieieeee e 3,129,826

Grants/Transfer Payments..........cooovvvvveeiiiiiiiiiieee e, 26,677,472

TranSPOTALION........uviiieeee et e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e eneees 41,545

COMMUNICALION. .....eeiiiiiieiiiie e, 97,264

SUPPIIES AN SEIVICES....ciiieiiiiiiiieee e e 211,992

Debt Servicing.... 3,261,649

Other OPErating..........uvvvveeeiiiiiiieieeeeessiieree e e e ssrarereeeeennees 295,708

MINOF Capital........cceeiiiiiiiiiiee e 12,210

Recoveries into Appropriation...........ccceeeeeeeveecieeeeeeesssnenen (4,864,378)

Net 29,174,000 28,863,288 310,712
3. Labour Programs

Main EStIMALE.......uvuiiiiiiiiiiiee e 16,691,000

Personnel SErVICES........ccceoiiiiiiiiiiiiiiee e 12,060,399

Grants/Transfer Payments............ccccvvveeeeiiiiiiinee e, 75,000

Transportation...........cccc....... 368,566

Communication 268,883

SUpPlieS and SEIVICES. ......coviiuiiiiiiie e 734,909

Debt Servicing.... 68

Other OPerating..........uvveeeeeiiiiiiiiiee e e e eserreea e e e 795,952

MINOF Capital........ccceeiiiiiiiiiee e e e 28,771

Net 16,691,000 14,332,548 2,358,452




PROVINCE OF MANITOBA PUBLIC ACCOUNTS 2016-17

Department and Appropriations Amount Amount Unexpended
Authorized Expended Balance
$ $ $

4. Trade and Tourism

Main EStIMAate........covviiiiiiiiiiiiiicc e 15,121,000

Personnel SEIVICES.......ocuueeiiiiiiieieee e, 3,216,462

Grants/Transfer Payments..........cooovvvvveiiiiiiiiieeeeieiiieen, 11,649,156

TranSPOTALION.......uuviiieeee it e e e e et e e e e e e e e e e e e ennees 172,682

COMMUNICALION. .....eeiiiiiieiiiie e, 317,061

SUPPlIES AN SEIVICES....coieeiieiiiiiee e 662,691

Debt SErVICING.......uvveeiieeiiiieeeee e 1,266

Other Operating 464,609

MINOF Capital........cceeiiiiiiiiiiee e 1,969

Recoveries into Appropriation............ccceeeeeeeveecuveeeeeeesssnennn (1,500,000)

Net 15,121,000 14,985,896 135,104
5. Community and Economic Growth

Main EStIMALE.......uuveiiiiiiiiiiie e 4,388,000

Special Warrant.........c..eeveeeeiiiiiiieee e 1,432,000

Personnel SEIVICES.......c.uueeiiiiiiieieeee e 2,252,828

Grants/Transfer Payments..........cooovvvvveeiiiiiiiiiieee e, 4,614,992

TranSPOTALION........uviiieeee et e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e eneees 90,568

COMMUNICALION. .....eeiiiiiieiiiie e, 63,273

SUPPIIES AN SEIVICES....ciiieiiiiiiiieee e e 32,564

Other Operating 204,141

MINOF Capital.......ccceeiiiiiiiiiiee e e e 1,171

Recoveries into Appropriation...........cc..eeeeeerviiiieeeeeeeinnnnen (1,629,464)

Net 5,820,000 5,630,073 189,927
6. Resource Development

Main EStIMAate........covviiiiiiiiiiiiiic e 10,691,000

Main Estimate Transfers™*...........coveeeviiiiiiiiiiie e 326,344

Special Warrant.........c..eeeveeiiiiiiiieee e 8,555,000

Personnel SEIVICES.......ccuueeiiiiiiieieee e, 7,659,279

Transportation............. 395,457

Communication 210,102

SUpPlieS and SEIVICES. ......coviiuiiiiiiie e 12,482,280

Debt Servicing.... 97,597

Other OPerating..........uvveeeeeiiiiiiiiiee e e e eserreea e e e 1,443,759

MINOF Capital........ccceeiiiiiiiiiee e e e 88,642

Net 19,572,344 22,377,116 (2,804,772)
7. Costs Related to Capital Assets

Main EStIMALE.......uuuiiiiiiiiiiie e 2,343,000

AMOITIZALION. ...ttt 1,648,306

DEBt SEIVICING......uuvveieeeeeiiciee e 694,153

Net 2,343,000 2,342,459 541
Department Total 93,345,215 93,135,401 209,814
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Department and Appropriations

Expense Summary by Category

Main EStIMAate........covviiiiiiiiiiiiiicc e
Main Estimate Transfer...........ccccccovviiiiee e,
Special Warrant...........eeeveeiiiiiiiieee e
Personnel SErviCes.........veiiiiciiiiiee e,
Grants/Transfer Payments..........coooovvvveiiiiiiiiiiee i,
TranSPOTALION. ... .uuviiieeeeieciieee e e e e et e e e e e e e e e e e e
COMMUNICALION. .....eiiiiiiieiiiie e,
Supplies and Services
Debt SErVICING.......uvveiiieeiiiiieee e
Other OPErating..........uvvveeeeiiiiiiiiieeeessiiiere e e e e ssiarereeeeennees
MINOF Capital........cceeiiiiiiiiiiieee e
AMOTtIZAtION........iiiiiiee e
Recoveries into Appropriation...........cc..eeeeeevviieiieeeeeeeinineen

HEALTH, SENIORS AND ACTIVE LIVING (XXI)

1. Administration and Finance

Main EStMALe........cccvviiiiee et
Main Estimate Transfer**...
Personnel SErviCes.........veiiiiciiiiieee e,
Grants/Transfer Payments..........coooovvvveeiiiiiiiiiiee e,
TranSPOTALION........uviiieeee et e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e eneees
COMMUNICALION. .....ceiiiiiieiiiie e,
SUPPIIES AN SEIVICES....coieeiieiiiiiie e
Debt SErVICING.......uvveeiieeiiiiieee e
Other OPErating..........uuvvveeeiiiiiiieieeeesssiieree e e e ssrirereeeeannens
MINOF Capital........cceeiiiiiiiiiiee e
Net

2. Provincial Policy and Programs

Main EStIMAte........ccovviiiiiiiiiiiiie e
Personnel Services...........
Grants/Transfer Payments
TranSPOTALION........uviiieeee et e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e eneees
COMMUNICALION. .....ciiiiiiieiiiie e,
SUPPIIES ANA SEIVICES....coieeiieiiieiiee et
Debt SErVICING.......uveeeiieeiiiieeee e
Other OPErating..........uvvveeeeiiiiiiieieeeesisiieeee e e e ssirareeaeeesnnees
MINOF Capital........cceeiiiiiiiiiiee e
Net

35

Amount
Authorized
$

82,593,000
765,215
9,987,000

Amount
Expended
$

32,287,973
43,016,620
1,126,284
1,054,582
14,373,788
4,054,834
3,416,923
149,933
1,648,306

(7,993,842)

Unexpended
Balance
$

93,345,215

93,135,401

209,814

10,608,000
96,000

9,059,376
425,446
66,634
134,437
431,139
17,903
451,740
38,318

10,704,000

10,624,993

79,007

34,807,000

19,457,807
328,833
179,328
654,519

7,085,959
40
5,429,517
820,411

34,807,000

33,956,414

850,586
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Department and Appropriations Amount Amount Unexpended
Authorized Expended Balance
$ $ $

3. Health Workforce Secretariat

Main EStMAaLe........ccoviiiiiee i 9,857,000

Main Estimate Transfers™.........cccccvvveeeieieiiiiiee e 100,000

Special Warrant...........eeeveeiiiiiiiieee e 275,000

Personnel SEIVICES.......ccuueeiiiiiiiieee e, 8,086,245

Grants/Transfer Payments..........coooovvvveiiiiiiiiiiee i, 5,245

TranSPOTALION. ... .uuviiieeeeieciieee e e e e et e e e e e e e e e e e e 21,432

COMMUNICALION. ...t e 412,402

Supplies and Services 917,248

Other OPerating...........vveeeeeiiiiiieiee e e e e ssirreea e e e ennees 766,021

MINOF Capital.......ccceeiiiiiiiiiiee e e 4,838

Net 10,232,000 10,213,431 18,569
4. Public Health and Primary Health Care

Main EStIMALE.......uuveiiiiiiiiiiie e 27,990,000

Personnel SErviCes.........ccccvviiiiiieiee e, 15,909,970

Grants/Transfer Payments............ccccvveeeeiiiiiiineee e, 4,101

TranSPOTAtiON........ueeiiie e 310,456

COMMUNICALION.......cevviieiiieiiiiee e e e et e s e eaaaaaas, 758,409

SUpPlieS and SErVICES.......covviiiiiiiie e 3,845,947

(D= o] BRST=T AV, o] o Vo TSRS 6,408

Other Operating 988,294

MINOF Capital.......ccceeiiiiiiiiiiee e e e 117,876

Net 27,990,000 21,941,461 6,048,539
5. Regional Policy and Programs

Main EStIMALE.......uuuiiiiiiiiiiie e 15,989,000

Main Estimate Transfer............ccccooiiiiiiieinnnie e, 44,000

Special Warrant...........vvvieeeiiiiiiiiee e cesiiiee e e siireea e e 659,000

Personnel SErviCes.........cccvvviiiiiiiee e, 6,936,435

Grants/Transfer Payments............ccccvvveeeeiiiiiiinee e, 19,600

Transportation...........cccc....... . 4,034,807

Communication 305,330

SUpPlieS and SEIVICES. ......coviiuiiiiiiie e 2,713,503

Debt Servicing.... 96

Other OPerating..........uvveeeeeiiiiiiiiiee e e e eserreea e e e 2,428,962

MINOF Capital........ccceeiiiiiiiiiee e e e 243,134

Net 16,692,000 16,681,867 10,133
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Department and Appropriations Amount Amount Unexpended
Authorized Expended Balance
$ $ $

6. Seniors and Active Living

Main EStIMAate........covviiiiiiiiiiiiiicc e 48,858,000

Personnel SEIVICES.......ocuueeiiiiiiieieee e, 3,709,099

Grants/Transfer Payments..........cooovvvvveiiiiiiiiieeeeieiiieen, 22,945,281

TranSPOTALION.......uuviiieeee it e e e e et e e e e e e e e e e e e ennees 95,405

COMMUNICALION. .....eeiiiiiieiiiie e, 50,526

SUPPlIES AN SEIVICES....coieeiieiiiiiee e 1,306,970

Debt SErVICING.......uvveeiieeiiiieeeee e 11

Other Operating 15,497,897

MINOF Capital........cceeiiiiiiiiiiee e 30,458

Net 48,858,000 43,635,647 5,222,353
7. Health Services Insurance Fund

Main EStIMAate........ccovviiiiiiiiiiiiii e 5,639,451,000

Personnel SEIVICES.......c.uuveiiiiiiieieee e, 49,968,702

TranSPOTAtiON........ueeiiiee it 517,140

COMMUNICALION. ......cevviieeieeiiiiee e e e e et e s e eaaaaaan, 322,337

SUpplies and SErVICES. ......cooviiiiiiiieiiiiieeee e 24,388,531

DEbBt SEIVICING......uuviiieeeee ittt (17,993)

Other OPerating..........uvveeeeeiiiiiiieiee e iiiieeee e e e e e e 5,501,612,120

MINOF Capital........cceeeiiiiiiiiiee e 448,004

Net 5,639,451,000 5,577,238,841 62,212,159
8. Capital Funding

Main EStIMALE.......uuuiiiiiiiiiie e 198,187,000

Other OPerating..........uvveeeeeiiiiiiieiee e iiiieeee e e e e e e 164,010,345

Net 198,187,000 164,010,345 34,176,655
9. Costs Related to Capital Assets

Main EStIMAate........ccovviiiiiiiiiiiiiii e 4,123,000

DEbBt SEIVICING......uuviiieeeee ittt 526,709

Amortization 3,596,291

Net 4,123,000 4,123,000 -
Department Total 5,991,044,000 5,882,425,999 108,618,001
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Department and Appropriations Amount Amount Unexpended
Authorized Expended Balance
$ $ $

Expense Summary by Category

Main EStIMAate........covviiiiiiiiiiiiiicc e 5,989,870,000

Main Estimate Transfers™.........cccccvvveeeieieiiiiiee e 240,000

Special Warrant...........eeeveeiiiiiiiieee e 934,000

Personnel SEIVICES.......ccuueeiiiiiiiieee e, 113,127,634

Grants/Transfer Payments..........coooovvvveiiiiiiiiiiee i, 23,728,506

TranSPOTALION. ... .uuviiieeeeieciieee e e e e et e e e e e e e e e e e e 5,225,202

COMMUNICALION. .....eiiiiiiieiiiie e, 2,637,960

Supplies and Services 40,689,297

Debt SErVICING.......uvveiiieeiiiiieee e 533,174

Other OPErating..........uvvveeeeiiiiiiiiieeeessiiiere e e e e ssiarereeeeennees 5,691,184,896

MINOF Capital........cceeiiiiiiiiiiieee e 1,703,039

PN g o] (=1 1 o) o N 3,596,291

5,991,044,000 5,882,425,999 108,618,001

INDIGENOUS AND MUNICIPAL RELATIONS (XIII)
1. Administration and Finance

Main EStIMAate........ccovviiiiiiiiiiiiii e 4,027,000

Personnel SEIVICES.......c.uuveiiiiiiieieee e, 3,424,800

Transportation................... . 104,308

Communication 120,259

SUpPliesS and SEIVICES. ......cooviuiiiiieieieiieee e 152,792

DEbBt SEIVICING......uuviiieeeee ittt 1,942

Other OPerating..........uvveeeeeiiiiiiieiee e iiiieeee e e e e e e 219,271

MINOE Capital.......ccceeiiiiiiiiiiee e e e 1,281

Net 4,027,000 4,024,653 2,347
2. Community Planning and Development

Main EStIMALE.......uuuiiiiiiiiiie e 58,978,000

Personnel Services..... 6,829,594

Grants/Transfer Payments 51,383,795

TranSPOITAtiON........ueeiiiee i 131,695

Communication.............. 120,919

Supplies and Services 148,006

(D= o] BST=T AV, o] o Vo PSR 98

Other OPerating..........uvvveeeeiiiiiieiee e iiieeee e e e e 844,776

MINOF Capital.......cceeeeiiiiiiiiiee e 10,340

Recoveries into Appropriation...........cc.eeeeeerviieieeeeeeeeinineen (4,410,494)

Net 58,978,000 55,058,729 3,919,271
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Department and Appropriations

3. Infrastructure and Municipal Services

Main EStIMAate........covviiiiiiiiiiiiiicc e
Personnel SErVICES........cuuiiiiiieiiieieiee e
Grants/Transfer Payments..........cooovvvvveiiiiiiiiieeeeieiiieen,
TranSPOTALION.......uuviiieeee it e e e e et e e e e e e e e e e e e ennees
COMMUNICALION. .....eeiiiiiieiiiie e,
SUPPlIES AN SEIVICES....coieeiieiiiiiee e
Debt SErVICING.......uvveeiieeiiiieeeee e
Other Operating
MINOF Capital........cceeiiiiiiiiiiee e
Recoveries into Appropriation............ccceeeeeeeveecuveeeeeeesssnennn
Net

4. Financial Assistance to Municipalities

Main EStMAte.......ccuuiiiiiiiiiiiiie e
Grants/Transfer Payments..........cocoovvveeiiiniiiiiiee i,
Recoveries into Appropriation...........cccueeeeeeeeecuieeeeeeessnnenen
Net

5. Indigenous and Northern Affairs

Main EStMALe........cccvviiiiee et
Personnel Services...........
Grants/Transfer Payments
TranSPOITAtiON........ueeiiiee i
COMMUNICALION. .. .uviiiee ettt e e et e e e e e e e e e e eaenneees
SUpPliesS and SErVICES. ......cooiiiiiiieie e
[D7= o] BST=T AV, o] o Vo T PR
Other OPerating..........uuvveeeeiiiiiiieiee e e e e e e
MINOF Capital........ccceeiiiiiiiiiee e e e
Net

6. Costs Related to Capital Assets

Main EStMALe........cccvviiiiee et
Debt SErVICING.....c.uuveiiieeiiiiiiee e
Amortization
Net

Department Total
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Amount
Authorized
$

16,375,000

Amount
Expended
$

12,731,967
2,375,642
345,536
279,366
531,399
30
17,260,733
39,899

(19,771,000)

Unexpended
Balance
$

16,375,000

13,793,572

2,581,428

386,587,000

429,905,286
(46,173,000)

386,587,000

383,732,286

2,854,714

30,768,000

5,599,585
20,300,639
263,597
100,657
1,085,868
870
484,804
30,627

30,768,000

27,866,647

2,901,353

96,000

38,318
45,217

96,000

83,535

12,465

496,831,000

484,559,422

12,271,578
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Department and Appropriations

Expense Summary by Category

Main EStIMAate........covviiiiiiiiiiiiiicc e
Personnel SErviCes.........cveiiiiiiiiiiee e,
Grants/Transfer Payments..........cooovvvvveiiiiiiiiieeeeieiiieen,
TranSPOTALION.......uuviiieeee it e e e e et e e e e e e e e e e e e ennees
COMMUNICALION. .....eeiiiiiieiiiie e,
SUPPlIES AN SEIVICES....coieeiieiiiiiee e
Debt SErVICING.......uvveeiieeiiiieeeee e
Other Operating
MINOF Capital........cceeiiiiiiiiiiee e
AMOTtIZAtION........iiiiiiec e
Recoveries into Appropriation...........cc.eeeeeevviieieeeeeeeenninnee

INFRASTRUCTURE (XV)

1. Corporate Services

Main EStIMAte.......ccuuiiiiiiiiiiiiieeeie e
Personnel SErVICES........ccceoiiiiiiiiiiiiiiee e
TranSPOTALION.......uuviiieeee it e e e e eeeeeee e e e e e e e e e e e enaees
Communication..............

Supplies and Services
(D= o] BRST=T AV ol oo T PSSR
Other OPErating..........uuvvveeeiiiiiiieieeeesssiieree e e e ssrirereeeeannens
MINOF Capital........cceeiiiiiiiiiiiee e
Recoveries into Appropriation...........ccceeeeeeeeeecuieeeeeeesssnenen
Net

2. Highways, Transportation and Water Control Programs

Main EStIMAte.......ccuuiiiiiiiiiiiiieeeie e
Special Warrant.......
Personnel Services
Grants/Transfer Payments..........coocvvvviveeiiiiiiiieeeeseiiieen,
Transportation...................

Communication
SUPPIIES ANA SEIVICES....coeeeiiiiiiiiie et
Debt SErVICING.......uveeeiieeiiiieeee e
Other OPErating..........uvvveeeeiiiiiiiiieeeesesiieree e e s ssiareeeeeesnnens
MINOK Capital........cceeiiiiiiiiiiee e
Recoveries into Appropriation...........ccceeeeeeeveecieeeeeeessnnenen
Net
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Amount
Authorized
$

496,831,000

Amount
Expended
$

28,585,946
503,965,362
845,136
621,201
1,918,065
41,258
18,809,584
82,147
45,217
(70,354,494)

Unexpended
Balance
$

496,831,000

484,559,422

12,271,578

9,181,000

15,417,079
416,402
307,761

2,308,267
6,479
2,602,595
1,234,913
(14,195,502)

9,181,000

8,097,994

1,083,006

46,405,000
(1,364,000)

45,309,634
151,300
1,931,028
915,525
3,074,105
33,031
24,919,991
142,749

(15,634,999)

45,041,000

60,842,364

(15,801,364)
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Department and Appropriations Amount Amount Unexpended
Authorized Expended Balance
$ $ $

3. Infrastructure Works

Main EStIMAate........covviiiiiiiiiiiiiicc e 182,575,000

Main Estimate Transfers™.........cccccvvveeeieieiiiiiee e 1,556,000

Special Warrant...........eeeveeiiiiiiiieee e 4,000,000

Personnel SEIVICES.......ccuueeiiiiiiiieee e, 83,219,958

TranSPOITAtiON........ueeiiiee i 10,710,185

COMMUNICALION. ......cevviieeieeiiiiee e e e e et e s e eaaaaaan, 2,030,876

SUPPlieS and SErVICES.......covviiiiiiiiieie e 115,579,099

Debt Servicing.......cccccvveeeeiicnnnns 1,517

Other Operating 7,221,747

MINOF Capital.......ccceeiiiiiiiiiiee e e 652,850

Recoveries into Appropriation...........cc.eeeeeevviieieeeeeeeenninnee (31,284,568)

Net 188,131,000 188,131,664 (664)
4. Emergency Management and Public Safety

Main EStIMAate........covviiiiiiiiiiiiiic e 2,714,000

Main Estimate TransSfers™..........cccccvveeeiiiiiiiiiiee e 40,000

Personnel SErVICES........ccceiviiiiiiiiiciic e 2,202,785

TranSPOTALION........uviiieeee et e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e eneees 107,862

COMMUNICALION. .....eeiiiiiieiiiie e, 83,353

SUPPIIES AN SEIVICES....ciiieiiiiiiiieee e e 80,521

Other Operating 267,125

MINOF Capital.......ccceeiiiiiiiiiiee e e e 12,626

Net 2,754,000 2,754,272 (272)
5. Costs Related to Capital Assets

Main EStIMALE.......uuuiiiiiiiiiiie e 384,218,000

Debt SErVICING.......uvveeiieeiiiiieee e 193,387,397

PN g o] (=1 1 o] o N 209,593,544

Recoveries into Appropriation...........cc..eeeeeevviiiiieeeeeeeinnnnen (23,993,100)

Net 384,218,000 378,987,841 5,230,159
Department Total 629,325,000 638,814,135 (9,489,135)
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Department and Appropriations Amount Amount Unexpended
Authorized Expended Balance
$ $ $

Expense Summary by Category

Main EStMAaLe........ccoviiiiiee i 625,093,000

Main Estimate Transfers™.........cccccvvveeeieieiiiiiee e 1,596,000

Special Warrant...........eeeveeiiiiiiiieee e 2,636,000

Personnel SEIVICES.......ccuueeiiiiiiiieee e, 146,149,456

Grants/Transfer Payments..........coooovvvveiiiiiiiiiiee i, 151,300

TranSPOTALION. ... .uuviiieeeeieciieee e e e e et e e e e e e e e e e e e 13,165,477

COMMUNICALION. ...t e 3,337,515

Supplies and Services 121,041,992

Debt SErVICING.......uvveiiieeiiiiieee e 193,428,424

Other OPErating..........uvvveeeeiiiiiiiiieeeessiiiere e e e e ssiarereeeeennees 35,011,458

MINOF Capital........cceeiiiiiiiiiiieee e 2,043,138

PN g o] (=1 1 o) o N 209,593,544

Recoveries into Appropriation...........cc..eeeeeevviieiieeeeeeeinineen (85,108,169)

629,325,000 638,814,135 (9,489,135)

JUSTICE (IV)
1. Administration and Finance

Main EStIMALE.......uuveiiiiiiiiiiie e 4,212,000

Main Estimate Transfer**... 58,001

Personnel SEIVICES.......c.uueeiiiiiiieieeee e 3,219,038

TranSPOITAtiON........ueeiiiee i 25,202

COMMUNICALION. ......ccuviiieiiieiiiiee e et e e e s e eaaaaaan, 71,092

SUpPliesS and SErVICES. ......cooiiiiiiieie e 487,795

[D7= o] BST=T AV, o] o Vo T PR 271

Other OPerating..........uuvveeeeiiiiiiieiee e e e e e e 328,565

MINOF Capital........ccceeiiiiiiiiiee e e e 11,718

Net 4,270,001 4,143,681 126,320
2. Criminal Law

Main EStIMALE.......uuviiiiiiiiiiee e 49,302,000

Personnel SErviCes.........ccccvvviiiiieiee e, 34,725,017

Grants/Transfer Payments.... 2,730,392

TranSPOITAtiON........uueiiiee e 891,928

COMMUNICALION. ......ccvviieiiieiiiiee e et e e e e e eaaaaaan, 519,740

SUpPlieS and SErVICES.......cooviiiiiieie e 2,308,893

(D= o] BST=T AV, o] o Vo PSR 1,478

Other OPerating..........uvvveeeeiiiiiieiee e iiieeee e e e e 4,758,681

MINOF Capital.......ccceeeiiiiiiiiiee e e e 34,549

Net 49,302,000 45,970,678 3,331,322
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3. Civil Law

Main EStIMAate........covviiiiiiiiiiiiiicc e
Personnel SErVICES........cuuiiiiiieiiieieiee e
Grants/Transfer Payments..........cooovvvvveiiiiiiiiieeeeieiiieen,
TranSPOTALION.......uuviiieeee it e e e e et e e e e e e e e e e e e ennees
COMMUNICALION. .....eeiiiiiieiiiie e,
SUPPlIES AN SEIVICES....coieeiieiiiiiee e
Debt SErVICING.......uvveeiieeiiiieeeee e
Other Operating
MINOF Capital........cceeiiiiiiiiiiee e
Recoveries into Appropriation............ccceeeeeeeveecuveeeeeeesssnennn
Net

4. Community Safety

Main EStMALe........cccvviiiiee et
Main Estimate Transfert*............cccccoviiiniieiniie e,
Special Warrant...........vuvveeeiieiiiiiee e ccsiiviee e e e ssiireee e e
Personnel SErVICES........ccceiviiiiiiiiiciic e
Grants/Transfer Payments............ccccvveeeeiiiiiiinee e,
TranSPOITAtiON........ueeiiiee i
COMMUNICALION. ....uviiiee et e e et e e e e e e e enaneees
Supplies and Services
DEbBt SEIVICING.......uvviiieeee it
Other OPerating..........uuveeeeeiiiiiiiiiee e e e e e e e e
Social Assistance Related...........ccccccoveviiieiieee e
MINOF Capital........cceeiiiiiiiiiiiee e
Recoveries into Appropriation...........ccceeeeeeeeeecuieeeeeeesssnenen
Net

5. Courts

Main EStMALe........cccvviiiiee et
Main Estimate Transfer**...
Personnel SErviCes.........viiiiiciiiiiee e,
Grants/Transfer Payments..........coocvvvviveeiiiiiiiieeeeseiiieen,
Transportation...................

Communication
SUPPIIES ANA SEIVICES....coeeeiiiiiiiiie et
Debt SErVICING.......uveeeiieeiiiieeee e
Other OPErating..........uvvveeeeiiiiiiiiieeeesesiieree e e s ssiareeeeeesnnens
MINOK Capital........cceeiiiiiiiiiiee e
Net
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Amount
Authorized
$

47,726,000

Amount
Expended
$

32,062,376
85,000
1,383,752
236,349
2,436,422
70
18,004,253
21,905
(8,072,788)

Unexpended
Balance
$

47,726,000

46,157,339

1,568,661

407,305,000
3,561,353
4,573,000

240,689,702
3,534,458
2,315,741
1,321,807

163,329,683

4,619
7,052,402
1,198
479,537
(3,290,574)

415,439,353

415,438,573

780

61,533,000
1,735,877

51,664,626
53,200
3,348,737
1,102,109
1,810,996
1,278,346
3,858,696
152,160

63,268,877

63,268,870
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Department and Appropriations Amount Amount Unexpended
Authorized Expended Balance
$ $ $

6. Consumer Protection

Main EStMAaLe........ccoviiiiiee i 11,880,000

Personnel SEIVICES.......ocuueeiiiiiiieieee e, 9,152,448

Grants/Transfer Payments..........cooovvvvveiiiiiiiiieeeeieiiieen, 113,000

TranSPOTALION.......uuviiieeee it e e e e et e e e e e e e e e e e e ennees 95,735

COMMUNICALION. ....eviiiiee e 236,766

SUPPlIES AN SEIVICES....coieeiieiiiiiee e 402,792

Debt SErVICING.......uvveeiieeiiiieeeee e 30,722

Other Operating 558,583

MINOF Capital........cceeiiiiiiiiiiee e 18,253

Net 11,880,000 10,608,299 1,271,701
7. Costs Related to Capital Assets

Main EStMALe........ccciviiiieeiiiiee e 3,886,000

DEbBt SEIVICING......uuvviiieeee it eeee e 941,057

AMOTtIZAION......iiiiiiie e 2,692,690

Net 3,886,000 3,633,747 252,253
Department Total 595,772,231 589,221,187 6,551,044
Expense Summary by Category

Main EStIMALE.......uuviiiiiiiiiiee e 585,844,000

Main Estimate Transfer............ccccooiiiiiiinniie e, 5,355,231

Special Warrant............vvveeeiiiiiiiiee e ccsiiviee e e e s ssiireeae e 4,573,000

Personnel ServiCes.........ccccvvviiiiiiiee e, 371,513,207

Grants/Transfer Payments............ccccvvveeeeiiiiiineee e, 6,516,050

TranSPOITAtiON........ueeiiieee i 8,061,095

COMMUNICALION. ......ccvviieiiieiiiiee e et e e e e e eaaaaaan, 3,487,863

SUpPliesS and SEIVICES. ......cooviuiiiiieieieiieee e 170,776,581

DEbBt SEIVICING......uuviiieeeee ittt 2,256,563

Other Operating.... 34,561,180

Social Assistance Related 1,198

Minor Capital 718,122

Amortization............c.cevvvennn.. 2,692,690
Recoveries into Appropriation (11,363,362)

595,772,231 589,221,187 6,551,044

44



PROVINCE OF MANITOBA PUBLIC ACCOUNTS 2016-17

Department and Appropriations

SPORT, CULTURE AND HERITAGE (XIV)

1. Administration and Finance

Main EStIMAte........ccovviiiiiiiiiiiiie e
Main Estimate Transfer..........cccccceviciiiiiiee e
Personnel SErVICES........cccevviiiiiiiiiiiiie e
Grants/Transfer Payments............ccccvveeeeiiiiiiineee e,
TranSPOITAtiON........ueeiiiee i
Communication..............

Supplies and Services
(D= o] BST=T AV, o] o Vo T PR
Other OPerating..........uuvveeeeiiiiiiieiee e e e e e e
MINOT Capital.......cceeeeiiiiiiiiieee e e e
Net

2. Sport, Culture and Heritage Programs

Main EStMALe........cccvviiiiee et
Personnel SErVICES........ccceiviiiiiiiiiciic e
Grants/Transfer Payments............ccccvveeeeiiiiiiinee e,
TranSPOITAtiON........ueeiiiee i
COMMUNICALION. ....uviiiee et e e et e e e e e e e enaneees
Supplies and Services
Other OPErating..........uvvvveeeiiiiiiieieeeeessiieree e e e ssrarereeeeennees
MINOF Capital........cceeiiiiiiiiiiee e
Recoveries into Appropriation...........ccceeeeeeeveecieeeeeeesssnenen
Net

3. Information Resources

Main EStMALe........cccvviiiiee e
Main Estimate Transfer**............cccccovviiiniiieiniic e,
Personnel SErviCes.........uviiiiiciiiiiee e,
Transportation...................

Communication
SUpPlieS and SEIVICES. ......coviiuiiiiiiie e
Debt Servicing....
Other OPerating..........uvveeeeeiiiiiiiiiee e e e eserreea e e e
MINOF Capital........ccceeiiiiiiiiiee e e e
Recoveries into Appropriation...........cc.eeeeeerviieieeeeeeeeinineen
Net

4. Costs Related to Capital Assets

Main EStMAaLe........ccovvviiieeiiiii e
DEBt SEIVICING......uuvveieeeeeiiciee e
AMOTtIZAtION.......iiiiiiic e
Net

Department Total
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Amount
Authorized
$

4,994,000
584,000

Amount
Expended
$

4,146,931
79,979
61,328

148,193
382,152
1,462
620,509
28,181

Unexpended
Balance
$

5,578,000

5,468,735

109,265

52,193,000

3,400,174
48,118,006
79,054
216,700
135,097
381,211
33,971

(875,000)

52,193,000

51,489,213

703,787

9,202,000
104,000

9,583,202
44,189
532,571
512,686
1,003
571,269
48,697

(1,987,573)

9,306,000

9,306,044

(44)

73,000

15,987
52,164

73,000

68,151

4,849

67,150,000

66,332,143

817,857
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Department and Appropriations Amount Amount Unexpended
Authorized Expended Balance
$ $ $

Expense Summary by Category

Main EStMAaLe........ccoviiiiiee i 66,462,000

Main Estimate Transfert.......cccooveivviiiiiiei e, 104,000

Main Estimate Transfer=*..........ccccccccciiiiie e 584,000

Personnel SEIVICES.......ccuueeiiiiiiiieee e, 17,130,307

Grants/Transfer Payments..........coooovvvveiiiiiiiiiiee i, 48,197,985

TranSPOTALION. ... .uuviiieeeeieciieee e e e e et e e e e e e e e e e e e 184,571

COMMUNICALION. ...t e 897,464

Supplies and Services 1,029,935

Debt SErVICING.......uvveiiieeiiiiieee e 18,452

Other OPErating..........uvvveeeeiiiiiiiiieeeessiiiere e e e e ssiarereeeeennees 1,572,989

MINOF Capital........cceeiiiiiiiiiiieee e 110,849

PN g o] (=1 1 o) o N 52,164

Recoveries into Appropriation...........cc..eeeeeevviieiieeeeeeeinineen (2,862,573)

67,150,000 66,332,143 817,857

SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT (XII)
1. Finance and Crown Lands

Main EStIMALE.......uuveiiiiiiiiiiie e 15,150,000

Main Estimate Transfer**... 1,059,000

Personnel SEIVICES.......c.uueeiiiiiiieieeee e 9,510,447

Grants/Transfer Payments..........coooovvvveeiiiiiiiiiiee e, 188,750

TranSPOTALION........uviiieeee et e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e eneees 182,429

COMMUNICALION. ....uviiiie e 465,316

SUPPIIES AN SEIVICES....coieeiieiiiiiie e 2,601,283

Debt SErVICING.......uvveeiieeiiiiieee e 7,509

Other OPErating..........uuvvveeeiiiiiiieieeeesssiieree e e e ssrirereeeeannens 4,263,708

MINOF Capital........cceeiiiiiiiiiiee e 46,473

Recoveries into Appropriation...........ccceeeeeeeveecieeeeeeesssnenen (1,066,573)

Net 16,209,000 16,199,342 9,658
2. Parks and Regional Services

Main Estimate................. 70,205,000

Main Estimate Transfer** 966,000

Personnel SEIVICES.......ccuuueeiiiiiiieieee e, 51,225,598

Grants/Transfer Payments..........cooovvvvveeeiiniiiiiiee i, 459,760

TranSPOTALION.......uvviiieeeeeiciiiee e e e e eereee e e e e e erre e e e e e e e 3,616,418

COMMUNICALION. ....eviiiie e 1,306,739

SUPPIIES ANA SEIVICES....ccieeiieiiiiiee e 12,548,349

(D= o] SRST=T AV ol oo T PRSP 143,852

Other OPErating..........uuvvveeeiiiiiiiiieeeesssiiere e e e e ssareeaeeeennens 2,507,389

MINOK Capital........cceeiiiiiiiiiiee e 332,601

Recoveries into Appropriation (971,937)

Net 71,171,000 71,168,769 2,231
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Department and Appropriations Amount Amount Unexpended
Authorized Expended Balance
$ $ $

3. Environmental Stewardship

Main EStIMAate........covviiiiiiiiiiiiiicc e 12,371,000

Main Estimate Transfers™.........cccccvvveeeieieiiiiiee e 103,000

Personnel SErVICES........ccccceiiiiiiiiiiiiiiee e 10,008,103

Grants/Transfer Payments............ccccvvveeeeiiiiiiineee i, 1,110,276

TranSPOITAtiON........ueeiiiee i 235,617

COMMUNICALION. ......cevviieeieeiiiiee e e e e et e s e eaaaaaan, 217,116

SUPPlieS and SErVICES.......covviiiiiiiiieie e 292,098

Debt Servicing.......cccccvveeeeiicnnnns 2,249

Other Operating 689,764

MINOF Capital.......ccceeiiiiiiiiiiee e e 19,179

Recoveries into Appropriation...........cc.eeeeeevviieieeeeeeeenninnee (102,682)

Net 12,474,000 12,471,720 2,280
4. Water Stewardship and Biodiversity

Main EStIMAate........covviiiiiiiiiiiiiic e 28,942,000

Main Estimate TransSfers™..........cccccvveeeiiiiiiiiiiee e 356,000

Personnel SErVICES........ccceiviiiiiiiiiciic e 17,282,215

Grants/Transfer Payments............ccccvveeeeiiiiiiinee e, 7,033,000

TranSPOITAtiON........ueeiiiee i 1,134,145

COMMUNICALION. ......cevviieeiieeieiiee e e e e e s e eaaaaaan, 487,175

Supplies and Services 4,909,387

DEbBt SEIVICING.......uvviiieeee it (502)

Other OPerating..........uuveeeeeiiiiiiiiiee e e e e e e e e 2,930,828

MINOF Capital........cceeeiiiiiiiiiee e 148,610

Recoveries into Appropriation...........cc..eeeeeevviiuiieeeeeeeinnnnen (5,162,056)

Net 29,298,000 28,762,802 535,198
5. Costs Related to Capital Assets

Main EStIMAate........ccovviiiiiiiiiiiiiii e 15,047,000

DEbBt SEIVICING......uuviiieeeee ittt 6,764,536

Amortization 7,166,901

Net 15,047,000 13,931,437 1,115,563
Departmental Total 144,199,000 142,534,070 1,664,930
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Department and Appropriations

Expense Summary by Category

Main EStIMAate........covviiiiiiiiiiiiiicc e
Main Estimate Transfer...........ccccccovviiiiee e,
Personnel SErVICES........ccccceiiiiiiiiiiiiiiee e
Grants/Transfer Payments............ccccvvveeeeiiiiiiineee i,
TranSPOITAtiON........ueeiiiee i
COMMUNICALION. ....uviiiie ettt e e e e e e e e e e eeanaees
SUPPlieS and SErVICES.......covviiiiiiiiieie e
Debt Servicing.......cccccvveeeeiicnnnns

Other Operating
MINOF Capital.......ccceeiiiiiiiiiiee e e
AMOITIZALION. ...ttt
Recoveries into Appropriation...........ccccueeeeeeveecuveeeeeeessennnen

ENABLING APPROPRIATIONS (XXVI)

1. Enabling Vote
Main EStMALe........ccoviiiiieeiiiie e
Main Estimate Transfer .........ccccccceviiiiiiiiee e
Net

2. Internal Service Adjustments
Main EStMALe........cccvviiiiee et
Main Estimate Transfer............cccccoiiiiiiinnniicee e,
Net

Department Total

Expense Summary by Category
Main EStMALe........cccvviiiiee et
Main Estimate Transfer ...........ccccccviiiiee s
Main Estimate Transfer**
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Amount Amount Unexpended
Authorized Expended Balance
$ $ $
141,715,000
2,484,000
88,026,363
8,791,786
5,168,609
2,476,346
20,351,117
6,917,644
10,391,689
546,863
7,166,901
(7,303,248)
144,199,000 142,534,070 1,664,930
11,991,000
(4,784,000)

7,207,000 - 7,207,000

31,000,000
(26,120,891)

4,879,109 - 4,879,109
12,086,109 - 12,086,109
42,991,000
(4,784,000)

(26,120,891)
12,086,109 - 12,086,109




PROVINCE OF MANITOBA PUBLIC ACCOUNTS 2016-17

49

Department and Appropriations Amount Amount Unexpended
Authorized Expended Balance
$ $ $

OTHER APPROPRIATIONS (XXVII)
1. Emergency Expenditures

Main EStIMAte........ccovviiiiiiiiiiiiie e 51,800,000

Personnel SEIVICES.......ccuueeiiiiiiiieee e, 4,961,890

Grants/Transfer Payments..........coooovvvveiiiiiiiiiiee i, (254,593)

TranSPOTALION. ... .uuviiieeeeieciieee e e e e et e e e e e e e e e e e e 6,805,740

COMMUNICALION. .....eiiiiiiieiiiie e, 488,719

Supplies and Services 6,256,199

Debt SErVICING.......uvveiiieeiiiiieee e 750

Other OPErating..........uvvveeeeiiiiiiiiieeeessiiiere e e e e ssiarereeeeennees 81,268,519

MINOF Capital........cceeiiiiiiiiiiieee e 948,742

PN g o] (=1 1 o) o N 5,379,800

Net 51,800,000 105,855,766 (54,055,766)
2. Allowance for Losses and Expenditures Incurred by

Crown Corporations and Other Provincial Entities

Main EStIMAate........covviiiiiiiiiiiiiic e 500,000

MINOF Capital........cceeeiiiiiiiiiee e 500,000

Net 500,000 500,000 -
3. Sustainable Development Innovations Fund

Main EStIMALE.......uuviiiiiiiiiiee e 4,400,000

Grants/Transfer Payments..........coooovvvveeiiiiiiiiiiee e, 1,931,300

TranSPOTALION........uviiieeee et e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e eneees 289

COMMUNICALION. .....ceiiiiiieiiiie e, 19,715

SUPPIIES AN SEIVICES....coieeiieiiiiiie e 37,902

Other OPerating..........uuvveeeeiiiiiiieiee e e e e e e 2,410,774

Net 4,400,000 4,399,980 20
Department Total 56,700,000 110,755,746 (54,055,746)
Expense Summary by Category

Main Estimate............. 56,700,000

Personnel Services 4,961,890

Grants/Transfer Payments............ccccvvveeeeiiiciiineee i, 1,676,707

TranSPOITAtiON........uueiiiee e 6,806,029

COMMUNICALION. ......cevviieiieeiiiiee e e et e s e eaaaaaan, 508,434

SUpPlieS and SErVICES.......cooviiiiiieie e 6,294,101

DEbBt SEIVICING......uuviiieeeee it 750

Other OPerating..........uuveeeeeiiiiiiiiiee e e e e e e e e 83,679,293

MINOF Capital.......ccceeeiiiiiiiiiee e e e 1,448,742

AMOITIZALION. ...ttt 5,379,800

56,700,000 110,755,746 (54,055,746)
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SUMMARY OF DEPARTMENTAL APPROPRIATIONS AND EXPENSES
PART B - CAPITAL INVESTMENT

For the Year ended March 31, 2017

Capital Expended
Investment on Unexpended
Authority Acquisitions Writedowns Balance
$ $ $ $

AGHICUIUIE. ...ttt e e e e e e enees 250,000 171,486 - 78,514
Education and TraiNing..........cccceeviiiiiieeeeeieiieieee e, 2,173,000 - - 2,173,000
Families 465,000 284,366 - 180,634
FINANCE. ...ttt 61,525,000 40,060,059 - 21,464,941
Health, Seniors and Active LivVing.........cccocecvvieeeeeeiiciiiieee e 1,202,000 600,690 - 601,310
INFTASTIUCTUIE. ...t 606,200,000 572,188,773 - 34,011,227
JUSHICE. ettt ettt et e et e st e eeaeeaneee 3,507,000 2,274,283 - 1,232,717
Sport, Culture and Heritage 205,000 37,655 - 167,345
Sustainable DevelopMENt.........c.covicuiiiiieee e sieeee e, 15,044,000 9,455,264 - 5,588,736
Enabling Appropriations..........ccveeeeeeiriiiiiieeee e 12,931,000 - - 12,931,000

703,502,000 625,072,576 - 78,429,424

RECONCILIATION WITH THE APPROPRIATION ACT, 2016, SPECIAL WARRANTS, ETC.

Departmental Appropriations authorized by:

"The Appropriation Act 2016"...........ccceeeiiieeeiiieee e e $ 703,502,000

Amount Authorized by Special Warrants............ccccvvvveeeeinnnnns -
$ 703,502,000
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Financial Position Details - Core Government and Summary

Fiscal Year ending March 31, 2017

Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Temporary investments
Amounts receivable
Inventories for resale
Portfolio investments
Loans and advances
Deferred charges
Equity in government business enterprises
Equity in government business partnerships
Total Financial Assets

Liabilities
Borrowings

Accounts payable, accrued charges, provisions and

unearned revenue
Pension liability
Total Liabilities

Net Debt

Non-Financial Assets
Inventories held for use
Prepaid expenses
Tangible capital assets
Total Non-Financial Assets

Accumulated Deficit

($ millions)
Core

Government Summary
1,416.7 2,783.3
- 376.5
1,287.2 1,734.6
2.2 66.9
1,337.1 1,460.7
3,361.1 1,457.8

1,590.2 -
- 3,439.7
- 19.0
8,994.5 11,338.5
26,481.8 27,397.3
2,525.7 4,076.9
- 2,557.0
29,007.5 34,031.2
(20,013.0) (22,692.7)
- 76.6

- 58.1
6,099.8 13,157.6
6,099.8 13,292.3
(13,913.2) (9,400.4)

53



PROVINCE OF MANITOBA PUBLIC ACCOUNTS 2016-17

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

As at March 31, 2017

CASH EQUIVALENTS - AT COST
Bank Of MONTIEAL.........cc.uiiiiiiiiiiiii e
Bank Of NOVA SCOLA. .......cciiiiiiiiiiii it
BC Municipal FiNanCe AULNOTILY...........uvuiiiiiiiieeiie e
CDP FINANCIAL ...ttt
Canada HOUSING TTUST.......uuuiiiieiieeieicie ettt e e e e e e e e e e e e e r e e e eeeeesaes
Canada Pension Plan Investment Board.............ccccovviiiiiiiiiiiiiic e
Canadian Imperial Bank of COMMEICE............ueeiiiiiiiiiie e
Financement QUEDIEC. .........ouuiiieiieece et eaeaaa
Government of Canada Treasury BillS..........coovvvuviiiiiiiiiccee e
HSBEC BANK. ...ttt
National Bank of Canada

Province of AIDEIMAL.......cocuiiiiiiii it e
Province of British ColuMDIa...........cciiiiiiiiii e
Province of Manitoba (debt incurred for and repayable by Manitoba Hydro)..........
Province of New Brunswick

Province of Newfoundland........
Province of NOVA SCOU. ........ueeiiiiieiiiiieiiie e
Province of ONEAIIO. .......ccoiiiiiiiiiie it
Province Of QUEBDEC..........oieiieeee et
Province of SaskatCheWAN............coiiiiiiiiiii e
LS S OF= o1 -1 I [ o TR
Public Schools Finance Board Promissory NOES...........cceuvveeeeeiiieiiiieeeeeeeeeviienn,
(@101 oTTol Yo [ o TR
Royal Bank of Canada...........ccuuuiiiiiiiiiiiiei e
TOronto DOMINION BaNK.........cccviiiiiiiiiiiiieeiiee ettt
Workers Compensation BOArd ...........cooevuvuiiiiieiiiiiiieeee e
TOTAL CASH EQUIVALENTS. ..ottt
BANK BALANCE (Overdraft) (NOte 1)...ccceeevvicieiieeeeeeieiiieieeeee e
TOTAL CASH EQUIVALENTS AND BANK BALANCE..........cccccvuunn...

TrUSE ASSEES (NOLE 2)....ceeeeiiiiiieeieece ettt ettt e e e e e e e e e e e e e e et e e e e e e e raaaaees
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (Note 4)

ALLOCATED AS FOLLOWS:

Cash and Cash Equivalents - General
Cash and Cash Equivalents - Sinking Funds (Note 3)

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (Note 4)
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2017 2016
$ $

146,790,925 184,889,900
189,821,650 218,592,013
76,875,250 14,976,000
- 24,958,750
603,436,781 370,375,949

39,944,000 -
89,939,150 193,653,260
5,319,156 8,247,009
359,574,650 341,718,285
42,958,230 76,963,950
188,891,400 222,522,965
29,969,400 82,701,740

120,891,770 -
1,479,354 1,492,861
53,707,367 16,673,362
- 154,925,750
- 9,994,300
677,666,069 468,525,918
207,935,671 188,176,027
21,470,611 89,463,042
24,960,050 13,490,685
34,214,348 34,422,800

74,969,250 -
123,956,800 207,401,105
174,858,900 239,876,600

10,000,000 -
3,299,630,782 3,164,042,271
(79,025,244) (62,833,367)
3,220,605,538 3,101,208,904
(1,803,948,922) (2,016,863,079)
1,416,656,616 1,084,345,825
1,413,542,632 1,078,036,599
3,113,984 6,309,226
1,416,656,616 1,084,345,825
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NOTE 1:

NOTE 2:

NOTE 3:

NOTE 4:

The Minister of Finance is authorized by Order-in-Council 562/2015 to raise money by bank lines of credit up to
$750 million and by Order-in-Council 563/2015 to raise money by way of promissory notes up to $1 billion at
any one time.

This amount primarily represents surplus cash of government organizations, government business enterprises,
fiduciary and other government related trusts on deposit with the Minister of Finance for investment but not
specifically invested. Such deposits are pooled with other available funds of the Government for investment
purposes and are accorded a market rate of interest.

This amount represents uninvested Sinking Fund cash on deposit in the government bank accounts and is
thereby an amount owing to the Sinking Fund.

Province of Manitoba Treasury Bills and Bonds which the Province holds as an investment are not reflected

in the Statement of Cash and Cash Equivalents but are offset against the Province of Manitoba related
borrowings.
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AMOUNTS RECEIVABLE

As at March 31, 2017

TAXATION REVENUE:
Corporation Capital TaX.......ccuureieeeeiiiiiieieeeeseiiieree e e e esareeeeeeeeesareaeeeeeessnnnenes
Levy for Health and EdUCALION..............ovviiiiiiiiiie e
INAIVIAUAI INCOME TAX....cutiieeiiiiie ettt ettt e e e e e niaee e

Insurance Corporations Tax
MOBIVE FUBH TAX ettt ettt et
Oil anNd NALUrAl GAS TAX......uvveeiiiiiiiiiieeeiiie ettt
Profit Tax on Credit UNIONS..........cueii it
Retail Sales Tax

0] oF= ToTelo T I D RS RRRRRRPRRRRRPRPRS

GOVERNMENT OF CANADA AND OTHER GOVERNMENTS:
Agriculture Income Disaster Assistance Program.........ccccceeecuvveeeeeeessuvvneeenn
Agriculture Policy FrameWOrK...........cuuviiiieeiiiiiiiiiee e
Airport Capital Equipment and PAPI'S.........ccuvvvieei e
Canada Student LOAN ACT..........cooiiiiiiiie e
Child SUPPOIt GUIEIINES......ceieeiiiiiiiiiiee et e e e e e e e eeaaaae s
Disaster ASSISTANCE. .........ccuiiiiiiiie i
Drug TreatMent FUNG..........ooiiiiiiiiee e e e e e e e e e
EdUCAtion ProgramsS..........ooiiiiiiiiieeee e e e
Flin FION AQrEEMENT.......uviiiiei et e e e e e a e e e e e snaeaaaaaeeeas
INFrastrUCTUrE PrOgramS. ......ciiiiiiieiie ettt
Migratory Waterfowl Program
NAONAl SAELY......eeeiieieeii e
NALIVE COUMWOTKET ... tiiiiiiiie ettt et e e

OffiCial LANQUAGES. ... veeieeeeieeiitiieee ettt e e e st e e e e s st eeeeeannnees
Older Worker Pilot Project
Promotion of Official Languages
Red RIVET FIOOAWAY.......coiiiiiiiiiiiiiie ettt e e e e e naeaeeea e e enes

RefUNAS fOF SEIVICES. .....coiiiiiiiiiii e
SPECIAI PrOJECES. ..ciiii ittt e e e e e e e a e e e e
WINEEN ROAAS. .....eiiiiiiieiitie ettt
YoUuNg OffENEIS ACL.....cci ettt e e e e e e e e e e e nnneaes

INTEREST INCOME:
Province of Manitoba Sinking FUNd............cccceeeiiiiiiiiie e
Other INVESIMENTS.......cocuiiiiiiiie e

Carried FOrward...........oooooiiiiiii
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2017 2016
$ $

6,261,570 5,911,033
48,978,264 42,529,963
227,748,000 216,042,000
23,424,745 20,588,032
30,999,936 29,665,277
2,232,803 1,315,492
135,415 1,409,696
246,350,988 236,113,094
21,215,309 23,960,754
607,347,030 577,535,341
5,031,469 8,410,726
107,332 107,332
912,878 1,068,998
2,485,078 3,339,811
765,093 1,253,713
574,325,684 457,026,035
- 304,246
13,274 1,513,274
- 46,230
5,987,055 863,470
24,500 44,330
241,499 241,499
36,357 86,749
15,036,540 14,778,240
38,489 132,097
57,500 285,800
6,859,430 6,859,430
107,689 -
14,505,792 5,374,897
- 6,956,500
5,629,060 5,274,060
632,164,719 513,967,437
6,443,419 8,139,012
3,221,115 964,950
9,664,534 9,103,962
1,249,176,283 1,100,606,740



PROVINCE OF MANITOBA PUBLIC ACCOUNTS 2016-17

2017 2016
$ $
Brought FOrWAI..........cccoiiiiiiiiiee et e e e 1,249,176,283 1,100,606,740
GOVERNMENT ORGANIZATIONS AND GOVERNMENT
BUSINESS ENTERPRISES:
Manitoba Agricultural Services COrporation.............ccoccuvvvreeeeisiivvireeeeeesiennenns 13,276,294 12,042,734
Manitoba Health Services Insurance Plan...........ccccoooiiiiiiiiiiieeii, 76,781,546 -
Manitoba Hydro-Electric BOard.............ccoocviiiieeeiiiiiiiiee et a e 966,276 560,503
Manitoba Liquor and Lotteries Corporation.............ccuueveeeeeiiivireieeessiniinieeeeen 23,724,607 10,671,001
Other Government Organizations ..........ccueeeeeeeeicuiieeeeeesseiireee e e e s sreaeeeeee e e, 8,991,740 2,304,433
123,740,463 25,578,671
OTHER:
MPIC Appeals COMMISSION.........uuiiieeeiiiiiiiieeeeseeiireree e e s s sirreaae e e s snarreraeee e, - 795,841
Queen's Bench SUitors TrusSt.........ccoooeiiiiiiiiii 30,737 30,737
SOCIAI AIIOWANCE.......ooeeiii e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e eeaaaans 23,417,945 22,899,245
LT o [V RSP 305,055 275,688
Sundry Departmental REVENUE. ...........ccoiiiiiiiiee et e e saraaaa e 142,192,888 152,134,321
LI D LT A E o [ U PSRRI 24,131 9,418
165,970,756 176,145,250
Amounts Receivable Before Valuation Allowance 1,538,887,502 1,302,330,661
Less: Valuation AlIOWEANCE...........cooiiuiiiieeeiiiiiiiiee e 251,654,609 221,065,825
AMOUNTS RECEIVABLE 1,287,232,893 1,081,264,836

NOTE: Certain of the 2015-2016 figures have been reclassified to be consistent with the 2016-2017 presentation.
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2016
Valuation
Amount Allowance Net
$ $ $

152,140 - 152,140
14,494,494 - 14,494,494
23,616,247 3,634,380 19,981,867
12,461,499 3,073,862 9,387,637
200,000 - 200,000
1,609,482 - 1,609,482
5,900,000 5,900,000 -
595,477,521 20,492,952 574,984,569
96,070,796 24,805,767 71,265,029
500,000 - 500,000
970,185,178 183,698,579 786,486,599
14,436,151,460 - 14,436,151,460
414,213,314 - 414,213,314
36,100,000 - 36,100,000
26,961,071 - 26,961,071
28,595,000 - 28,595,000
159,409,371 - 159,409,371
124,052,819 - 124,052,819
22,185,799 - 22,185,799
10,624,176 - 10,624,176
1,197,055 - 1,197,055
528,302,852 - 528,302,852
139,961,574 - 139,961,574
250,000 250,000 -
250,000 - 250,000
17,648,921,848 241,855,540 17,407,066,308
17,648,921,848 241,855,540 17,407,066,308

Carried Forward

LOANS AND ADVANCES
As at March 31, 2017

GOVERNMENT ORGANIZATIONS AND GOVERNMENT
BUSINESS ENTERPRISES
Assiniboine Community College
Brandon University
Communities Economic Development Fund:
Business Loan Program
Fisherman's Loan Program
Compensation for Victims of Crime
Co-operative Loans and Loans Guarantee
Leaf Rapids Town Properties
Manitoba Agricultural Services Corporation............c.cccceeenee
Manitoba Development Corporation - Advances (Note 1)......
Manitoba Development Corporation - Loans............ccccecuveee...
Manitoba Housing and Renewal Corporation...
Manitoba Hydro-Electric Board
Manitoba Liquor and Lotteries Corporation
Manitoba Water Services Board
Northern Affairs Fund
Public School Divisions
Red River College
Special Operating Agencies
Sport Manitoba Inc
Université de Saint-Boniface
University College of the North
University of Manitoba
University of Winnipeg
Venture Manitoba Tours Ltd
Workers Compensation Board

2017
Valuation
Amount Allowance Net
$ $ $

11,148 - 11,148
14,802,356 - 14,802,356
22,483,425 4,364,380 18,119,045
12,790,088 3,073,862 9,716,226
200,000 - 200,000
1,656,663 - 1,656,663
6,400,000 6,400,000 -
669,074,312 17,951,639 651,122,673
76,947,222 24,666,991 52,280,231
500,000 - 500,000
1,009,116,337 183,698,579 825,417,758
16,340,570,893 - 16,340,570,893
420,599,117 - 420,599,117
30,300,000 - 30,300,000
30,161,882 - 30,161,882
139,723,643 - 139,723,643
179,198,084 - 179,198,084
131,524,577 - 131,524,577
33,510,992 - 33,510,992
10,541,362 - 10,541,362
1,141,389 - 1,141,389
530,299,338 - 530,299,338
138,666,228 - 138,666,228
250,000 250,000 -
250,000 - 250,000
19,800,719,056 240,405,451 19,560,313,605
19,800,719,056 240,405,451 19,560,313,605

/1-9102 SINNODJV JI79Nd YAOLINVIN 4O ONIANOHd
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2016

Valuation
Amount Allowance Net
$ $ $

17,648,921,848 241,855,540 17,407,066,308
325,923 - 325,923
30,612,882 - 30,612,882
3,835,145 3,835,145 -
116,794,348 13,948,491 102,845,857
140,000 - 140,000
102,771 102,771 -
455,916 - 455,916
123,936 - 123,936
152,390,921 17,886,407 134,504,514
17,801,312,769 259,741,947 17,541,570,822

NOTE: Certain of the 2015-2016 figures have been reclassified to be consistent with the 2016-2017 presentation.

Brought FOrward............occoveeiiiiiiee e

OTHERS

Advances to Employees and Others re:

Travel and Other EXPENSES......ccccvcuviveeiiuiiieeeiiieeeesiineeeeeeens
Health and Social Services AQeNCIES.........cccvveeviiiiieerinneen.
Manitoba Potash Corporation.............cccceeeeviiieeeeiiiieee e
Manitoba Student Loan Service Bureau.............ccccocvveeenveenee
Regional Employment AgeNCIEeS..........ccccuvveeeiiiireeeiiiieeeesinns
Rural Economic Development Initiatives Program................
Treaty Indian FUel TaX......ccoioveeeiiiiee e

TOTAL LOANS AND ADVANCES

2017
Valuation
Amount Allowance Net
$ $ $

19,800,719,056 240,405,451 19,560,313,605
319,470 - 319,470
30,539,247 - 30,539,247
3,835,145 3,835,145 -
126,079,983 16,415,080 109,664,903
140,000 - 140,000
455,916 - 455,916
247,068 - 247,068
161,616,829 20,250,225 141,366,604
19,962,335,885 260,655,676 19,701,680,209

/1-9102 SINNODJV JI79Nd YAOLINVIN 4O ONIANOHd
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NOTE 1:

Advances made to the Manitoba Development Corporation consisted of the following:

Loans and equity investments made under authority of the Lieutenant Governor in Council under the Manitoba Development Corporation Act:

CENIESTONE VEINIUIE.....ceiiiiiiiie ittt ettt et et e e et e e e st e e e e e et e e e e s as b et e e e e an e e e e e snr et e e naneeeesannneeenanns
(31 VoLV T 1 o 1= SRS
(0] (o] gy AVo N == To3 c: Vo [ o TS ESSUPSR
CP Loewen Enterprises...
(1= ol 1= T PP P PR OVPPTUPTPUP
HD =P EEIOIBUM. ...ttt a e b et et e e bt e e bt e e b e e e e et e e eab e e e be e e she e e beeesnbeeenbneeennes
Intelligent HOSPItAl SYSIEIMS INC......ciiiiiiiiie et e et e e e e s e e e st e e e e s nsbe e e e e e saaaeeeesntneeaansaeaeaanes
Magellan Aerospace 2 Ltd
Manitoba Science & Technology Fund
IMIEAICUIE INC..eiie ettt ekttt ettt e a et e b et oo sttt ek bt e e a bt e e bt e e e et e e e embe e abb e e enb e e e bneesntee e e

PremMIEr HOTTICUITUIE..... . ettt ettt e e et e e e st e e e s nb e e e e e sta e e e e s staeaeessteaeennssaaaeennseeeenns
Sightline Innovation
I8 L= N o T 1 o o o £SO PERSPPRR
WINNIPEQ AIrPOItS AULNOTILY . ... veieee et e s e e e s e e e e e e e e e stee e e e s snseeeeeesnnaeeeeeannsaeeessnaeeeeannneees

3,408,522
6,690,121
3,153,132
13,175,000
6,745,421
3,100,000
306,666
14,990,000
1,832,233
2,222,222
500,000
2,000,000
2,843,750
15,980,155

76,947,222

/1-9102 SINNODJV JI79Nd YAOLINVIN 4O ONIANOHd
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2016
Valuation
Amount Allowance Net
$ $ $

100 100 -
1 - 1
7,500,000 7,055,223 444,777
1,370,718 1,370,718 -
8,870,819 8,426,041 444,778
2,025,801 2,025,801 -
10,896,620 10,451,842 444,778
1 - 1
1 - 1
1 - 1
5,000,000 5,000,000 -
2,000,000 2,000,000 -
7,000,003 7,000,000 3
17,896,623 17,451,842 444,781

LONG-TERM INVESTMENTS
As at March 31, 2017

SHARES OF GOVERNMENT ORGANIZATIONS

Common Shares

Leaf Rapids Town Properties Ltd. - 100 shares...................
Manitoba Development Corporation - 10 shares..................
Manitoba Hazardous Waste Management Corporation -
75,000 SNAIES...uuueeieiiieiiieeeeeeeee e
Venture Manitoba Tours Ltd. - 3,643,500 shares.................

Preferred Shares
Leaf Rapids Town Properties Ltd. -
26,210, 8.15% dividend, non-cumulative redeemable.........

Total Shares of Government Organizations.............cccceeeeees

OTHER INVESTMENTS AT COST

Common Shares

Manitoba ARC Authority - 1 share........cccccoecvveeeiciiee e,
North Portage Development Corporation - 1 share..............
Inter Provincial Lottery Corporation - 1 share............cc.c.......
Manitoba Potash Corporation - 1,000,000 shares................
Special Shares

Crocus Investment Fund - 2,000,000 shares.............cc.c......

Total Other INVeStMENtS...........ccccviiiiiiiieeeeeeeeeeceee

TOTAL LONG-TERM INVESTMENTS

2017
Valuation
Amount Allowance Net
$ $ $

100 100 -
1 - 1
7,500,000 7,055,223 444,777
1,370,718 1,370,718 -
8,870,819 8,426,041 444,778
2,025,801 2,025,801 -
10,896,620 10,451,842 444,778
1 - 1
1 - 1
5,000,000 5,000,000 -
2,000,000 2,000,000 -
7,000,002 7,000,000 2
17,896,622 17,451,842 444,780

/1-9102 SINNODJV JI79Nd YAOLINVIN 4O ONIANOHd



PROVINCE OF MANITOBA PUBLIC ACCOUNTS 2016-17

CHANGES IN VALUATION ALLOWANCE

For the Year Ended March 31, 2017

2017 2016
$ $
Balance, beginning Of YEaI...........cuiii i 277,193,789 275,317,954
Increase (Decrease) in Valuation Allowance
Communities Economic Development Fund:

BUSINESS LOAN Program...........uuiiieeiiiiiiiie e et e e s s a e e e e s iaaaa e e e e s e ensennees 730,000 730,000
Leaf Rapids Town Properties Ltd...........oooviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeees 500,000 1,900,000
Manitoba Agricultural Services COrporation............cccuueereeeerieiieeeeeeesssieeeeeeeeenn, (2,218,624) 2,305,956
Manitoba Development COrpOration............ooocuueeeieeeiiiiiieieee e (138,776) (1,835,528)
Manitoba STUAENT LOANS.........civvieiieeieeiieie e et e e et e e e e et e e e e s e aaaaaaas 2,483,089 668,354
Rural Economic Development Initiative Program.... (1,093) (524)
Manitoba ARC AUthOrity - 1 SNAE........ccoiiiiiiiiie e 1 -

1,354,597 3,768,258
Write-Down(Off) of Loans, Advances and Long-Term Investments
Communities Economic Development Fund:

Fisherman's Loan Program...........c.uuuieeeiiioiiiiiiee et e e e e e sanaeaa e - 414,510
Manitoba Agricultural Services COrporation.............cccuueereeeeeieireeeeeeessseeeeeeeesenn, 322,689 1,307,249
Manitoba Student Loans 36,907 170,664
Rural Economic Development Initiative Program 81,271 -
Manitoba ARC AUthOrity - 1 SNAIE.......ccciiiiiiiiiie e 1 -

440,868 1,892,423
Balance, €Nd Of YEAI.........coi e, 278,107,518 277,193,789
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Manitoba Public Insurance Co

TRUST ASSETS

As at March 31, 2017

rporation:

Access Roads EAmonton Ltd............ccceeeeviieeiiiiie e

Aquila LPA.........cooviveii

BC Municipal Financing Authority..........ccccoeeeveiiiieeiiiee e
Canada Housing Trust.........cccceeevveeeenee.

Canada-Labrador Island Lin

K (CANLIL oo,
Canada Maritime Link Financing Trust.........cccccccevveeviieeciiee e,
Canada-Muskrat Falls.........

ENSIS Investment Ltd. Partnership

Equity Investments..............

First Gas Topco LTl.............

Global Diversified Infrastructure Fund...........c.ccocvveeviieeiiiee e,

Government of Canada Bonds...........ccccceeveeeiiiieeiiie e,

Halton Region............ccc.......

Manitoba Capital Fund Ltd..........cccccoviieiiiiiiiiee e

Manitoba Health Institutions
Manitoba Municipal Bonds..
New Foundland Hydro.........

Province of Ontario..............

Province of Prince Edward |
Province of Quebec
Province of Saskatchewan..
PSP Capital Inc...................
Quebec Hydro Bonds..........
Real Estate Investments...

sland........cooeeiviiec

Voyager Investments Ltd. BanK...........cccoeeriiieiiiiieiiiee e
Western Life Sciences Venture Fund.............cccccoeviiiieeeeeeecinnns

Winnipeg Airport Authority...
York Region.........ccceveueeennne

Manitoba Public Insurance Co

Carried Forward

FPOFALION. ...
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2017 2016
$ $
3,947,887 4,042,459
39,726,250 39,726,250
7,483,878 7,483,878
4,996,900 4,060,020
10,608,550 10,608,550
4,983,050 4,983,050
11,047,900 11,047,900
1,435,170 1,435,170
82,566,296 111,519,068
2,994,390 2,994,390
1 1
548,629 548,629
339,298,673 427,736,153
13,553,617 -
18,484,125 18,484,125
39,005,220 88,215,600
1,990,360 1,990,360
1,673,200 1,673,200
- 13,352,000
16,064,611 8,538,005
4,259,320 -
7,979,280 7,979,280
106,916,643 53,801,344
50,024,364 12,386,200
129,218,301 175,873,623
53,137,518 59,835,586
62,935,405 43,498,675
80,556,175 81,063,975
235,010,907 118,542,728
21,567,080 21,567,080
93,652,332 77,087,262
73,236,776 61,253,450
8,748,263 11,424,810
18,545,770 18,545,770
135,000,000 135,000,000
4,276,139 4,663,330
628,132,921 611,225,974
11,000,000 11,000,000
1 1
15,430,491 15,702,216
10,540,797 10,540,797
2,350,577,190 2,289,430,909
2,350,577,190 2,289,430,909
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Brought Forward...

Manitoba Development COrporation............ccoovevveereesveeneeseeeneeens

Red River College..........c.ccceuv....

The Suitors' Money Act -

Cash in Canadian Imperial Bank of Commerce............ccccccvveeeeennn,

CASH AND EQUIVALENTS

64

2017 2016
$ $
2,350,577,190 2,289,430,909
17,339,777 21,577,180
25,346,130 23,360,184
14,097,533 11,711,751
2,407,360,630 2,346,080,024
1,803,948,922 2,016,863,079
4,211,309,552 4,362,943,103
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ACCOUNTS PAYABLE, ACCRUED CHARGES,

PROVISIONS AND DEFERRALS

As at March 31, 2017

2017 2016
$ $
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE:
ACCOUNLS PAYADIE. ...t e e et e e e e e et e e e e e e et e e e e e e anenns 417,464,445 490,094,960
Community Colleges 194,875 250,050
Contractual Holdbacks 19,047,807 17,448,124
Debenture Coupons due, but NOt PreSENted...........c..vuviiiee i 314,473 314,473
Drug Utilization Management AQreemMENt.........ccuuuuriieeeiiiiiieieee e e s e e e e sseenee e e e e s asnneeneees 3,847,432 3,823,425
Manitoba Savings Bonds matured, but not presented for payment.............cccccvvveeeeeiinnnnnn. 560,349 565,449
Manitoba Tax Credit Programs..........oouuueieiie it e e 312,684,250 309,480,500
MiNING TaX REFUNG.........eeiiiiiie et e e e e e e e e e s en e e e e e e s snneaneaaaeeanes 3,269,945 2,301,688
Social Programs - Family Services and Health Programs............cccccoeviiiiieeiiiiinniiieeeeeee 25,361,744 35,220,982
TaAXALON REFUNOS... ... e e e e ettt e e e e e bbb e e e e s e seab e e e e s e eeabaaaaes 57,771,937 47,305,534
TUILION TaX REDALE. ... . e e e e e e e e eaaeas 73,125,000 64,125,000
913,642,257 970,930,185
GOVERNMENT ORGANIZATIONS AND GOVERNMENT
BUSINESS ENTERPRISES:
Communities Economic Development FUNG............oooiiiiiiiiieeiiiiiee e, 2,389,537 2,389,537
Government Organizations - Severance Liability.............cccovvveieiiiiiiiie e 136,955,063 136,712,840
Government Organizations - Vacation Liability.............ccccociiiiiiie e, 126,810,749 126,669,692
Manitoba Agricultural Services COrpOration..............ccuureereeeeirriiereeeeessassenerreeesssneeneeeaeeaas 1,849,262 1,504,149
268,004,611 267,276,218
ACCRUED CHARGES:
Interest accrued on Provincial Debentures, Savings Bonds, Treasury Bills and Trust
Funds, less amounts thereof payable by Government Organizations or Other Entities... 178,997,956 184,161,365
Other Accrued Liabilities:
2o | 1 =T OSSPSR 17,225,206 16,922,874
Canadian Agricultural Income Stabilization Program............ccccoeviiiiiiiiienniniiiiieee e 34,476,931 36,978,467
Compensation for VIictims Of CHME.........cocuuiiiire et e e a e e e s s saanaaaae e 20,316,000 20,842,000
DiISASLEr ASSISTANCE .....eiiieiieiiiie ettt s e s e e 180,697,500 187,992,436
Economic Development Partnership AQreemeNt.........c.vuvvveeeeiieiiiieeeee e cciiieee e e e e esenveeeee s 463,900 363,664
Fairford First NALION. .......ccoiiiiiiiiiie e 5,838,000 5,838,000
[ oToTo @ =11y 4TSRS 56,254,716 103,234,751
INfrastructure WOrksS PrOgram.........ooiuiueiiiee it e e e e e e 8,336,746 13,611,713
Liabilities for Contaminated SIteS..........cuuuuiiiiiiiiiiiii e e e e e e e e ee e e e e e e raaa e es 280,350,132 289,651,651
[OF= T g T=To I alo T 1= (o 603,959,131 675,435,556
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2017 2016
$ $
Brought FOIWAID..........coiuiiiiiiiiiiiiee e 603,959,131 675,435,556
LoNg Term DiSabilitieS. .......covuiiiiiee ettt e s e e e e e e 38,482,000 35,240,000
SAlaries AN BeNETIES. .. ..uuue i e e e e e e e e e e e e 101,954,285 175,331,583
Salaries and Benefits - Severance.... 128,488,878 119,981,934
Workers CompeNnsation BOAIM.............coiiiuiiiieieeiiiiiiiee e e seieie e e e e s ee e e e s e ssnaaeeeeeeeennes 41,357,200 35,473,702
U 3o [P SURTOP RPN 14,910,297 15,554,699
929,151,791 1,057,017,474
PROVISION FOR FUTURE LOSSES ON GUARANTEES:
CO-OPEIALIVE LOBNS. ...ttt ittt ettt ettt ettt ettt ettt hb et e et e et e e bt e aabeenineas 1,788,453 64,453
[ g T 0T T I o o T [ =0 o TSP 262,500 262,500
Manitoba Agricultural Services COrpOration............oicuvurieeeeiiiiiiiieee e e siirreeee e 12,295,848 13,121,695
MaNItoDA GIrOW BONAS.......oiiiiieiiii et e e e e e e e e e e e e e b e e e e e e eaabaeeeeaeens 2,500,000 2,500,000
Rural Entrepreneurial ASSIStanCe Program...........oviiiiiiiiiieeiiiiiiiieee e siireee e 2,230,923 1,743,955
Venture Manitoba TOUIS LE........ooveuuieiiiiiieeee et e e e e e e s e e e e e e e e aaaaaas 564,705 564,705
(@1 =T T TSSO P PO PR PPRPPUPRPTIN 40,412 40,412
19,682,841 18,297,720
DEFERRALS:
Deferred Revenue
COUrS - FINE REMITIANCES. ....couiiiiiiiiie ittt 61,086,073 58,322,552
Cottage Lots 626,231 1,097,103
Government of Canada - Advances re: Shared Cost Programs Not Yet Claimed.............. 10,989,593 9,589,298
VENICIE REGISITALION. .. . iiiieiiiiiiiiiee e e s et e e e e s e e e e e e e e e e e e e e saat e e e aeeesssssanaaaeeeannsenneeens 85,029,059 83,325,243
(@1 =T T TSP PP OU ST PPRRPRUPRTIN 58,433,639 56,755,834
216,164,595 209,090,030
2,5625,644,051 2,706,772,992
NOTE: Certain of the 2015-2016 figures have been reclassified to be consistent with the 2016-2017 presentation.
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AMOUNTS HELD IN TRUST FOR INVESTMENT OR ADMINISTRATION

As at March 31, 2017

GOVERNMENT BUSINESS ENTERPRISES

ON DEPOSIT FOR INVESTMENT:
Manitoba Hydro-EIeCtriC BOArd...........coouiiuiiiiieeiiiiiiieeee e

Manitoba Public Insurance Corporation

GOVERNMENT ORGANIZATIONS

ON DEPOSIT FOR INVESTMENT:
Communities Economic Development FUNd............ccoooiiiiviee e

Community Colleges -
Assiniboine CommMUNItY COIEGE. ......iceiiiiiiiiiee e
University College of the NOIMh...........uiiiiii e
REA RIVET COlIEUE. ... iiiieiiiiiieiie ettt e e e e e e e e e s e aaaaee e,
Red River College Bursary and Scholarship Fund............ccccveviiiiiiiiinnenniies
Red River College Student BUilding..........ccooiiuviiiieeiiiiiiiiee e e seivien e e

Crown Corporations COUNCIL..........coiuurriiieeeiiiiiiiee e e e s e e s seanreeeeeeaas

Leaf Rapids Town Properties LiIMited...........ccuuueieeeiiiiiiiieie e eciieeee e e seieeee e

Ligquor & Gaming Authority of Manitoba.............ccoociuiiiiieiiiii e

Manitoba Agricultural Services COrporation.............occcuueeeeeeeriiiiieeeeeeessciieeeeeeenenns

Manitoba ArtS COUNCIL..........oiiiiiiiiiiii e,

Manitoba Centennial Centre Corporation..............ueeeeeeircciieeeeeeeeieiieeeeeeeseeeaeeeeeens

Manitoba Centennial Centre Corporation - Foundation of the Future.....................

Manitoba Development Corporation

Manitoba Habitat Heritage COrporation.........cccccovecvveeeieeeiiiiiiieeee e
Manitoba Horse Racing COMMISSION.........uuiiiiiiiiiiiiieee e et e e e e siaree e e e e e
Manitoba Opportunities FUN Ltd..........cuuveiiiiiiiie e
Special Operating Agencies -
Crown Lands and Property AQENCY........ocuuuuiieeeiiiiiiiieeeeeasniiiieeeeesssnenneeeaeessnnees
Entrepreneurship Manitoba..............uuviieiiiiiiiie e,
FOOd DeVvelopmMENt CENIIE........ciiiiiiiiiiiee et e s erraee e e e
Industrial Technology CENIIE..........ciiiiiiiciiiiee e e e e e e enaees
Manitoba Education, Research, and Learning Information Networks...................
Manitoba Financial SErviCeS AQENCY.........ciuiicurriieeeeeeiiiieeeeeeeseereereeeeeesnnreeeeeens
Manitoba Learning RESOUICE CeNLIE.........oiiuuiiiieeeiiiiiiiiiie et e e e
Materials Distribution AQENCY.........uuviiiiiiiiiiiiiie e e
Office of the Fire Commissioner

Pineland FOreSt NUISEIY.........c.uuuiiiee ettt e e s a e e e e nnnaaaee s
Public Guardian and Trustee of Manitoba................ccccoviiiie
Vehicle and Equipment Management AQENCY........cccuuvveeeeerieciveeeeeeeeesiieeeee e e,
Vital Statistics
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2017 2016
$ $

525,000,000 820,000,000
2,412,618,153 2,346,347,878
2,937,618,153 3,166,347,878
507,247 610,077
18,465,894 16,746,268
11,735,663 12,805,744
2,673,108 704,791
28,353,673 25,343,304
- 243,433
313,454 311,553
832 827
4,824,649 4,492,934
509,637,774 412,275,044
281,388 256,586
200,252 412,522
107,622 107,024
104,201,170 93,095,782
- 450,000
272,492 270,982
16,373,617 16,881,476
672,673 672,658
7,075,504 7,037,262
496,737 494,226
252,605 509,549
417,945 76,341
21,583,065 23,087,002
64,195 64,195
512,000 512,000
8,726,634 8,683,474
187,033 187,033
9,240,500 11,940,500
1,432,858 1,432,858
93,900 93,900
748,704,484 639,799,345
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2017 2016
$ $
ON DEPOSIT FOR ADMINISTRATION:
CPSE .ttt et 487,422 -
Manitoba Agricultural Services COrporation.............occcuveeeeeeeeisiiieeeeeeeseiieeeeeeeeenns 57,645,461 58,515,018
Manitoba Development COrPOration............ooivuieiieeeiiiiiiiieeee e, 981,106 763,812
Manitoba Floodway and East Side Road AUthOrity............ccceviieeeeeiiiiiiiieee e 9,040,661 7,945,945
Liguor & Gaming Authority of Manitoba.............ccoociiiiiiiiiiiiie e 272,318 788,993
Manitoba Health Services INSUrance Plan.............ceeiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeeeeeeie s 317,052,112 364,209,000
Manitoba Housing and Renewal Corporation............cccccouvvvieieeeeiiiiiiiiieee e 78,308 18,420
Manitoba Water SEervices BOArd.........cooooeiivveuieiieiiiieiiee et e e 15,968 2,858
Public Schools Finance Board -
Capital Facilities Payroll.............uuveeiiiiiiiiece et e e nannee s 24,585 55,276
Special Operating Agencies -
Entrepreneurship Manitoba............c..uuiiieiiiciiiiec e, 2,284,474 1,533,735
Green Manitoba ECO SOIULIONS. ........ccuiiiiiiiiiiiiiiciiie e 2,380,739 2,276,712
Industrial TechNology CENIIE..........ciiiiiiiciiiiee e e e e e e e 9,266 -
Manitoba Financial Services Agency 509,117 656,652
Materials Distribution AQENCY.........uuviiiiiiiiiiiiie e e e 343,346 501,507
Manitoba Education, Research, and Learning Information Networks................... 11,746 56,054
Office of the Fire COMMISSIONET.........ccuuuieiiiiiiiieiee et 12,109,187 10,718,420
Public Guardian and Trustee of Manitoba................ccccoviiiis 120,023 340,295
Vehicle and Equipment Management AQENCY........cccuuvvveeeeeieciieeeeeeeeesiianeeeee e, - 1,084,497
VItAl SEALISTICS. ...ttt 260,011 113,268
Special Operating Agencies Financing AUthOrity............ccceeeeeiecciieeee e 452,348 596,609
404,078,198 450,177,071
FIDUCIARY AND OTHER GOVERNMENT RELATED TRUSTS
ON DEPOSIT FOR INVESTMENT:
Agencies Self Insurance 20,416,162 20,304,358
Cormorant Community Council 111,158 235,822
Criminal Property Forfeiture FUNd CounCil.............oovieiiiiiiiiiee e 1,280,735 1,273,640
Critical Wildlife Habitat Program.............ccccoiiiiiiiiieeiiiicceee e 123,728 123,046
Domtar Perpetual Care Security Fund 592,143 588,863
Employee Charitable DONAtiONS............ccoiiiiiiiiiiiiie e, 2,171,114 2,228,065
Easterville Community COUNCIl...........uuiiiiiiiiiiiiiee e eee e e 40,875 40,648
FEABTAI GAS TAX...eiiiutiieiiiiie ettt et e e e e 6,738,249 5,284,200
Government Departments -
FINANCE - SUNAIY TIUSL....oeeiieeiee e e e e 3,891 1,281
Highways - Dealer BONAS...........cccuuuiiiiieiiiiiiiee et e e e e e e e e saaeeeaa e e 118,420 117,764
Justice - Civil Litigation BranCh............coooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiee e 2,198,603 2,486,513
Labour - Employment Standards............cccuviiieeeiiiiiiirie e e e e e 144,907 134,181
Hudson Bay Co. Archives............ccuueeee... 84,056 108,993
Manitoba Developmental Centre 157,939 157,064
[OF= T g T=To I o] V= 1 o [N 34,181,980 33,084,438
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Brought FOrWAIT..........ccoiiiiiiiiiiee et e s e e e e e e e e,

Manitoba Transit AQrEEMENL.........uuviiieee e e eeciiiiee e e e e s e e e e e e e e e e e eeeae e e e,
Mitigation PIerson WIMAL .......ooie et e e e e s e e e e e e nnees
MLA Pension Funds
Nelson House Community Council
NOrthern COMMUINILIES. .......uuiiiiiiie et e e eaaeeas

Norway House Community COUNCIL...........cooeiiiiiiiiiiiieiiiieeee e
Provincial Archives BEQUESES..........cccuuiiiiee e ieiiiieee ettt e e e e e e e e nnnaaeeee e,
Provincial/Territorial Base Funding AQreement............ccvvevveeeiiiiiiiineee e
PUDIIC ULIItIES BOAIT. ... eeeeiiiieeeiiie ettt
Selkirk Mental Health Centre...........cooiuiiiiiiiiiiiiec e
Sherridon Community COUNCIL........cccuuuiiiiee it e e e e eearaaee e
Strategic INVESIMENT FUNG..........ooiiiiiie e
Training Completion FUNG............ooiiiiiiiiiee e e e e e e enareeee e
Treaty Land Entitlement - Timber Dues
Water StEWArAdSNIP. .. ..veeei et e e a e e e e e e e

ON DEPOSIT FOR ADMINISTRATION:
Aboriginal Education Research FOrum...........cccuvvveeeiiiiiiiiiee e

Agencies Self Insurance
Amounts Collected on Behalf of Municipalities

and Local Governments re: Permits and Leases...........cccvvevviieeiiiiieiiiiee e
Assiniboine Community College ReNOVations............ccooccvviiereeeiiiciiieeee e seiineeeennn
Brandon Chiller Project
Builders' Lien ACt........ccccevieeeeniiieeennnen.

Canada-Manitoba Fisheries InitiatiVe............cccocviiiiiiiiiiiiie e

Canadian Heritage CENIIE..........cevieiiiiciiiiee e e e ettt e e e e e e e e e e st e e e e e e s ennaeeeee s
Churchill Regional Health AUtNOTILY..........ooouviiiiiiiiie e
Clean Environment Commission - Participant Assistance Program.......................
CommMUNILY CONNECHIONS ....eeiieiiiiiiiiiee e ettt e e e e e e s e e e e e e e s e eneeees
Conferences and Seminars...

CONSUMET PrOtECHION ACL........iiiiiiiiiieiiiee ettt
Contractual HOIADACKS. ..........uiiiiiiieiiii et
Cooperative Parks PromotioN.............eeeiiiiiiiiiiieeee e
Crime Prevention AWAIS. ........cooi it ee ettt e e sibe e ie e e neeeesaee
Criminal Property FOrfeiture ACt...........uvviii e,
Criminal Property Forfeiture Legal FEES..........cvuiiiieiiiiiiiiiie e
DEAIEI'S BONM.....cciiiiiiiiiiie ittt

Carried FOrWard..........cooooeiiii i,
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2017 2016
$ $
34,181,980 33,084,438
221,464 220,237
369,065 256,063
- 54,155
111,065 110,440
4,983,180 5,148,945
242,814 444,333
46,667 46,410
3,885,565 6,024,781
1,881 1,871
42,262 42,027
241,357 226,469
4,687,393 -
2,733,589 1,719,874
26,630 26,483
779,180 808,982
52,554,092 48,215,508
16,051 21,540
13,177,642 9,832,226
1,708,982 1,671,181
178,239 178,239
84,279 84,279
4,701,672 4,523,060
16,700 16,700
25,744 25,744
261,230 261,230
35,681 20,681
2,454,282 2,931,459
246,908 510,182
262,492 242,992
3,563,445 5,598,997
48,463 36,443
7,226 7,226
3,248,717 3,996,332
68,901 76,461
13,634 13,634
30,120,288 30,048,606
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Brought FOrWAIT..........ccoiiiiiiiiiiee et e s e e e e e e e e,

Donations - Manitoba School for the Deaf.............cccooiiiiiiiiiiii e
Employee Charitable Donations
FDC ProjeCt #L0B044.........oeeeeeeieeeeeee e e ettt e e e e e st e e e e e s e e e e e e s ssnnneaeeeeeesnnnenes
FEABTAI GAS TAX. . iiiutiieiiiiiie ettt ettt e e e et

Federal Proceeds Of ClHIME........cciiiuiiiiiie et e et e e e e e e e e e e araaeeeeeeeenes
Gates Library INItIAtiVe............eeiiiiiiie e
Guarantee Deposits..

INNOVALION TTUST.....eiiiiiiiieiiiie et
JUSEICE CONLINGENT.....eiiieeieiiiiiii et e e e e e e a e e e e s et e e e e e s s eserraaaeeeaan
JUAGES' PaArKiNg.....eeeeiiieiiiiiiee e
Land Sat TM Imagery UPate............uueeiieiiiiiiiiiie et e e e e svanee e e e e
Leaf RapidS TOWN PrOPEILY........ccuiiiiiiiiieieee et enneeeee s
LiDAR Data Acquisition
Lighthouse TrUSt FUNG..........uviiiiieeiie e
LOUISIANA PACITIC. ....cieeiiiiiiii e
MANGCOR. ...ttt b et bttt sat e bt bbb e e s e nne e,
Manitoba 2000 FAS CONFEIENCE.........ueiiiiiiieiiiee ettt
Manitoba JODS FUNG..........cciiiiiiii e
Manitoba Liquor and Lotteries Corporation............cc.uueeeeeeeeecireereeessisiireeeeeessssnenns
Manitoba Manager's NetWOrK...........ccooiiiiiiiiii e
Manitoba Opportunities FUN.............cooeiiiiiiiiiee e e e
Manitoba Potash Corporation..............eeiiiiiiiiiieeiiiiiice e
Manitoba Transit AQrEEMENL..........uviiieee e e eeciiieee e e e e s e e e e e e e e e e e eeeae e e e,
Manitoba Tree Improvement Co-op
Migratory Waterfowl Permits and Stamps..........ccoovvvriiieeeiiiiiiiiiee e cciieee e
IMINASEL ..ttt
Minister of Rural DEVEIOPMENL...........ceiiiiiiiiiiiieee e e e e e e e,
MiISSING ROYAILY OWNET.......oiiiiiiiiiiiiiiie et e e e e e e s e sneeee
M R E M SUSPENSE ACCOUNL. ...
National Forest Inventory
NCB EVAIUBLION. ....coitiiiiiiiiie ettt ettt e s e s eabe e e e anbeeeeas
Office of the AUdItOr GENETAl...........ccuviiiiiiiiiiiie e
Ortho REfreSh PrOgram..........cooicuiiiiiie ettt e et e e e e e e s snarae e e e e e e nnnenes
Paint Lake Fire Hall EXPanSION...........cciiiiiiiiiiiiieee e e e
Petroleum TaX & ROYAILY .......coeiiiiiiiiiiii et e e aaee e e e e
Program Partnership - MAF........ooi it
PVS - ACt SUrety ClaiMS.......couiiiiiiee ettt e e e e e sntara e e e e e s e nnenaees
Risk Mitigation CONFEIENCE. .......cceiiiiiiiiiiie e
Royalties - GEOCOMP SAIES........ccuuviiiieeiiiiiiiee e e e e e e e e s e e e e e e e saneaes

RUFAI FOTUML ...

Security Deposit Compensation Fund

Carried FOrward...........ooooiiiiiii
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2017
$

30,120,288

49,806
72,452
44,649
721,943
413,457
3,648,353
100,750
246,461
25,033
308,813
8,419
150,000
11,738
420,394
770,811
98,206
5,859
26,474
66,950
14,790
23,820
1,009
61,648
1,035
8,433,099
683,435
1,430
256,988
42,478
5,041
1,626
2,200
5,802,718

80,000

9,963

196,593

52,928,729

2016
$

30,048,606

50,306
78,952
44,649
598,008
163,313
1
3,484,109
62,459
7,572
308,813
9,158
11,738
782,313
743,815
68,556
5,859
26,474
176
14,790
11,865
6,009
61,648
36

353
7,331,437
519,775
15,218
244,044
42,478
5,041
1,626
2,400
17,847
75,000
2,625
9,963
10,185
164,741

45,031,958
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Training Completion Fund...

Veterinary Services - Recruitment FUN............cooviiiiiiiieie i
Victims Criminal Property GrantS.........cc.uuveeeeeiiiciiiieeeeeeiiiieeeaeesesinneeeeeesssnnneeeeees
Winnipeg FOIK FESHIVAL...........uuiiiiieiiic e
WiNNIPEQ PEIMILS....cci et e e e e e e e et e e e e e e s esnareeeeeeeennnnnes
WCEFS Internally ReStricted FUNGS. .........coviiiiiiiiiiei e

NOTE:

2017 2016
$ $

52,928,729 45,031,958
125,675 127,129
14,097,533 11,711,751
101,952 76,614
541,015 1,252,649
36,830 42,794

337,455 -
146,800 121,755

581 -
38,055 38,651
68,354,625 58,403,301
4,211,309,552 4,362,943,103

Certain of the 2015-2016 figures have been reclassified to be consistent with the 2016-2017 presentation.
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GUARANTEES
As at March 31, 2017

The Province has been authorized to guarantee the following promissory notes, loans, bank lines of credit, mortgages

and other securities:

Principal Amount

Outstanding
Under Guarantee
Guarantee As at
Purpose Authorized March 31, 2017
Assiniboine Community College.........ccooevviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeieeen, 1,500,000 -
Canadian Museum for Human Rights...........cccooeevviiiiieeeeee. 25,000,000 10,500,000
Entrepreneurship Manitoba...............uvvivviiiiiiiiiiiiiien, 5,000,000 3,779,000
Friends of Upper FOort Garry........ccoooeeeveeviieeeeeeeeeeieeeee e 2,000,000 1,447,363
Manitoba BlUE CroSS.......coouvieiiiiiiiiiiiee e 4,200,000 -
Manitoba Film Guarantee Program...........ccccceeeeeeeeveiviiieeeeennns 1,958,333 -
Manitoba Housing and Renewal Corporation 20,000,000 9,087,796
Manitoba Liquor & Lotteries Corporation.............ccceeeeeeeereennnnn. 45,000,000 -
Manitoba Opportunities Fund Ltd (NOte)............evvvvvvevvvevennnnns 121,468,832 121,468,832
Manitoba Student Aid Program.............ccceeeeeeeeiieeviiiieeeeeeeeenn. 20,000,000 67,061
Red RIVer College. ..., 10,000,000 4,400,000
Rural Municipality of RIChOt............ocvviiiiiiiiiee e 1,035,000 160,660
Sand Hills CasiNO.........ccovuiiiiiiiiiiiiee e 1,000,000 500,000
Triple B Stadium Inc 35,300,000 17,037,837
University College of The NOrth..........ceevvvvviviiiiiiieiiieiiiiieeeee 2,000,000 -
University of WiNNIPeQ.....cooeeeviveviieeieeeeeeiee e, 27,000,000 26,154,472
Venture Manitoba Tours Ltd..........cooceeeeiiiieneniiieeiiece e 250,000 -
Winnipeg Football Club/Canadian Football League............... 5,000,000 -
327,712,165 194,603,021
Securities Guaranteed by the Province -
The Manitoba Hydro-Electric Board.................... 88,043,000
Manitoba Grow Bonds..........ccceueveeiviiiiiiieeeieiees 2,500,000
90,543,000
285,146,021
Note: The Manitoba Development Corporation is administering these guarantees for the Province.
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CUSTODIAL TRUST FUNDS HELD BY THE
DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE AND OTHER GOVERNMENT DEPARTMENTS

As at March 31, 2017

Bonds
Cash Cash and Other 2017 2016
On Hand In Bank Securities Balance Balance
FINANCE:
Sustainable Development..............cccvvveennn. - - 338,470 338,470 338,470
Manitoba Development Corporation............ - - 1 1 1
Environmental Operations Divisions............ - - 500,000 500,000 500,000
Sport, Culture and Heritage............cccccoeen. - - 5,000 5,000 5,000
FiNANCE.....ccoiieeee e, - - 484,178 484,178 622,378
JUSHICE. ..t - - 46,030 46,030 46,030
Public Service Group
Insurance FuNd..........occvvvvvieeiiiiiiinneeenn, - - 123,749,723 123,749,723 124,565,449
OTHER GOVERNMENT
DEPARTMENTS:
Education and Training..........ccccceevvvvvveeeenn. - - - - 4,526
FamilieS. ..o 2,260 163,368 157,939 323,567 408,450
Growth, Enterprise and Trade..................... 66,030 165,128 176,480 407,638 428,504
Health, Seniors and Active Living 7,242 83,004 40,000 130,246 107,271
Indigenous and Municipal Relations............ 100 10,920,601 - 10,920,701 9,470,292
JUSHICE. ...t 20,505 6,577,055 - 6,597,560 5,976,875
96,137 17,909,156 125,497,821 143,503,114 142,473,246

The Department of Finance provides a safekeeping service for various departments, agencies, boards and

commissions. Other government departments also provide a safekeeping service of shares. These shares

as well as other items are not valued for inclusion in the above Custodial Trust Funds.

Bonds and other securities held as Custodial Trust Funds are shown at face or par value, except for

$124 million of Public Services Group Insurance Fund pooled investment funds for equities and unitized

Custodial Trust Funds arise where the Government's obligation is custodial in nature and there is little or no

administrative responsibility. Generally, the responsibility for investment of Custodial Trust Funds is that of

NOTE 1:
NOTE 2:
bonds, which are recorded at cost.
NOTE 3:
the depositor.
NOTE 4:
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STATEMENT OF THE TOTAL AMOUNT OF DEBT OR OBLIGATION
DUE HER MAJESTY WRITTEN OFF IN WHOLE OR IN PART

As Required by Section 24B of The Financial Administration Act
For the Year Ended March 31, 2017

$ $

AGRICULTURE (ll)

ACCOUNES RECEIVADIE. ... ..o e e e e e e e e e e e e s aa s 118,435

Manitoba Agricultural Services COrPOration............ooicuuieeeieeiiiiiieiee e e e e e 322,689 441,124
EDUCATION AND TRAINING (XVI)

ACCOUNES RECEIVADIE. ... ..o e e e e e e e e e e e e s aa s 43,041
ELECTIONS MANITOBA (XXXV)

Accounts Receivable. ... 325
FINANCE (VII)

AccomMmMOdation SEIVICES DIVISION........uuiiiiiiiiiiiiie e e e et e e e e s a e e e e s s eeaaaaaaas 3,269
FAMILIES (IX)

Accounts Receivable. ... 827,165
GROWTH, ENTERPRISE AND TRADE (X)

Accounts Receivable..............ooooo 786
HEALTH, SENIORS AND ACTIVE LIVING (XXI)

Accounts Receivable. ... 58,530
INFRASTRUCTURE (XV)

ACCOUNES RECEIVADIE.... ..o e e e e et e e s e e e raaaas 40,194
JUSTICE (1V)

Accounts Receivable. ... 2,479
SPORT, CULTURE AND HERITAGE (XIV)

Accounts Receivable..............ooooo 118
SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT (XII)

Accounts Receivable. ... 22,921

1,439,952
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STATEMENT OF SPECIAL WARRANTS OF HER HONOUR
THE LIEUTENANT-GOVERNOR OF MANITOBA

As Required by Section 32(1) of The Financial Administration Act
Issued Relative to the Year Ended March 31, 2017

PART A - OPERATING EXPENSES $

EDUCATION AND TRAINING (XVI)
February 8, 2017 16.5 SUPPOIt t0 SChOOIS......cciiuiiieiiiee e 722,000
February 8, 2017 16.7  Workforce Training and Immigration SErviCes..........ccccevveeeviuveeeiveenn, 4,420,000

FAMILIES (IX)
February 8, 2017 9.2 Community SErvice DElIVEIY........cccuiiiiiiiiiiie e 22,881,000
February 8, 2017 9.3 Community Engagement and Corporate ServiCes..........ccvvuvriveereervnaineen. 1,712,000

GROWTH, ENTERPRISE AND TRADE (X)

February 8, 2017 10.5 Community and ECOonomic Growth............ccocueeeiiiineniiie e 1,432,000

February 8, 2017 10.6 Resource Development 8,555,000
HEALTH, SENIORS AND ACTIVE LIVING (XXI)

February 8, 2017 21.3 Health Workforce Secretariat...........cocoveieieiiiiiiiee e 275,000

February 8, 2017 215 Regional Policy and Programs...........cocvieeiienieiiee e 659,000
INFRASTRUCTURE (XV)

February 8, 2017 15.2 Highways, Transportation and Water Control Programs...................... (1,364,000)

February 8, 2017 15.3  INfrastruCture WOTKS. ......coiuiiiieiiiesiie e 4,000,000
JUSTICE (IV)

February 8, 2017 4.4 COMMUNILY SAFELY....cciiuiieiiiiie et e et 4,573,000

Total Special Warrants..........cc.ceeiieieiiiieeiiee e 47,865,000
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EXPLANATORY COMMENTS REGARDING SPECIAL WARRANTS
AS SHOWN ON
THE STATEMENT OF SPECIAL WARRANTS
For the Year Ended March 31, 2017

PART A - OPERATING EXPENSES $

Special Warrants amounting to $47,865,000 were issued during the year ended March 31, 2017.

DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION AND TRAINING (XVI)

To provide additional funding for the Teachers' Retirement AIOWaNCES FUNG.........c..ooiiiiiiiiieeiiee e 722,000
To provide additional funding for the Canada-Manitoba Labour Market programs...........coceeeereeeenieeessiee e see e, 4,420,000

DEPARTMENT OF FAMILIES (IX)

To provide additional funding for the Employment, Income and Rental ASSiStance programs...........eoecveeeeeeeeseeeeneeeeseeeesnnees, 22,881,000
To provide additional funding for the Early Learning and Child Care program ..........ccccoccuererieeeiniieesnieeesieeesineessniesesneeesneneesnnns 1,712,000

DEPARTMENT OF GROWTH, ENTERPRISE AND TRADE (X)

To provide additional funding for the Community and ECONomic Growth Programs...........cc.eeeeeeeerieeesneeeeseeeeseeeenneeeeseeeesneees, 1,432,000

To provide additional funding for the Resource DevelopmENt PrOGIraMS. ......c.cuuieiiieeeriieeeiieeeeeeeeseeeesneeeeseeeesseeeenneeeennneeesnneeen, 8,555,000
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, SENIORS AND ACTIVE LIVING (XXI)

To provide additional authority for staff costs in Health Workforce Secretariat primarily related to overtime costs

associated with the Medical Claims ProCeSSING SYSIEM.......ciiiuiiiiiiieeiiieeeriieeeee e et e e seee e s e e s e e e e sneeeesaeeesnneeeesnneeesnneeesnneeeennnes 275,000

To provide additional funding for higher than anticipated operating costs in the Health Emergency Management unit.............. 659,000
DEPARTMENT OF INFRASTRUCTURE (XV)

To provide additional recovery authority for the Highways, Transportation and Water Control Programs...........ccoccveveeveiinnens (1,364,000)

To provide additional funding for Infrastructure Works for costs associated with highways, roads and related projects............. 4,000,000

DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE (IV)
To provide additional funding for increased staffing costs due to increased custody counts

(g ele =T o1 Fo Vi = Lo )= SRR 4,573,000

Special Warrants Total.........cccoccvveviieeennnne, 47,865,000
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STATEMENT OF THE CLAIMS SETTLED

As Required by Section 41(7) of The Financial Administration Act
For the Year Ended March 31, 2017

$

Education and Training (XVI)......coooiiiiii i, 9,196
FFRIMHIIES (1X). s 8,742
[ ATz U ToT I VA1 TR 933,101
INFrAaStTUCTUIE (XV) ... 12,406
JUSHICE (IV) ettt ettt ettt et et e et et e e e e et et eee et et e e ee et et et e e e e et et eeeaee et e ee e e et et eeee et et e e eeet et eeeeeeeens 26,936
Sustainable Development (XI1)..........oo 15,137

1,005,518
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STATEMENT OF EXPENDITURES RELATED TO CAPITAL
AND FUTURE CONTRACT COMMITMENTS

As Required by Section 45(3) of The Financial Administration Act
For the Year Ended March 31. 2017

DEPARTMENT

LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY (I)
ST VA (oSl o701 - ox £

EXECUTIVE COUNCIL (Il)
ST VA (oSl o701 - ox £

AGRICULTURE (ll1)
T V(o oT0] ] 1 - ox £ TR PRSP

CIVIL SERVICE COMMISSION (XVII)
Y= AV (=l oTo] o] = (o TSROt

EDUCATION AND TRAINING (XVI)
Y= AV (=l oo 0] = (o OO

FAMILIES (IX)

SEIVICE CONTACES. .. eieiittiieiitee ettt ettt ettt e e et e e s b e e sb e e st e e nnre e e s nanes
R CT g = U0 o= Vo v LI T TR
(@101 S PO PP O U PP PPPPPRPPPRR

FINANCE (VII)

SEIVICE CONMTACES. .. eieiitiiieittit ettt ettt ettt e et e e s b e e e nb e e s et e e nnre e e s
Acquisition or construction Of CAPITAl .....ccoeeeeeeeeee e
(@101 S PO T PP O U PP PPPPPPPPRRR

GROWTH, ENTERPRISE AND TRADE (X)
Y= AV (=l oo g1 = (o TSRS

HEALTH, SENIORS AND ACTIVE LIVING (XXI)
Y= AV (=l oo g1 = (o TSRO

INDIGENOUS AND MUNICIPAL RELATIONS (XIII)
Y= TV oT ST ot 11 =Tt PRSP PPRPPPRPNt
Acquisition or conStruCtion Of CAPILAl ..........coiiiiiiiiiiiie e

INFRASTRUCTURE (XV)
Acquisition or construction Of CAPITAl .....ccoeeeeieieee e
(@101 S PO T PP OU PP PPPPPRPPRRR

JUSTICE (IV)
SEIVICE CONTACES. .. eeeiutiiieittie ettt ettt st e s e e st e e nnre e s
Acquisition or construction Of CAPITAl .....cooeeeeieeeee e
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FUTURE
COMMITMENT
$

98,956

98,956

16,939

16,939

361,744

361,744

352,776

352,776

494,559

494,559

3,301,035
3,220,364
2,609,147

9,130,546

4,439,160
8,735,139
49,539,167

62,713,466

155,676

155,676

44,873,049

44,873,049

25,920
6,476,663

6,502,583

94,208,599
3,946,852

98,155,451

2,979,264
1,314,300

4,293,564
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DEPARTMENT FUTURE
COMMITMENT
$
SPORT, CULTURE AND HERITAGE (XIV)
SBIVICE CONITACES. ..o ittt ettt et et e et e e e e et e e e e et e e e e e et e e e e e st e seneeranrennnns 15,522
15,522
SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT (XII)
ST Yot oo ] 1 = Tox (=P PPRT R 4,973,195
Rental Of CAPItal ASSEIS.......uuiiiiiiiiiiiiii e 12,000
Acquisition or coNStruCtion Of CAPILAl ..........coiiiiiiiiiiiiee e 1,763,750
6,748,945

OTHER APPROPRIATIONS (XXVII)

(@ 1 0T PR RRPTRRR 4,055,398
4,055,398

TOTAL 237,969,174

NOTE: The Appropriation Act, 2016 authorizes the Government to commit to expenditures up to an

amount not exceeding $950,000,000 for the purpose of ensuring completion of projects or
fulfilling contracts initiated in the year ended March 31, 2017. Any expenditures so committed
must be included in the estimates of the fiscal year in which the expenditure is to be made or
incurred.

82



PROVINCE OF MANITOBA PUBLIC ACCOUNTS 2016-17

STATEMENT OF REVENUE AND EXPENSE
RELATED TO ROADWAY AND MUNICIPAL INFRASTRUCTURE

As Required by Section 67.1(2) of The Financial Administration Act
For the Year Ended March 31, 2017

2017 2016
$ $
REVENUE
Net Gasoline and Motive Fuel Tax - Note L........cccooeiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeeccccn 335,511,550 319,189,423
335,511,550 319,189,423
Less: Tax attributed to aircrafts and l0COMOLIVES.............cuvveeeieiiiiiiiiieneeens 16,870,904 17,905,983
TOTAL REVENUE 318,640,646 301,283,440
EXPENSES
Highways and Transportation Programs 51,159,022 31,281,812
Construction and Maintenance
Maintenance and preservation of provincial trunk highways, provincial
roads and related ProjJECES.......cuiiiiiiciiiiiee e 151,068,681 146,832,711
AV AT (=T Y= 1o [T 8,857,366 8,287,872
Infrastructure assets - provincial roads and highways............cccccceecvvveen... 363,139,695 332,195,581
Road construction and MaintENANCE. ...........occvvvevuieieieeiieiee e 523,065,742 487,316,164
General assets - road related.............ccoeeeeeeeeeeie, 4,974,436 4,921,819
Other construction and MaiNtENANCE...............cvvvviiiviiiiiiiiiiiiiiieieeeeeeeeeeeeeee, 4,974,436 4,921,819
Total Construction and MaiNtENANCE. ..........cceivvvureeieieiiieee e 528,040,178 492,237,983
TOTAL EXPENSES 579,199,200 523,519,795
NET RESULT FOR THE YEAR (260,558,554) (222,236,355)

Note 1: Amount refers to proceeds of tax paid into the Consolidated Fund, net of authorized refunds.
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STATEMENT OF RESPONSIBILITY

The accompanying Report of Amounts Paid or Payable to Members of the Assembly by
the Assembly is the responsibility of management of the Legislative Assembly and has
been prepared in accordance with provisions of The Legisative Assembly Act. In the case,
when a Member of the Legislative Assembly is aso a Minister or acting on Executive
Government business, the expense reporting that is reflected in this report is the
responsibility of the Department of Finance management. These provisions have been
applied on abasis consistent with that of the preceding year. In management’s opinion, the
Report has been properly prepared within reasonable limits of materiality, incorporating
m;]’a\nagement’s best judgment regarding estimates and other data available up to September
5, 2017

Management maintains internal controls to provide reasonable assurance of the reliability
and accuracy of the financial information reported.

The responsibility of the Auditor General isto express an independent opinion on whether
thisfinancial information presentsfairly, in all material respects, amounts paid to members
of the Assembly in accordance with the provisions of The Legislative Assembly Act. The
Auditor General’s report, stating the scope of the audit and opinion, appears on the
following page.

This Report istabled in the Legidlature. It is referred to the Standing Committee on the
Public Accounts, which reports to the Legislature on the results of its examination together
with any recommendations it may have with respect to this report and accompanying audit
opinion.

On behalf of Management

ORIGINAL SIGNED BY ORIGINAL SIGNED BY

Judy Wegner Patricia Chaychuk

Executive Director Clerk of the Legidlative Assembly
Administration & Finance Legidative Assembly

ORIGINAL SIGNED BY

Aurel Tess, CPA, CGA
Provincial Comptroller






OFFICE OF THE

AUDITOR GENERAL
MANITOBA

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
Amounts Paid or Payable to Members of the Assembly

To the Legislative Assembly of the Province of Manitoba

We have audited the accompanying Report of Amounts Paid or Payable to Members of the Assembly for
the year ended March 31, 2017 (“the report™). The report has been prepared by management based on
Sections 52.27(1) and (2) of The Legislative Assembly Act.

Management's Responsibility for the Report

Management is responsible for the preparation of this report in accordance with the basis of accounting
described in Note 1, determining that the described framework is acceptable in the circumstances, and for
such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of the report that is
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the report based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards require that we comply
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the report is free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the report. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the report, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation of the report in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the presentation of the report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial information in the Report of Amounts Paid or Payable to Members of the
Assembly for the year ended March 31, 2017 is prepared, in all material respects, in accordance with the
basis of accounting described in Note 1.

Basis of Accounting

Without modifying our opinion, we draw attention to Note 1 to the report, which describes the basis of
accounting and identifies expenses that are excluded from the report. The report is prepared to assist the
Minister of Finance to meet the requirements of Sections 52.27(1) and (2) of The Legislative Assembly
Act. As a result, the report may not be suitable for another purpose.

Original document signed by:

Norm Ricard
September 12, 2017 Norm Ricard, CPA, CA
Winnipeg, Manitoba Auditor General

500 - 330 Portage Avenue Winnipeg, Manitoba R3C 0C4 office: (204) 945-3790 fax: (204) 945-2169
www.oag.mb.ca
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REPORT OF AMOUNTS PAID OR PAYABLE TO MEMBERS OF THE ASSEMBLY

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2017
COMPENSATION

89

PREMIER'S AND SEVERANCE /
MEMBERS' MINISTERS' OTHER TRANSITION
MEMBER CONSTITUENCY INDEMNITY COMPENSATION COMPENSATION PAYMENTS
(Note 3)
$ $ $ $
Allum, J. Fort Garry-Riverview 93,024.08 4,604.49 - -
Altemeyer, R. Wolseley 93,024.08 - 5,113.50 -
Bindle, K. Thompson 88,436.60 - 4,285.26 -
Clarke, Hon. E. Agassiz 88,436.60 46,463.48 - -
Cox, Hon. C. River East 88,436.60 46,463.48 - -
Cullen, Hon. C. Spruce Woods 93,023.94 46,463.48 - -
Curry, N. Kildonan 88,436.60 - - -
Driedger, Hon. M. Charleswood 93,023.94 - 44,649.64 -
Eichler, Hon. R. Lakeside 93,023.94 46,463.48 296.31 -
Ewasko, W. Lac du Bonnet 93,023.94 - 5,904.08 -
Fielding, Hon. S. Kirkfield Park 88,436.60 46,463.48 - -
Fletcher, Hon. S. Assiniboia 88,436.60 - - -
Fontaine, N. St. Johns 88,436.74 - - -
Friesen, Hon. C Morden-Winkler 93,023.94 46,463.48 - -
Gerrard, Hon. J. River Heights 93,023.94 - - -
Goertzen, Hon. K. Steinbach 93,023.94 46,463.48 370.13 -
Graydon, C. Emerson 93,023.94 - 6,846.56 -
6,923.36 (2a)
Guillemard, S. Fort Richmond 88,436.60 - 6,828.36 -
Helwer, R. Brandon West 93,023.94 - - -
Isleifson, L. Brandon East 88,436.74 - - -
Johnson, D. Interlake 88,436.60 - 4,112.36 -
Johnston, S. St. James 88,436.74 - - -
Kinew, W. Fort Rouge 88,436.74 - - -
Klassen, J. Kewatinook 88,436.74 - - -
Lagassé, B. Dawson Tralil 88,436.74 - 194.00 -
Lagimodiere, A. Selkirk 88,436.88 - 2,371.04 -
Lamoureux, C. Burrows 88,436.74 - - -
Lathlin, A. The Pas 93,024.08 - 5,464.62 -
Lindsey, T. Flin Flon 88,436.74 - 1,382.92 -
Maloway, J. Elmwood 93,024.08 - 7,418.46 -
Carried Forward...........cccovivieiniiiiiniiee e 2,712,735.38 329,848.85 102,160.60 -



PROVINCE OF MANITOBA PUBLIC ACCOUNTS 2016-17

MEMBER

Brought Forward

Marcelino, D.
Marcelino, F.
Martin, S.
Mayer, C.
Michaleski, B.

Micklefield, Hon. A.
Morley-Lecomte, J.
Nesbitt, G.
Pallister, Hon. B.

Pedersen, Hon. B.

Piwniuk, D.
Reyes, J.
Saran, M.
Schuler, Hon. R.
Selinger, G.

Smith, A.

Smook, D.
Squires, Hon. R.
Stefanson, Hon. H.

Swan, A.

Teitsma, J.
Wharton, J.

Wiebe, M.
Wishart, Hon. I.
Wowchuk, R.

Yakimoski, B.

Former MLAs:
Allan, N.
Ashton, S.
Blady, S.
Braun, E.

Briese, S.

Carried Forward

CONSTITUENCY

Tyndall Park
Logan
Morris

St. Vital
Dauphin

Rossmere
Seine River
Riding Mountain
Fort Whyte
Midland

Arthur-Virden
St. Norbert
The Maples
St. Paul

St. Boniface

Southdale

La Verendrye
Riel

Tuxedo

Minto

Radisson
Gimli

Concordia
Portage la Prairie

Swan River

Transcona

PREMIER'S AND SEVERANCE /
MEMBERS' MINISTERS' OTHER TRANSITION
INDEMNITY COMPENSATION COMPENSATION PAYMENTS
(Note 3)
$ $ $ $
2,712,735.38 329,848.85 102,160.60 -
93,023.94 - 370.13 -
93,023.94 4,604.49 45,905.44 -
93,023.94 - - -
88,436.60 - 6,579.30 -
88,436.60 - - -
88,436.88 - 7,902.30 -
88,436.60 - 4,112.36 -
88,436.60 - - -
93,023.94 71,118.88 2,511.49 -
93,023.94 46,463.48 319.14 -
93,023.94 - 9,212.84 -
88,436.60 - - -
93,023.94 4,604.49 - -
93,023.94 46,463.48 - -
93,024.08 7,047.86 - -
88,436.74 - - R
93,023.94 - 6,579.30 -
88,436.60 46,463.48 - -
93,023.94 46,463.48 - -
93,023.94 - - -
88,436.60 - - -
88,436.60 - 194.00 -
6,663.43 (2b)
93,023.94 - 2,065.14 -
93,023.94 46,463.48 -
88,436.60 - 4,112.36 -
88,436.60 - -
4,587.34 - 222.35 93,025.00
4,587.34 4,604.49 - 93,025.00
4,587.34 4,604.49 - 69,322.26
4,587.34 4,604.49 - 69,321.92
4,587.34 - - 69,322.12
5,099,247.00 663,355.44 198,910.18 394,016.30
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PREMIER'S AND SEVERANCE /

MEMBERS' MINISTERS' OTHER TRANSITION

MEMBER CONSTITUENCY INDEMNITY COMPENSATION COMPENSATION PAYMENTS

(Note 3)

$ $ $ $

Brought FOrward..............cevvvveieiiieeiiiiiieiieieieeennnnns 5,099,247.00 663,355.44 198,910.18 394,016.30
Caldwell, D. 4,587.34 4,604.49 - 93,097.62
Chief, K. 72,380.38 4,604.49 - 41,032.46
Chomiak, D. 4,587.34 4,604.49 - 93,025.00
Crothers, D. 4,587.34 4,604.49 - 35,425.74
Dewar, G. 4,587.34 4,604.49 - 93,025.00
Gaudreau, D. 4,587.34 - 222.35 35,425.54
Howard, J. 4,587.34 - 518.22 69,321.92
Irvin-Ross, K. 4,587.34 4,604.49 - 93,097.62
Jha, B. 4,587.34 - 222.35 93,025.00
Kostyshyn, R. 4,587.34 4,604.49 - 35,425.74
Lemieux, R. 4,587.34 4,604.49 - 93,097.62
Mackintosh, G. 4,587.34 4,604.49 - 93,025.00
Melnick, C. 4,587.34 - - 93,025.00
Mitchelson, B. 4,587.34 - - 93,025.00
Nevakshonoff, T. 4,587.34 4,604.49 - 93,097.62
Oswald, T. 4,587.34 - - 93,097.48
Pettersen, C. 4,587.34 - - 35,425.54
Reid, D. 4,587.34 - 6,418.33 93,025.00
Robinson, E. 4,587.34 4,604.49 - 93,025.00
Rondeau, J. 4,587.34 - 865.65 93,025.00
Rowat, L. 4,587.34 - - 93,097.48
Selby, E. - - - 11,213.68
Struthers, S. 4,587.34 - - 93,025.00
Wight, M. 4,587.34 4,604.49 - 35,425.54
TOTALS 5,272,548.86 718,609.32 207,157.08 2,181,547.90
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REPORT OF AMOUNTS PAID OR PAYABLE TO MEMBERS OF THE ASSEMBLY

MEMBER

Allum, J.
Altemeyer, R.
Bindle, K.
Clarke, Hon. E.
Cox, Hon. C.

Cullen, Hon. C.
Curry, N.

Driedger, Hon. M.

Eichler, Hon. R.
Ewasko, W.

Fielding, Hon. S.
Fletcher, Hon. S.
Fontaine, N.

Friesen, Hon. C.
Gerrard, Hon. J.

Goertzen, Hon. K.

Graydon, C.
Guillemard, S.
Helwer, R.
Isleifson, L.

Johnson, D.
Johnston, S.
Kinew, W.

Klassen, J.
Lagassé, B.

Lagimodiere, A.
Lamoureux, C.
Lathlin, A.
Lindsey, T.
Maloway, J.

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2017
EXPENSES

CONSTITUENCY

Fort Garry-Riverview
Wolseley

Thompson

Agassiz

River East

Spruce Woods
Kildonan
Charleswood
Lakeside

Lac du Bonnet

Kirkfield Park
Assiniboia

St. Johns
Morden-Winkler
River Heights

Steinbach
Emerson

Fort Richmond
Brandon West
Brandon East

Interlake

St. James
Fort Rouge
Kewatinook
Dawson Tralil

Selkirk

Burrows
The Pas
Flin Flon
Elmwood

TEMPORARY
RESIDENCE
AND LIVING
EXPENSES

$

16,058.75
19,984.28

21,537.44

23,370.45
17,884.59

19,859.81

21,367.50
21,544.62
20,016.39
15,459.07

12,823.20

18,073.42
15,944.14

92

COMMUTING
EXPENSES

3,872.74

3,403.80

TRAVEL
EXPENSES

31.05
355.35
34,253.73
8,851.87
1,160.55

5,170.29
4,393.50
226.50
1,814.35
15,873.29

611.10
1,804.26
1,366.98
5,989.82
2,746.98

4,150.02
29,882.10
1,183.95
11,354.70
14,291.26

30,708.75

24,538.16
9,248.40

3,948.75
1,347.75
37,704.51
30,328.33
1,802.64

CONSTITUENCY
ASSISTANT
SALARIES
(Note 1a)
$

46,228.00
46,228.00
41,620.80
39,847.82
45,146.92

26,076.06
34,256.76
46,228.00
46,228.00
42,003.42

41,945.57
44,822.90
46,228.00
44,286.44
46,228.00

46,223.05
25,315.06
44,750.42
22,881.71
28,465.10

44,278.08
44,654.10
46,228.00
43,313.36
41,340.34

30,251.71
33,775.50
39,304.78
40,958.32
42,745.40
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CONSTITUENCY
OFFICE RENT
ALLOWANCE

$

14,400.00
15,648.00
12,600.00

5,203.80
13,390.00

6,552.00
7,703.29
8,085.00
14,553.00
15,358.50

12,051.00
9,373.00
9,660.00

13,005.60

15,532.76
11,311.85

9,906.49
15,586.20
11,021.00

14,608.00
13,207.40
12,051.00

13,390.00

11,481.75
11,250.00
6,867.00
9,975.00
10,269.00

CONSTITUENCY
EXPENSES
(Note 1a)
$

46,821.88
59,581.86
16,807.61
32,374.17
59,123.06

39,676.31
55,704.55
51,486.21
36,929.13
28,401.41

41,820.08
52,399.75
55,592.06
49,829.76
46,760.91

53,181.40
30,075.01
52,898.86
27,952.63
29,343.01

24,543.53
33,848.68
46,273.98
23,981.17
33,230.55

28,703.88
26,434.69
15,476.93
31,800.23
58,756.28

PRINTING
AND
MAILING
EXPENSES
(Note 1b)
$

2,755.05
8,604.18
1,236.46

686.66
3,880.16

2,174.28
3,592.22
3,111.13
1,067.83
1,956.87

1,452.64
4,947.60
2,694.65
2,391.09
6,094.46

3,542.55

913.55
2,892.78
2,817.98
3,082.39

1,245.45
7,617.43
6,860.70
3,220.13
1,498.62

1,101.48
4,353.97
1,363.57
1,350.34
3,790.83

COMMITTEE
EXPENSES

93

REIMBURSEMENT
OF PREMIER'S
AND MINISTERS'
EXPENSES
(Note 1c)
$

9,072.44
1,756.54

12,593.42

5,014.23

2,152.80

4,174.38

3,365.30

REIMBURSEMENT
OF OTHER
MLAS' EXPENSES

(Note 1c)
$

3,602.77
286.96

525.35
2,492.13

127.23

7,030.99

758.67

111.15
542.08

154.50

499.91
588.69

36.33

1,077.77
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MEMBER

Marcelino, D.
Marcelino, F.
Martin, S.
Mayer, C.
Michaleski, B.

Micklefield, Hon. A.
Morley-Lecomte, J.

Nesbhitt, G.
Pallister, Hon. B.
Pedersen, Hon. B.

Piwniuk, D.
Reyes, J.
Saran, M.
Schuler, Hon. R.
Selinger, G.

Smith, A.
Smook, D.
Squires, Hon. R.

Stefanson, Hon. H.

Swan, A.

Teitsma, J.
Wharton, J.

Wiebe, M.
Wishart, Hon. I.
Wowchuk, R.

Yakimoski, B.

Former MLAs:
Allan, N.
Ashton, S.
Bjornson, P.
Blady, S.
Braun, E.

CONSTITUENCY

Tyndall Park
Logan
Morris

St. Vital
Dauphin

Rossmere
Seine River
Riding Mountain
Fort Whyte
Midland

Arthur-Virden
St. Norbert
The Maples
St. Paul

St. Boniface

Southdale

La Verendrye
Riel

Tuxedo

Minto

Radisson

Gimli

Concordia
Portage la Prairie
Swan River

Transcona

TEMPORARY
RESIDENCE
AND LIVING
EXPENSES

$

15,385.67

20,895.04

21,631.13

23,341.29

20,375.88

17,934.09

1,038.86
12,239.00

3,039.46
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COMMUTING
EXPENSES

1,341.00

TRAVEL
EXPENSES

$

477.37
19,842.17
1,121.05
13,791.31

5,330.66
798.72
18,726.24

2,874.32

39,813.47
904.40
77.90
7,308.45
1,786.07

1,756.65
26,837.09
2,335.05
304.75

2,396.35
12,924.35

512.93
228.40
27,195.62

8.00

CONSTITUENCY
ASSISTANT
SALARIES
(Note 1a)
$

46,228.00
46,228.00
43,381.60
44,995.60
40,968.07

38,002.25
38,540.03
31,153.46
10,413.03
42,068.80

39,960.48
30,492.91
46,228.00
46,228.00
46,228.00

41,862.73
29,921.50
35,298.12
46,228.00
41,931.64

46,228.00
40,087.26

46,228.00
40,959.34
46,228.00

33,572.52
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CONSTITUENCY
OFFICE RENT
ALLOWANCE

$

14,350.00
15,900.00
16,068.00
10,712.00
11,050.30

13,390.00
12,922.00

8,620.00
11,891.25
10,319.00

16,068.00

6,695.00
16,068.00
12,450.00
10,461.84

9,523.67
9,161.30
14,729.00
16,062.50
14,476.25

13,390.00
8,910.00

16,068.00
8,253.00
5,670.00

12,051.00

1,165.50
2,362.50

999.56
2,678.00
2,541.00

CONSTITUENCY
EXPENSES
(Note 1a)
$

38,868.46
49,034.26
46,812.69
55,377.26
44,842.98

43,274.78
49,981.69
24,504.98
33,050.82
51,669.81

46,967.96
57,692.15
50,386.34
52,331.74
47,017.90

29,368.25
25,389.54
59,693.13
42,570.17
59,439.40

61,805.45
31,799.80

57,578.64
33,133.85
27,179.32

57,680.49

2,243.43

63.00
2,647.65
3,384.89

PRINTING
AND
MAILING
EXPENSES
(Note 1b)
$

1,020.38
3,182.11
3,264.34
3,002.16
1,792.14

3,453.04
3,290.11
1,534.07
3,158.86
1,497.83

2,625.65
3,155.42
1,397.17
4,053.26
3,162.71

2,716.22
2,043.08
2,594.96
2,764.68
4,107.90

3,336.46
2,142.86

2,723.17
1,199.81
1,406.88

2,606.73

COMMITTEE
EXPENSES

95

REIMBURSEMENT
OF PREMIER'S
AND MINISTERS'
EXPENSES
(Note 1c)
$

1,665.06
16,017.76

3,684.98

4,185.77
692.55

3,473.33

REIMBURSEMENT
OF OTHER
MLAS' EXPENSES

(Note 1c)
$

499.91
4,015.78
671.58
499.91

585.89

312.56
427.39

1,489.76

499.91
123.70

204.74

185.67
351.44
713.08

2,816.42

157.01

4,459.71

3.00

(20)
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MEMBER

Briese, S.
Caldwell, D.
Chief, K.
Chomiak, D.
Crothers, D.

Dewar, G.
Gaudreau, D.
Howard, J.
Irvin-Ross, K.
Jha, B.

Kostyshyn, R.
Lemieux, R.
Mackintosh, G.
Melnick, C.
Mitchelson, B.

Nevakshonoff, T.
Oswald, T.
Pettersen, C.
Reid, D.
Robinson, E.

Rondeau, J.
Rowat, L.
Struthers, S.
Wight, M.

TOTALS

TEMPORARY CONSTITUENCY
RESIDENCE COMMUTING TRAVEL ASSISTANT
CONSTITUENCY AND LIVING EXPENSES EXPENSES SALARIES
EXPENSES (Note 1a)
$ $ $ $
1,117.34 - - -
2,500.31 - - -
- - - 35,302.96
- - 33.75 -
2,465.26 - ; ;
10,282.66 - 1,233.75 -
4,796.36 - 2,729.37 -
- - 3,402.00 -
2,230.49 - ; ;
8,100.24 - - -
411,296.74 8,617.54 479,889.13 2,286,823.92
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PRINTING REIMBURSEMENT  REIMBURSEMENT
CONSTITUENCY AND OF PREMIER'S OF OTHER
OFFICE RENT CONSTITUENCY MAILING COMMITTEE AND MINISTERS' MLAS' EXPENSES
ALLOWANCE EXPENSES EXPENSES EXPENSES EXPENSES
(Note 1a) (Note 1b) (Note 1c) (Note 1c)
$ $ $ $ $ $
298.20 490.36 - - - 148.80
3,622.50 3,608.23 - - - 1,874.37
14,400.00 44,332.53 4,218.30 - - -
2,678.00 3,041.79 - - - -
3,300.00 740.25 - - - -
1,800.00 2,5653.21 - - - -
2,678.00 2,386.93 1,336.53 - - -
285.00 1,470.93 - - - -
1,943.00 4,891.34 - - - -
2,608.70 5,735.30 1,339.28 - - 1,083.80
3,526.50 912.09 - - - 334.54
973.12 339.60 - - - 185.10
1,869.00 3,555.61 1,268.04 - - 277.37
1,418.28 1,369.47 - - - 207.45
2,678.00 3,262.32 - - - -
1,100.00 1,154.58 - - - 166.86
(1,314.47) 1,906.50 1,288.17 - - -
2,400.00 2,302.87 - - - -
2,417.60 654.25 - - - 251.27
- 650.10 - - - 1,242.74
- 1,587.04 1,272.24 - - -
1,800.00 499.84 - - - -
612.52 1,671.29 - - - -
1,260.00 2,437.65 - - - -
701,401.26 2,467,154.49 170,251.61 - 67,848.56 41,624.29

97



PROVINCE OF MANITOBA PUBLIC ACCOUNTS 2016-17

REPORT OF AMOUNTS PAID OR PAYABLE TO MEMBERS OF THE ASSEMBLY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2017
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL REPORT

1. BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

This Report presents the amounts paid or payable to members of the legislature as required by Sections 52.27 (1) and (2)
of The Legislative Assembly Act.

Expenses and compensation are recognized on an accrual basis. Expenses are accrued based upon the claims processed
to May 15, 2017.

Repayments by MLAs for claims over the maximum entitlement are recognized when received.

The reported amounts reflect the following policies based upon directives and interpretations by the Legislative Assembly
Management Commission:

a. MLAs are charged under their constituency expense entitlements with the salary type benefits for constituency staff
such as sick leave, statutory holiday pay, and overtime, in addition to their salary and vacation pay. All other benefits,

totalling $534,237 for the year ended March 31, 2017, are not charged to MLAs' entitlements and are therefore
excluded from this Report.

b. Printing and mail processing fees are included in this Report; however, postage costs paid directly to the supplier on
the member's behalf are excluded from this Report.

c. Reimbursement of Premier’s and Ministers’ expenses and reimbursement of Other MLAs' expenses reflect claims
made by the Premier and Ministers for departmental expenses incurred by them or claims paid to MLAs for
expenses not provided for under their constituency expense entitlement. Expenses paid by or to a third party on

the members' behalf are excluded from this Report unless the payment has been processed as on account of the
member.

d. Costs associated with the assignment of government vehicles to members, or payments of the optional car
allowance to members, in lieu of assigned vehicles, are excluded from this Report.

2. PAYMENTS TO MLA'S FROM GOVERNMENT BUSINESS ENTERPRISES

Amount includes remuneration and reimbursement of expenses as reported to the Minister of Finance pursuant to Section
52.27(2) of The Legislative Assembly Act:

a. Remuneration received from Manitoba Hydro-Electric Board.
b. Remuneration received from Manitoba Public Insurance Corporation.

c. Expense reimbursements received from Manitoba Public Insurance Corporation.
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REPORT OF AMOUNTS PAID OR PAYABLE TO MEMBERS OF THE ASSEMBLY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2017
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL REPORT

3. SEVERANCE AND TRANSITION PAYMENTS

Severance Allowance
Severance pay to Members elected prior to 1995 is made pursuant to section 52.21 of The Legislative Assembly Act.
A member who ceases to be a member for any reason other than under section 18 (conviction) or 20 (disqualification) is
entitled to a payment calculated at the rate of one (1) month’s pay for each consecutive year that he or she has served as
a member to a maximum of twelve (12) months’ pay.

Transition/ Severance Payments
Members elected after 1995 who resign, retire or are defeated in an election are entitled to receive the equivalent of
one month’s salary for each year of service. The minimum transition/severance payment is three (3) months’ pay and
the maximum is twelve (12) months’ pay. The Member has the option of receiving the payment in a lump sum
(Severance) or by bi-weekly payments (Transition).

4. SPECIAL SUPPLY AND OPERATING ALLOWANCES
Each official party as well as any independent member is entitled to a special supply and operating allowance under Section

52.23 of the Act. This allowance is in addition to "Reimbursement of Expenses" listed by individual member and was paid as
designated by the leader of each party to the following:

Progressive Conservative Party Caucus $ 114231
New Democratic Party Caucus 41,006
Driedger, Hon. M. 2,929
Gerrard, Hon. J. 2,929
Klassen, J. 2,929
Lamoureux, C. 2,929

$ 166,953

5. UNREPORTED AMOUNTS AND EXPENSES RELATED TO OTHER YEARS

The amounts in this Report include previously unreported claims and recoveries related to prior years' expenses
totalling$94,241 and $12,142 respectively, with a net total of $82,099. In addition, these amounts do not include
payments related to future years' expenses totalling $11,884, which represent primarily rent deposits and unexpired
insurances.
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Indigenous and Municipal Relations

Indigenous Relations

Financial & Administrative Services

Box 37, 59 Elizabeth Drive, Thompson, Manitoba, Canada R8N 1R4
T 204-677-6607 F 204-677-6753

www.manitoba.ca

June 1, 2017

NORTHERN AFFAIRS FUND

MANAGEMENT REPORT

The accompanying financial statements are the responsibility of management and have been
prepared in accordance with the Canadian public sector accounting standards as stated in the
notes to the financial statements. In management'’s opinion, the financial statements have been
properly prepared within reasonable limits of materiality, incorporating management'’s best
judgement regarding all necessary estimates and all other data available.

Management maintains internal controls to provide reasonable assurance that the financial
information is reliable and accurate, and that the assets of the Fund are properly safeguarded.

The responsibility of the Auditor General for Manitoba is to express an independent professional
opinion as to whether the financial statements are presented fairly in all material respects.

The Executive Financial Officer has reviewed and approved these financial statements.

On Behalf of Management

ORIGINAL SIGNED BY

Pavilo Motruk, CPA, CGA, ACCA

Acting Director/ Executive Financial Officer

Indigenous Relations, Financial and Administrative Services
Department of Indigenous and Municipal Relations







OFFICE OF THE
AUDITOR GENERAL
MANITOBA

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Minister of Indigenous and Municipal Relations
To the Legislative Assembly of Manitoba

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Northern Affairs Fund, which comprise the
statement of financial position as at March 31, 2014, and the statements of operations and accumulated
surplus, change in net financial assets / debt and cash flow for the year ended March 31, 2014, and a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards and for such internal control as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
[n making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation
and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.

Opinion

[n our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
Northern Affairs Fund as at March 31, 2014 and the results of its operations, changes in net financial
assets / debt and its cash flows for the year ended March 31, 2014 in accordance with Canadian public
sector accounting standards.

7/ L
e-¥ \’!'? e e ?ab( Aoy b~ (_a--mzvs-u?

Office of the Auditor General
June 1, 2017
Winnipeg, Manitoba

500 - 330 Portage Avenue Winnipeg, Manitoba R3C 0C4 office: (204) 945-3790 fax: (204) 945-2169
www.oag.mb.ca
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NORTHERN AFFAIRS FUND

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

As at March 31, 2014

2014 2013
Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 3) 11,437,945 13,373,784
Accounts receivable (Notes 4, 5, 10) 2,379,939 3,108,111
Total Financial Assets 13,817,884 16,481,895
Liabilities
Accounts payable (Notes 6, 10) 2,226,362 5,475,060
Loans payable (Note 7) 17,698,705 12,887,147
Total Liabilities 19,925,067 18,362,207
Net Debt (6,107,183) (1,880,312)
Non-Financial Assets
Construction in progress (Note 8) 12,047,685 7,671,740
Total Non-Financial Assets 12,047,685 7,671,740
Accumulated Surplus 5,940,502 5,791,428

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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NORTHERN AFFAIRS FUND
STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS AND ACCUMULATED SURPLUS
For the Year Ended March 31, 2014

2014 2013

Revenues

Aboriginal and Northern Communities 14,549,683 14,530,298
Aboriginal and Northern Affairs 1,134,778 811,798
Department of Local Government 158,747 125,114
Department of Finance 2,889,000 1,927,770
Department of Family Services and Consumer Affairs 45,600 51,820
Federal Gas Tax 465,469 527,643
Cottage Subdivision Funds 532,782 502,980
Manitoba Hydro 200,000 93,000
Specific Purpose - Various (Note 10) 579,312 343,712
Cottage Administration Fees 21,062 21,031
Tax Revenue (Sch 2, NTRA) 2,320,462 2,274,116
Total Revenue 22,896,895 21,209,282
Expenses

Aboriginal and Northern Communities 15,270,898 15,426,660
Aboriginal and Northern Affairs 1,061,645 1,215,374
Department of Local Government 137,801 125,320
Department of Finance 2,800,150 2,751,423
Department of Family Services and Consumer Affairs 44,163 56,022
Federal Gas Tax 92,721 -
Cottage Subdivision Funds 493,519 463,825
Manitoba Hydro 187,495 165,761
Specific Purpose - Various 478,245 446,993
Cottage Administration Fees 13,257 8,651
Tax Administered Expenses (Sch 2, NTRA; Note 10) 2,167,927 2,061,995
Total Expenses 22,747,821 22,722,024
Annual Surplus/(Deficit) 149,074 (1,512,742)
Accumulated Surplus at Beginning of Year 5,791,428 7,304,170
Accumulated Surplus, End of Year 5,940,502 5,791,428

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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2016-17

NORTHERN AFFAIRS FUND

STATEMENT OF CHANGE IN NET FINANCIAL ASSETS/DEBT

For the Year Ended March 31, 2014

2014 2013

Annual Surplus/(Deficit) S 149,074 S (1,512,742)
Non-Financial Assets
New construction costs (Note 8) (7,824,538) (5,214,219)
Closed projects (Note 8) 3,448,593 -

(4,375,945) (5,214,219)
Decrease in Net Financial Assets (4,226,871) (6,726,961)
Net Financial Assets/(Debt), Beginning of Year (1,880,312) 4,846,649
Net Financial Debt, End of Year S (6,107,183) S (1,880,312)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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NORTHERN AFFAIRS FUND
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW

For the Year Ended March 31, 2014

2014 2013

Cash provided by (used in) :
Operating Activities
Annual deficit 149,074 (1,512,742)
Change in:

Accounts receivable 728,172 (9,230)

Accounts payable (3,248,698) 4,018,790
Cash used in operating activities (2,371,452) 2,496,818
Capital Activities
Increase in construction in progress (4,375,945) (5,214,219)
Cash used in capital activities (4,375,945) (5,214,219)
Financing Activities
(Decrease)/Increase in loans payable 4,811,558 (1,011,365)
Cash provided by (used in) financial transactions 4,811,558 (1,011,365)
Decrease in Cash (1,935,839) (3,728,766)
Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning of Year 13,373,784 17,102,550
Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Year (Note 3) 11,437,945 13,373,784
Supplemental Cash Flow Information

Interest Received 173,974 153,199

Interest Paid 513,922 457,591

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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NORTHERN AFFAIRS FUND

SPECIFIC PURPOSE FUNDS AND ACCUMULATED SURPLUS Schedule 1
For the Year Ended March 31, 2014
Transfer from
Balance Revenue Expense SPF Transfers Taxation Fund Balance
Account
March 31, 2013 (Note 11) (Note 10) March 31, 2014
Aboriginal and Northern Communities
Community Council Funds (Note 12) $  (1,453,749) $ 14,108,262 $ 14,743,587 $ (15,455) $ (2,104,529)
Community Capital Support - 441,421 527,311 (85,890)
(1,453,749) 14,549,683 15,270,898 (15,455) - (2,190,419)
Cottage Administration Fees 62,188 21,062 13,257 69,993
Aboriginal and Northern Affairs
Department Revenue/Transfer Payments - 608,586 608,586 -
RBC Payment Distribution (126) 1,800 1,529 145
Firefighters Insurance 124,814 21,398 103,416
Fire Inspections 43,860 3,150 40,710
CDO Pilot Project 84,681 (20,000) 64,681
Fire Trucks and Equipment 134,247 134,247
Fire Training 129,728 129,728
Sturgeon Landing Road 17,897 27,720 34,276 11,341
Sturgeon Gill Road 4,325 1,787 2,538
Gull Bay (Long Point) Road 3,246 1,787 1,459
Uchtman Rail Crossing (8,328) 8,328 -
Northern Youth Empowerment Initiative 3,129 120,000 38,173 84,956
Community Ergonomics 60,552 23,770 (11,000) 25,782
Northern Consultation Board 8,115 8,115
Northern Ministers Development Forum 14,166 1,229 (1,229) 11,708
Workplace Safety and Health Training 11,970 84,722 81,000 8,248
Workplace Safety and Health Equipment 23,991 15,935 8,056
Constable Program 22,276 40,122 36,707 25,691
Community Clerk Workshop 29,032 30,370 40,465 18,545 37,482
Water Operator Certification 26,506 26,506
Incorporation 285,253 285,253
Water Treatment Plant Assessments 27,409 97,000 26,290 98,119
Surveys - 28,000 28,000
Bluff Road - 5,000 1,213 3,787
Resource Management Boards - 94,000 22,442 71,558
Resource Management Boards Wildlife Projects - 40,000 40,000
Hollow Water Waste Disposal Site 75,850 51,839 59,374 68,315
Modular Accredited Training (5,873) 10,013 16,435 20,000 7,705
911 Emergency Services 180,025 9,275 170,750
North Central Summer Students 15,883 13,102 5,005 7,786
1,312,628 1,134,778 1,061,645 120,321 1,506,082
Department of Local Government
Video Lottery Support Payments/Municipal Program Grant 10 158,747 137,801 (16,244) 4,712
Department of Finance
General Assistance Grant 98,560 2,889,000 2,800,150 (9,719) 177,691
Department of Family Services and Consumer Affairs
Building Independence (22) 45,600 44,163 1,415
Federal Gas Tax 1,959,903 465,469 92,721 2,332,651
Cottage Subdivision Funds
Northern Affairs Levy 663,134 532,782 493,519 702,397
Manitoba Hydro
Nelson River Archaeological Survey 75,346 25,927 49,419
Pimichikamak Archaeological Project 110,240 200,000 104,392 205,848
SWAP 2006 276,498 57,176 219,322
462,084 200,000 187,495 474,589
Specific Purpose - Various
Nelson House Claims Account 11,317 97 11,414
Sturgeon Management Program 2,977 138,980 137,759 4,198
Winnipegosis Lake Water Study 77,500 77,500
Cross Lake Negotiations 6,965 6,965
Northern Healthy Foods Initiative 72,958 224,732 94,287 203,403
Treaty Land Entitlement 223,161 23,472 199,689
OPCN/CUFMA - 200,000 42,275 157,725
MMF Hist Research/Tripartite 113,104 23,258 89,846
WRARS 5,020 15,503 15,503 (5,020) -
Consultation Unit 45,163 45,163
Land Use Planning 46,334 46,334
Thompson Lake Front 2,536 2,536
Property Tax Enhancement (Note 10) 617,542 141,691 (73,883) 141,191 543,159
1,224,577 579,312 478,245 (78,903) 141,191 1,387,932
Accumulated Surplus $ 4329313 § 20,576,433 $ 20,579,894 $ - S 141,191 $ 4,467,043

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Schedule 2
NORTHERN AFFAIRS FUND
NET TAX REVENUES ADMINISTERED AND ACCUMULATED SURPLUS
For the Year Ended March 31, 2014
2014 2013

Tax Revenues
Taxation levies S 1,441,791 1,402,619
Grants in lieu of Taxes 694,682 686,294
Tax penalties 124,347 107,268
Rentals - Hay and Grazing 58,422 61,035
Other 1,220 16,900
Total Tax Revenues 2,320,462 2,274,116
Administered Expenses
Frontier school division special levy 1,066,424 1,055,026
Public schools finance board - support levy 461,797 442,422
Municipal levy 380,113 321,353
Hay and Grazing leases 23,043 25,248
Department of Local Government 49,573 54,533
Budgeted allowance for doubtful accounts 181,849 150,777
Other 5,128 12,636
Total Administered Expenses 2,167,927 2,061,995
Net Tax Revenue Administered 152,535 212,121
Accumulated Surplus at Beginning of Year 1,462,115 1,340,644
Transfer to Specific Purpose Funds Account (Note 10) (141,191) (90,650)
Accumulated Surplus at End of Year S 1,473,459 1,462,115

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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NORTHERN AFFAIRS FUND
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended March 31, 2014

1. Purpose of the Organization

The purpose of the Northern Affairs Fund (the Fund) is to administer trust funds on behalf of the
designated communities and administer the property tax system within the jurisdiction of the
Department of Aboriginal and Northern Affairs in compliance with The Northern Affairs Act.

a) Specific Purpose Funds Account

Used to account for all monies advanced to the Minister of Aboriginal and Northern Affairs to provide
financial services to community councils in northern areas of Manitoba.

b) Taxation Fund Account
Levies property and business taxes based on real property assessments and remits the tax requirements

to school divisions and The Public Schools Finance Board. Taxes collected for local purposes in the
communities are remitted to the community councils when collected.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

a) Basis of Accounting
The financial statements of the Fund are prepared by management in accordance with Canadian public
sector accounting standards established by the Public Sector Accounting Board (PSAB) of the Chartered
Professional Accountants of Canada.

b) Revenues and Expenses
Revenue and expenses are recognized in the period in which the transaction or events occurred.
Revenue and expenses are recorded on an accrual basis, except when the accruals cannot be

determined with a reasonable degree of certainty or when their estimation is impractical.

Interest revenue earned on short-term deposits is recognized in the period in which the transaction
occurred and recorded on an accrual basis.

c¢) Government Transfers
Government transfers are recognized in the Fund’s financial statements as expenses or revenues in the
period that the events giving rise to the transfer occurred as long as the transfer is authorized, eligibility
criteria, if any, have been met by the recipient, and a reasonable estimate of the amount can be made.
d) Construction in Progress
Construction in Progress represents purchased or constructed assets and is recorded at cost. When the
asset is completed and ready to be put into use for the community the asset is authorized as completed
and project closed. Subsequently the closed project/asset is transferred to the community by clearing

through the Community Council Funds specific purpose account.
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NORTHERN AFFAIRS FUND
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended March 31, 2014

e) Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash and short-term deposits with maturities of three months or less
from the deposit date and are held for the meeting of the short-term commitments rather than for
investing.

f)  Financial Instruments

Financial instruments are classified into one of the two measurement categories; (a) fair value; or (b)
cost or amortized cost. Financial instruments including cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable
and other receivables — Province of Manitoba, accounts payable and loans payable — Province of
Manitoba are recorded at cost.

Gains and losses on financial instruments measured at fair value are recorded in accumulated surplus as
re-measurement gains and losses until recognized. Upon disposition of the financial instruments, the
cumulative re-measurement gains and losses are reclassified to the statement of operations.

As at March 31, 2014, the Fund does not have any financial instruments measured at fair value. Gains
and losses on financial instruments measured at cost or amortized cost are recognized in the statement
of operations in the period the gain or loss occurs.

The Fund did not incur any re-measurement gains and losses during the year ended March 31, 2014.

g) Allowance for Uncollectible Taxes and Grants in Lieu of Taxes

The allowance for uncollectible taxes and grants in lieu of taxes consists of tax cancellations relating to
specific tax rolls and an estimate of uncollectible accounts based on the history of tax collections.

h) Measurement Uncertainty

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and contingent
liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amount of revenues and expenses
during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from management’s best estimate as additional
information becomes available in the future.

i) Administrative Support
The Department of Aboriginal and Northern Affairs provides administrative services at no charge to the
Fund. The cost of these services for the year ended March 31, 2014 is estimated to be $243,608 (2013 -
$217,920)

j) Budget
The statement of operations and accumulated surplus and the statement of change in net financial

assets do not present budgeted financial results due to the nature of Northern Affairs Fund which
administers the funds on behalf of designated communities.
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3. Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash — Specific Purpose Funds
Cash — Taxation Fund
Cash Equivalents

2014
$5,920,952
241,291
2,275,702

$11,437,945

2013
$7,495,568
190,749
5,687,467

$13,373,784

Cash equivalents are 90 day callable deposits with the interest rate in range of 0.85%-0.93% and within
the Province of Manitoba Trust account. Deposits are normally held to maturity, but if early withdrawal

is required the interest rates applicable up to date of withdrawal.

4. Accounts Receivable

Accounts Receivable - Province of Manitoba
(Specific Purpose Funds)
Accounts Receivable-Taxation Fund (Note 5)

5. Accounts Receivable-Taxation Fund

Taxes Receivable, End of year
Allowance for Doubtful Accounts
Total Net Taxes Receivable, End of Year

Other Receivables —Province of Manitoba

6. Accounts Payable

Accounts Payable - Specific Purpose Funds
Accrued Liabilities
Interest Payable

Accounts Payable-Taxation Fund
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2014 2013
$1,006,224 $1,744,685
1,373,715 1,363,426
$2,379,939 $3,108,111
2014 2013
$2,429,807 $2,225,334
(1,085,084) (902,978)
1,344,723 1,322,356
28,992 41,070
$1,373,715 $1,363,246
2014 2013
$1,782,907 $5,043,941
443,099 429,709

356 1,410
$2,226,362 $5,475,060
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7. Loans Payable
Loans from the Province of Manitoba include the following:

Province of Manitoba, interest 4.45%, repayable in
annual instalments plus interest until May 31, 2019
(Original draw November 30, 2009; $2,600,000)

Province of Manitoba, interest 4.45%, repayable in
annual instalments plus interest until May 31, 2019
(Original draw February 1, 2010; $1,950,000)

Province of Manitoba, interest 4.95%, repayable in
annual instalments plus interest until May 31, 2020
(Original draw May 22, 2010; $1,600,000)

Province of Manitoba, interest 4.00%, repayable in
annual instalments plus interest until May 31, 2025
(Original draw October 1, 2010; $4,100,000)

Province of Manitoba, interest 3.875%, repayable in
annual instalments plus interest until May 31, 2020
(Original draw March 31, 2011; $1,000,000)

Province of Manitoba, interest 3.00%, repayable in
annual instalments plus interest until May 31, 2022
(Original draw December 1, 2011; $2,000,000)

Province of Manitoba, interest 3.00%, repayable in
annual instalments plus interest until May 31, 2022
(Original draw March 31, 2012; $2,000,000)

Province of Manitoba, interest 4.25%, repayable in
annual instalments plus interest until May 31, 2034
(Original draw December 31, 2013; $6,000,000)

Interest payable includes the following:

$ 1,657,195 — 304 days, 4.45%
$ 1,233,557 — 304 days, 4.45%
$ 1,198,240 — 304 days, 4.95%
S 3,401,050 — 304 days, 4.00%
S 715,856 — 304 days, 3.875%
$ 1,658,400 — 304 days, 3.00%
$ 1,834,407 — 304 days, 3.00%
$ 6,000,000 — 90 days, 4.25%
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2014 2013

$1,657,195 $1,893,702

1,233,557 1,409,604

1,198,240 1,338,680
3,401,050 3,624,816
715,856 803,440
1,658,400 1,816,905
1,834,407 2,000,000
6,000,000 0

$17,698,705 $12,887,147

$61,421
45,719
49,400
113,306
23,104
41,437
45,835

_ 62,877
$ 443,099
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Annual payments, made on May 31, are as follows:

Loan Principal Interest

2014 1,245,847 562,010

2015 1,491,787 661,896

2016 1,551,555 602,128

2017 1,614,248 539,435

2018 1,679,295 474,388

Subsequent Years 10,115,973 2,595,665

$17,698,705 $5,435,522

8. Construction in Progress

2014 2013
Balance, Beginning of Year $7,671,740 $2,457,521
New Construction Costs 7,824,538 5,214,219
Closed Projects* (3,448,593) -
Balance, End of Year $12,047,685 $7,671,740

*no closed project in 2013 fiscal year.

9. Northern Affairs Fund — Specific Purpose Funds.
The Northern Affairs Fund administers the following Specific Purpose Funds:

Aboriginal and Northern Affairs Communities:

Community Council Funds — The Department of Aboriginal and Northern Affairs provides funding to
support communities in the Aboriginal and Northern Affairs jurisdiction for the operation, maintenance
and construction of their municipal infrastructure.

Community Capital Support — The Department of Aboriginal and Northern Affairs provides funding to
satisfy principal and interest due on loans payable to the Province of Manitoba (community capital

funding source).

Cottage Administration Fees:

Cottage Administration Fees— A portion of funds from the cottagers levy are set aside within the
specific purpose fund to provide administrative support to cottage areas.
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Aboriginal and Northern Affairs:

Departmental Revenue/Transfer Payments — Revenue received from a variety of sources by the
Department of Aboriginal and Northern Affairs is transferred to the consolidated fund of the Province of
Manitoba.

RBC Payment Distribution — The Department of Aboriginal and Northern Affairs covers the costs for
electronic bank transfer services for payroll cheques for communities and programs where funds are
administered in trust.

Firefighters Insurance - The Department of Aboriginal and Northern Affairs provides to community
volunteer fire fighters basic loss of life, accident and sickness benefits while on duty or participating in
training. The Department provides this insurance at no cost to the community or volunteer fire fighter
through the Volunteer Firemen’s Insurance Services (VFIS).

Fire Inspections - The Department of Aboriginal and Northern Affairs is responsible for completing
inspections in all 50 communities as per the Fire Safety Inspections Regulation of The Fires Prevention
and Emergency Response Act.

CDO Pilot Project — The Department of Aboriginal and Northern Affairs provides funding to support
community based economic strategy development.

Fire Trucks and Equipment — The Department of Aboriginal and Northern Affairs and community
councils provide funding to enhance equipment/fire trucks in support of the Fire Program.

Fire Training — The Department of Aboriginal and Northern Affairs provides funding for community fire
training requirements identified as a result of the Fire Program Review.

Sturgeon Landing Road — The Department of Aboriginal and Northern Affairs provides funding to
maintain the Sturgeon Landing Road and recovers 50% of the costs from the Saskatchewan Provincial
Government.

Sturgeon Gill Road — The Department of Aboriginal and Northern Affairs provides funding to maintain
the Sturgeon Gill Road.

Gull Bay (Long Point) Road — The Department of Aboriginal and Northern Affairs provides funding to
maintain the Gull Bay Road.

Uchtman Rail Crossing — The Department of Aboriginal and Northern Affairs provides funding to
maintain the Uchtman Rail Crossing.

Northern Youth Empowerment Initiative — The Department of Aboriginal and Northern Affairs provides
funding and program support to youth-focused programs or projects in Northern Manitoba.

Community Ergonomics — The Department of Aboriginal and Northern Affairs provides funding as per
Workplace Safety and Health Regulation 217/2006 to assist community councils with developing a
Community Ergonomic Plan (CEP).
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Northern Consultation Board — The Department of Aboriginal and Northern Affairs provides funding to
assist the Board with reviewing/addressing matters and providing recommendations concerning any
proposals with respect to the incorporation process.

Northern Ministers Development Forum — The Department of Aboriginal and Northern Affairs and
other provincial governments provide funding for a special project on Maximizing the Economic and
Social Impacts from Major Projects in the North.

Workplace Safety and Health Training — The Department of Aboriginal and Northern Affairs provides
funding for community workplace safety and health program training requirements.

Workplace Safety and Health Equipment — The Department of Aboriginal and Northern Affairs provides
funding for community workplace safety and health program equipment requirements.

Constable Program — The Department of Aboriginal and Northern Affairs provides funding to enhance
equipment/vehicles in support of the Constable Program.

Community Clerk Workshop — The Department of Aboriginal and Northern Affairs provides funding to
support training and development of the Community Administrative Officers and support staff.

Water Operator Certification — The Department of Aboriginal and Northern Affairs provides funding for
community water/wastewater plant operator certification.

Incorporation — The Department of Aboriginal and Northern Affairs provides funding for community
development on incorporation under The Northern Affairs Act.

WTP Assessments — The Department of Aboriginal and Northern Affairs provides funding of engineering
assessments on all water treatment plants within Aboriginal and Northern Affairs jurisdiction to meet
legislated requirements.

Surveys — The Department of Aboriginal and Northern Affairs provides funding to conduct land surveys
within the communities.

Bluff Road — The Department of Aboriginal and Northern Affairs provides funding to maintain the Bluff
Road.

Resource Management Boards — The Department of Aboriginal and Northern Affairs provides funding to
resource management boards for land use planning activities.

Resource Management Boards Wildlife Projects — The Department of Aboriginal and Northern Affairs
provides funding for wildlife projects under the resource management boards for polar bear and caribou
activities.

Hollow Water Waste Disposal Site — Communities in the Aboriginal and Northern Affairs jurisdiction

provide funding for the operations and maintenance for a regional waste disposal site for Hollow Water,
Manigotagan, Bissett, Aghaming and Seymourville.
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Modular Accredited Training — The Department of Aboriginal and Northern Affairs provides funding to
develop and facilitate an accredited training program for Community Administrative Officers in
Aboriginal and Northern Affairs communities.

911 Emergency Services - The Department of Aboriginal and Northern Affairs provides support to
implement the 911 emergency response systems in Aboriginal and Northern Affairs Communities.

North Central Summer Students — The Department of Aboriginal and Northern Affairs provides funding
to support the employment equity program. Aboriginal students are hired to support the program in the

analytical, municipal and technical areas.

Department of Local Government:

Video Lottery Support Payments — The Department of Local Government provides unconditional
funding through VLT revenue to support municipal services.

Department of Finance:

General Assistance Grant — The Department of Finance provides funding through the distribution of tax
revenue on a per capita basis (based on the most recent census) to support municipal services.

Department of Family Services and Labour:

Building Independence Program — The Department of Family Services and Labour provides funding to
support a program directed at providing work experience for recipients of social assistance living in
Aboriginal and Northern Affairs communities.

Federal Government:

Federal Gas Tax — Funds provided through the Department of Local Government to support community
infrastructure projects within the jurisdiction of Aboriginal and Northern Affairs.

Cottage Subdivision Funds:

Northern Affairs Levy — Funds levied to provide municipal services to unassessed cottage properties
within the Aboriginal and Northern Affairs jurisdiction.

Manitoba Hydro:

Nelson River Archaeological Survey — Manitoba Hydro provides funding to support archaeological
investigation in areas of historical and cultural importance, which has been impacted by hydro-electric
development.

Pimichikamak Archaeological Project — Manitoba Hydro provides funding to prepare a plan for an
archaeological survey at Sipiwisk Lake.

SWAP 2006 — Manitoba Hydro provides funding to support the system-wide archaeological project.
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Specific Purpose — Various:

Nelson House Claims Account — Manitoba Hydro and the Department of Aboriginal and Northern Affairs
provide funding for the Nelson House Community Settlement Agreement.

Sturgeon Management Program — Manitoba Hydro and the Department of Aboriginal and Northern
Affairs provide funding for the operation of the Sturgeon Management Board.

Winnipegosis Lake Water Study — The Department of Aboriginal and Northern Affairs provides funding
to assist in the evaluations of various types of organic compounds in the water source and their removal
to improve overall quality of water and health in the region.

Cross Lake Negotiations — The Department of Aboriginal and Northern Affairs provides funding to
undertake research, community consultations and provide advice and recommendations regarding the
implementation of the Northern Flood Agreement.

Northern Healthy Foods Initiative — The Department of Aboriginal and Northern Affairs in partnership in
MAFRI and Healthy Living and Healthy Child Manitoba provide funding to assist northern communities
with their food self-sufficiency projects.

Treaty Land Entitlement — The Federal Government provides funding for photogrammetric land surveys
to support and expedite the Treaty Land Entitlement process.

MMEF Historical Research/Tripartite — The Department of Aboriginal and Northern Affairs has an
agreement with the Government of Canada and the Manitoba Metis Federation to provide funding for
this Historical Research project, an initiative under the Manitoba Metis Policy.

WRARS - The Department of Aboriginal and Northern Affairs is providing support to communities within
our jurisdiction who must pay the Waste Reduction and Recycling Service Levy.

Consultation Unit — The Department of Aboriginal and Northern Affairs provides funding to assist with
the Crown-Aboriginal consultation process.

Land Use Planning — The Department of Aboriginal and Northern Affairs in partnership with the
Department of Local Government provide funding to support land use planning for the communities
under the jurisdiction of Aboriginal and Northern Affairs.

Thompson Lake Front — The Department of Aboriginal and Northern Affairs administers funding from
the Thompson Lake Front Lot Cooperative to be disbursed on interpretive signs for Paint Lake Provincial
Park.

Property Tax Enhancement — The Taxation Fund Account transfers any cash in excess of $100,100 as at

March 31, 2014 as a contribution to remote communities. In addition, other governmental departments
and organizations provide funding to enhance community programs.
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10. Interfund Transfers

A maximum cash balance of $100,100 is retained in the Taxation Fund Account as at March 31 of each
year to cover current needs. Cash in excess of $100,100 is transferred from the Taxation Fund Account
to the Specific Purpose Funds Account as a contribution to costs incurred by the fund in providing
services in remote areas which do not have a local government to provide these services. The amount of
excess at March 31, 2014 was $141,191 (2013 - $90,650).

The transfer of $141,191 from the Taxation Fund Account to the Specific Purpose Funds Account is

excluded from accounts receivable & accounts payable on the Statement of Financial Position and
revenue & expenses on the Statement of Operations and Accumulated Surplus.

11. Northern Affairs Fund — Transfers between Specific Purpose Funds Accounts

Transfers to/from programs within the Specific Purpose Funds Account shown in Appendix 1

12. Community Council Funds Revenue

Community Council Funds revenue includes the following:

2014 2013

Province of Manitoba, Department of Aboriginal and
Northern Affairs $13,661,117 $12,462,576
Province of Manitoba, Department of Aboriginal and
Northern Affairs, Flood reimbursement 25,226 1,195,682
Locally generated revenue 15,951 2,411
Municipal tax collections transferred from Taxation Fund
Account 382,925 333,539
Department of Agriculture, Food and Rural Initiatives,
hay and grazing rental transferred from Taxation Fund Account 23,043 25,248

$14,108,262 $14,019,456

13. Public Sector Compensation Disclosure Act

In accordance to the Public Sector Compensation Disclosure Act the Northern Affairs Fund shall disclose
to the public an amount of compensation it pays or provides in the fiscal year to any member of council,
officer or employee of the communities if the amount paid is $50,000 or more annually. For the year
ended March 31, 2014:

a) There were no members of council, officers or employees of the communities receiving
compensation of $50,000 or more individually.

b) The aggregate compensation paid to all communities was $14,835 in 2014 and $14,260 in 2013 as
follow:
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Community 2014 2013
Aghaming $1,265 $1,380
Baden 1,380 1,380
Granville Lake 1,610 1,265
Herb Lake Landing 1,610 1,265
Loon Straits 1,265 1,265
National Mills 1,380 1,380
Powell 1,380 1,380
Princess Harbour 1,265 1,150
Red Deer Lake 1,380 1,380
Red Sucker Lake 1,265 1,035
Salt Point 1,035 1,380

$14,835 $14,260

14. Related Party Transactions

The Northern Affairs Fund is related to all Province of Manitoba created Departments, Agencies, Crown
Corporations and Community Councils. The Northern Affairs Fund enters into transactions with these
entities in the normal course of operations and they are measured at the exchange amount which is the
amount of consideration established and agreed to by the related parties.

15. Financial Risk Management

The Northern Affairs Fund has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:
liquidity risk, interest rate risk, credit risk and currency risk.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk arises from the possibility of the Northern Affairs Fund having insufficient financial
resources to meet its financial obligations when they come due.

The Northern Affairs Fund mitigates this risk through cash management. The Northern Affairs Fund
continuously monitors and reviews both actual and forecasted cash flows through periodic financial
reporting. Accounts payable are typically paid when due or in the case of loans payable — Province of
Manitoba are repaid in accordance with a schedule over the term to maturity.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rates. The interest rate exposure relates to cash and cash
equivalent and loans payable — Province of Manitoba.

The interest rate risk on cash and cash equivalents is considered low due to their short term nature.
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The Northern Affairs Fund is exposed to interest rate risk in its loans payable — Province of Manitoba
which carries specific rates of interest. A 1% increase in interest rates would have an effect of $176,987
and increase expenditures.

However the interest rate risk on loans payable — Province of Manitoba is low because the rate is fixed
for the term to maturity and the Province of Manitoba is funding all required interest payments
therefore revenue of the Community Capital Support Funds would also be increased by $176,987.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument fails to discharge an obligation and causes
financial loss to the counter party. The financial instruments that potentially subject the Northern Affairs
Fund to credit risk consist principally of cash and cash equivalents and accounts receivable — Province of
Manitoba.

The maximum exposure of Northern Affairs Fund to credit risk at March 31 is:

2014 2013
Cash and Cash Equivalents (Note 3) $11,437,945 $13,373,784
Accounts Receivable- Province of Manitoba
(Specific Purpose Funds) (Note 4) 1,006,224 1,744,685
Other Receivables —Province of Manitoba (Note 5) 28,992 41,070
$12,473,161 $15,159,539

Cash in bank: The Northern Affairs Fund is not exposed to significant risk as the cash in bank is held with
a large Canadian financial institution.

Cash equivalents: The Northern Affairs Fund is not exposed to significant risks as the Deposits are held
within the Province of Manitoba’s Trust account.

Accounts Receivable and Other Receivables — Province of Manitoba: The Northern Affairs Fund is not
exposed to significant risk as the receivable is from the Province of Manitoba.

Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in foreign currency rates. The Northern Affairs Fund is not exposed to significant
foreign currency risk as it does not have any financial instruments denominated in foreign currency.
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. . . Surveys WRARS Property Tax Workplace Safety | Northern Ministers | Community Clerk | North Central Community | Modular Accredited | CDO Pilot | Total
SPF Accounts Community | Municipal | General Assistance Enhancement |and Health Training |Development Forum |Workshop Summer Students |Ergonomics |Training Project
Council Grant Grant
(16,244) (9,719) 28,000.00 (5,020) 18,438.00 15,455.00
Community Council
16,244.00 16,244.00
Municipal Grant
General Assistance 9,719.00 9,719.00
Grant
Surveys (28,000) (28,000)
WRARS 5,020.00 5,020.00
Property Tax 70,000.00 (1,229) 5,112.00 73,883.00
Enhancement
Workplace Safety and (70,000) (11,000) (81,000)
Health Training
Northern Ministers 1,229.00 1,229.00
Development Forum
Community Clerk (18,438) (5,112) 5,005.00 (18,545)
Workshop
North Central Summer - 5,005.00 (5,005)
Students
11,000.00 11,000.00
Community Ergonomics
Modular Accredited (20,000) (20,000)
Training
20,000.00 20,000.00
CDO Pilot Project
Total (15,455) (16,244) (9,719) 28,000.00 (5,020) (73,883) 81,000.00 (1,229) 18,545.00 5,005.00 (11,000) 20,000.00 (20,000) -
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